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DIVERSION OF LICIT DRUGS TO ILLEGAL MARKETS

WEDNESDAY, OGCTOBER 31, 1979

House oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SeLecT CoMMITTEE ON NARCoTICS ABUSE AND CONTROL,
Washington, D.C.

The Select Committee met, pursuant to notice, at 2:25 p.m., in room
2255, Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Lester L. Wolff (chairman
of the Select Committee) presiding.

Present: Representatives Tom Railsback, Stephen L. Neal, Ben-
jamin A. Gilman, Lawrence Coughlin, and Robert Livingston.

Staff present: Patrick L. Carpentier, chief counsel; Roscoe B.
Starek IIT, minority counsel; Daniel F, Leonard and Frederick R.
Colgan, staft investigators; George R. Gilbert,, staff counssl; and
Michael S. Backenheimer, Eiliott A. Brown and Gerald H. Dubin,
professional staff members.

Mr. Worrr. My apologies to all concerned for being late. There are
so many things that are happening that it makes it difficult for me to
be not 1n two places, but at least three places at one time.

At the moment, I am searching out my passport because I have to
attend the funeral of the President of Korea tomorrow morning. I
can’t find my passport. That is part of my problem.

I hope you will all forgive me.

Today’s hearing by the Select Committee deals with the nature and
extent of legitimate psychoactive drug diversion. '

Properly prescribed and taken, psychoactive drugs have a most legi-
timate place in the practice of medicine. When, however, these same
substances are overprescribed or find their way to the streets and into
the hands of dealers and abusers they extort a terrible price on society.

With the recent reduction in the number of active heroin addicts we
have seen a corresponding increase in the number of persons using
legitimate psychoactive drugs for nonmedical purposes. These persons
represent all spheres of our society and no social or demographic group
is immune.

The money to be made by the unscrupulous who traffic in these drugs
is enormous. A 4 milligram dose of one kind sells on the street for $35
to $45. Another one brings $15 and a nonnarcotic drug like one of the
tranquilizers commands $2 on the street. When you consider the retail
prices per tablet at 7 cents to 17 cents, you can readily see the high
profits on the illicit market.

These few illustrations serve to make plain the committee’s concern
and awareness of legitimate drug diversion, We shall, today, attempt
to gain a Federal and local perspective of the problem so that we may

achieve a set of findings from which raticnal and useful recommenda-
tions may be made.

(1)
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To help us understand the many complex facets of legitimate drug
diversion I am most pleased to welcome Mr, Lee 1. Dogoloff, Associate
Director for Drug Policy, Domestic Policy Staff, the White House. Mr.
Dogoloft, if you can please proceed and tell us what the administra-
tion has in mind to reach this particular area of the problem.

Mr, RaisBack. Mr. Chairman, before you de, can I have unanimous
consent to put in a very, very brief statement?

Mr. Wovrrr. I’m sorry. Of course you can. .
Mr. Ramuseack. I think rather than make it, I would just as soon get

to the witnesses, But I would like to have it follow your statement in

the record. ]
Mr. Worrr. Thank you, Mr. Railsback. In my haste here—

Mr. RamsBack. No, no. That’s all right. -
Mr. Wowrrr [continuing]. I neglected that.

Without objection, the complete statement will be read into the rec-
ord. And I might compliment the gentleman from Illinois for the out-
standing work that he has done in the hearings in Chicago which were
actually the precursor, if you want to call it that, of this hearing.

Mr. RamsBack. I may just add that Congressman Morgan F. Mur-
phy was co-chairman along with Henry J. Hyde and Cardiss Collins.
And the four of us attended those hearings.

[Mr. Railsback’s opening statement follows:]

OPENING STATEMENT OF THE HONORABLE TOM RAILSBACK

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I concur in your remarks and would like to com-
pliment you for recognizing the importance of the matters that we will consider
today and the urgency of convening this hearing to examine the enormous in-
crease in the abuse of licit drugs. .

On July 30, 1979, Morgan Murphy and I, joined by two of our distinguished col-
leagues from Illinois, Henry Hyde and Cardiss Collins, held one day of hearings
in Chicago on the diversion of legal drugs for illegal uses. Our actions were
prompted by a most revealing investigation conducted by a special task force
of the Chicago Tribune which disclosed the widespread abuse of both prescrip-
tion and dispensed drugs in the Chicago area.

The investigation culminnted in a five-day series in the Chicago Tribune
which concentrated on a number of unscrupulous physicians who dispensed
controlled substances to patients after a cursory or no physical examination. We
learned that the use of narcotics and amphetamines in the Chicago area was
reaching epidemic proportions, and the abuse of these licit drugs was directly
attributed to the prescribing practices of physicians.

As a result of the Tribune’s series and our hearing in Chicago, Governor Jim
Thompson signed into law a bill which was passed overwhelmingly by the Gen-
eral Assembly whick closed some of the loopholes in the Illinois Controlled
Substances Act. The new law requires physicians to fill out a prescription form
in triplicate whenever 4 controlled substance with a high abuse potential is
dispensed directly from their office. Moreover, the law prohibits the use of pre-
printed prescription forms for any controlled substance. Finally, the law has
recognized the enormous abuse in Illinois of Preludin and has re-clagsified this
drug into Schedule I1. .

Today, we will review and update the information we gleaned from the hear-
ing in Chicago, and I know that today’s hearing will enlighten us further about
this serious and ever-increasing problem.

We learned in Chicago that the abuse of licit drugs now causes mcre deaths
than the abuse of illicit drugs. In particular, there are more deaths from
. overdoses of licit drugs than from heroin.

Mr. Chairman, today’s hearing is crucial to the efforts of this Committee to
combat the abuse of drugs in our society. I am anxious to hear the thoughts and
recommendations of the distinguished panel you have assembled this afternoon,
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Mr. Worrr. Mr. Dogoloff, you have taken an oath before, you will
not have to be resworn before this committee. Maybe some of the
others who haven’t been here before will have to swear to their testi-

mony, but you will be testifying under your prior oath. Am I correct
in that?

TESTIMONY OF LEE I. DOGOLOFF, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR FOR DRUG
POLICY, DOMESTIC POLICY STAFF, THE WHITE HOUSE

Mr. Dogororr. You are correct,

Mr. Wovrrr. Please proceed.

Mr. Dogororr. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is a pleasure to be here
today and talk about an issue that is a serious one, as you have said.
We have now reached a point where the abuse of prescription drugs
has health consequences, negative health consequences, that outweigh
those from illegal drugs such as heroin and cocaine.

The real problem, it seems to me, rests with the growing acceptance
of drug use by all segments of our society. The concept that a pill
will solve problems is just too all pervasive.

Th1§ 1s certainly reflected in the adolescent use of marihuana and
adults’ reliance upon prescription drugs. These drugs are of particular
concern to us since they affect a disproportionate number of elderly
and women. We must try to change these attitudes. And I think that
the hearings that you have held in the past and today’s hearings will
certainly help in that regard.

Although law enforcement efforts can have some impact, much more
must be done through medical education, patient education, peer pres-
sure, and so forth. Over the past 2 years, our office has chaired an inter-
agency working group of concerned Federal agencies, professional and
trade associations, and some State representatives.

.. We have determined that there are systems which will allow us to
identify possible points of diversion.

Under the Controlled Substances Act, basically, the States have re-
sponsibility for what we have found is the major source of diversion
occurring at retail and practitioner levels and not at a wholesale di-
version level.

In order to get at that problem very early on in the administration,
we asked the Drug Enforcement Administration to do a complete re-
view of all manufacturers of licit drugs to ascertain the potential for
diversion and found that it just wasn’t coming at that level. Most
pharmacists and physicians do not have criminal intent when they
overprescribe or dispense controlled substances.

Therefore, in the majority of instances, we believe it is inappropri-
ate and ineffective to rely solely on law enforcement. In those States
which have effective control systems, we found that the key element
was communication. The use of educational activities and peer pressure
combined with Federal and State regulatory activities were very
effective.

Just the hearing highlighting of the issue, calling attention to it,
asking practitioners to stop and think about what it is they were doing,
that in itself has a major impact.
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We were honored, Mr. Chairman, to have you open a meeting which
we organized on September 12 which brought together the concerned
Federal agencies, officials from seven States, and several professional,
educational, and trade associations. The participants at that meeting
agreed on the following points:

One: The health hazards of prescription drug abuse exceed that of
heroin. That is also clearly borne out in the DAWN data.

Two: Inappropriate prescribing practices by some physicians and
diversion from pharmacies have been the primary sources of these
drugs reaching the illicit market. ’ ~

Three: Only a small percentage is derived from unscrupulous or im-
paired physicians or from the diversion at the wholesaler and manu-
facturing level.

Next, no one agency, either Federal or State, could effectively deal
with the problem. Common elements of successful State programs in-
clude professional education, professional peer pressure, regulatory
and licensing activities, with law enforcement as a final resort.

States should consider establishing a prescription drug task force,
bringing together the concerned medical and pharmacy associations,
State regulatory officials, and enforcement authorities.

And lastly, information is available from the Federal information
systems such as the ARCO system to help identify points of diversion.

I have submitted for the record the minutes of that meeting as well
as the six specific actions that are being undertaken to follow up that
meeting. In general, we will continue our research efforts on the use
of prescription drugs. We will foster education of physicians and other
health care professionals on the appropriate prescribing of these
substances.

We -will inform the State Governors of the seriousness of prescrip-
tion drug diversion and urge that task forces be set up at a State level.

I have requested that the Surgeon General convene a national pre-
scription drug conference in order to share existing State initiatives.

And finally, I have established an ad hoc group to advise the Strategy
Council on Drug Abuse in this area. This administration is commit-
ted to addressing the problem of prescription drug abuse as one of
our highest priorities. And we look forward to working together on
this important issue.

Thank you.

Mr. Worrr. Thank you, Mr. Dogoloff.

I am going to pass the questioning to Mr. Railsback.

Mr. Ramspack. Thank you, Mr. Dogoloff. And I am wondering,
can you give us a little more background about the FDA’s proposal to
withdraw approval for the use of amphetamines in treating obesity ?
I was not, I guess, familiar with that.

Mr. Docororr. Some States have done that and found that it has
been successful in reducing the problem with the amphetamines. I do
not want to sort of overlay a personal opinion on top of what is a con-
sidered judgment and process that FDA Las gone through to come up
with a position.

Although it seems to me that that does make sense, that given the
limited, as T understand it, medical usefulness of that drug for things,
you know, outside of that, and the other options that are available,
too, for obesity, to preclude that might be very useful.

it
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Mr. Ramssacxk. Do you know, have they actu is i
form of any kind of a i;'}(’)rmal pro’posa,l? d ally made this in the
Oult?{ghgoggr&)}ss‘pu. I ll)eliteilvi the%r ha,vi,_ buth am not sure. And I can find

at mformati y 1 i
SOIilIeori% o frOI;?F‘YDA. on for the record, or if there is
T. RATLSBACK. I might just mention that when we were in Chica.
many of the so-called pill-pushing clinics, actually without a,ny1 kl%l(:i,
olf1 %ilaqanmtgtglll p}j&ysmal exam, were dispensing tremendously large
::lura o belsli }c?). ‘p1 s. And they were doing it under the guse of trying to
-And so I certainly think that is a step in the right direction. I would
;Jlll)?uioit}{now more about it if you can get me some more information

Mr. Dogororr. I followed with interest not only the hearin
serles of articles in the Chicago Tribune on the is};ue. AndI t%l’illl)i:ttfll;i
was very, very useful in drafing attention to the problem. Illinois was
represented at our meeting on September 12, and they are doing some
Velﬁr ﬁrig things in that regard. '

. Mr. RamsBack. They have a new law tha 1 ] i
mnto law by the Govern)(r)r. © I think was fust signed

On page 5, you mentioned that only a small percentage is derived
from unscrupulous or impaired physicians. And yet, in the previous
sentence, you indicate that the inappropriate pi'escribing by some
physicians and the diversion from pharmacies have been the primary
source of these drugs reaching the illicit market.

Are you saying that although the doctors aren’t unscrupulous, they
are not very smart, or what ?

Mr. Dogororr. No; I think there are a lot, of things that ge into how
that occurs. And for the most part, physicians are responsible, acting
In a responsible way. And there is not a malice in their motives in
terms of their prescribing practices.

Mr. Ratseack. Even those that prescribe these tremendously large
quantities ?

Mr. Docororr. Noj; I feel differently about those doctors. And the
problem is one or two physicians in a community can literally cause
an epidemic of licit drug abuse. '

We are also talking about the misuse of drugs that may be legiti-
mately prescribed because of a lack of patient education, taking the
time to help a patient understand drugs or understand drug interac-
tions, which oftentimes happens in the case of the elderly.

Mr. RaiLseack. Is it your belief that generally speaking, the medi-
cal societies have been cooperative? Have they been working with the
Government? And are they taking what you believe to be the neces-
sary steps to maybe remedy or rectify some of the problems that we
have seen ?

Mr. Doeororr. I think on a national level, that is true, yes, they
have been cooperating. They participate, for example, on a regular
basis and attend meetings of our interagency coordinating group on
licit drug problems, including the AMA and the Pharmaceutical Man-
ufacturers Association, come to the meetings and are very responsive
and very helpful. '

I think on a State-by-State level, some medical societies and boards
of pharmacies are more vigorous in enforcement than others. What

57-472 0 - 80 - 2




6

we are hoping to do is by highlighting this issue, by sharing techniques,
that will foster increased activity on their part. I will discuss this issue
in g letter that T am going to send to each of the Governors in an at;-
tempt to highlight it. This will help to encourage those who aren’t
vigorous, and cause them to think about varying degrees ?f response.
1t is very difficult, as you know, to take away a doctor’s license to
ractice. And that is a very serious step. We want more and more to
e thinking about intermediate steps for physicians as a way of get-
ting a message across so that, for example, in some cases it may be
appropriate to deny the physician the right for a while to prescribe
the class IT drugs and let him prescribe other drugs at the same time.

So we are not, in effect, taking that very drastic step and have a
differential response and begin to think in those terms about the
problem. ) ) ) )

Mr. Ramssack. I would like to just add that in Chicago when we
had the hearings, I really got the feeling that the doctors that testi-
fied that I thought were trying to be helpful, they really did not ap-
prove of the whole sale prescription of some of these dl_'ug,s for, say
obesity. And yet, I still got the feeling that they really didn’t want to
take the steps of necessarily outlawing them.

And yet, given their druthers, that’s what they would want to do
inasmuch as I don’t think any of them used that kind of prescription

ractice. _
P So I guess I hope that maybe the FDA will be successful in its ef-
forts, particularly because there really isn’t in my opinlon—at least I
haven’t seen it—much evidence that these drugs are that helpful in
combatting obesity or that there are other things that are equally as
ood.
8 Mzr. Dogororr. I would agree.

Mr. Ramseack. Thank you very much.

Mr. Near. Thank you, Mr. Dogoloff. . )

I am just wondering, are you in favor of moving drugs of high abuse
into higher classifications?

Mr. Docororr. Yes, I think we have to be flexible with that. And
we have to use our indicator systems to help us understand which
drugs have a high abuse potential and as they do, to be flexible and
change that, if for no other reason, not only to increase controls, but
it also gives a different signal to the physician, to the pharmacist, as to
how they need to think about that drug before they prescribe it and
also to the patient who treats a drug differently when there are con-
trols on how many times you can have it renewed and so forth. So
that it gives, I think, more respect for the drug as you move it up into
the schedule. .

Mr. Near. Do you have any understanding of why different age
groups seem to prefer different drugs of abuse? Someone mentioned
to me the other day, and I had just never thought of it before, it is
very rare that young people abuse Valium, for example. Yet Valium
seems to be a drug of considerable abuse among the adult population.

Mr. Dogororr. I think it is more likely to be prescribed for adults.
And adults probably have more knowledge of it, more awareness of it,
being around. It i1s more available to them through legitimate
prescription.
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They then, unfortunately, sometimes become dependent on it. And
children are not likely to have that available to them in the same way.

So I think it has to do with prescribing practices and use.

Mr. NEar. So it is your feeling that the abuse of Valium and other
such drugs begins through a legitimate process?

Mr. Docororr. For the most part, that is so. And its diversion out of
that licit process is not coming at the manufacturing level, Quaaludes,
I guess, is maybe the only drug where we have some real evidence it is
being provided illicitly and comes into the country where we have had
some major seizures of Quaaludes coming in from Colombia. But other
than that, most of it is produced licitly in the country and diverted at
the retail practitioner level and not at the wholesale levels,

Mr. Nearn. I am just curious. I had also heard there had been a good
deal of interdiction of amphetamines manufactured abroad and com-
ing in. Is that not true?

Mr. Docororr. Some of that, yes. But recently, it has really been
Quaaludes for the most part.

Mr. Neavn. Thank you, Mr, Dogoloff.

Are there further questions?

Mr, Rainsack. No. That is all.

[ Mr. Dogoloff’s prepared statement appears on p. 67.]

Mzr. NraL. Gur next witness is Mr. Bensinger, Administrator of the
Drug Enforcement Administration.

Mr. Bensinger, it is good to see you again. It is always nice to wel-
come you to the committee.

Please feel free to put your entire statement in the record and sum-
marize if you like, or proceed as you wish,

TESTIMONY OF PETER B. BENSINGER, ADMINISTRATOR, DRUG EN-
FORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE;
ACCOMPANIED BY KENNETH A. DURRIN, DIRECTCR, OFFICE OF
COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS, DEA

Mr. Bensinger. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Near. Would you like to put your entire statement in the record ¢

Mr. Bensmveer. I would, if I could. And I would like to provide a
summary.

I would also like at this time to invite Kenneth Durrin who is the

Director of our Office of Compliance and Regulatory Affairs to make
himself available in case you would like to ask any specific questions
of Mr. Durrin. )
. Mr. Chairman, the problem of retail diversion is serious and grow-
ing, And it is, in my opinion, a problem that generally has not been
fully addressed, except perhaps for this committee which has already
held a hearing in Chicago, as Congressman Railsback has pointed out,
and done considerable research on the subject.

It has been covered like a lizard under a rock without the headlines
of cocaine and heroin and large mother ship marihuana arrests, but
it 1s a $1 billion business, and a business which is striking, from a
health standpoint, more injuries and more overdose deaths in the pop-
ulation of the United States than heroin and all other drugs combined.

It is a business that is perpetrated because of the tendencies and
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criminal activities, of a number of physicians and pharmacists, not
a large percentage, not a large number, bat individually that have a
tremendous impact on literally hundreds of thousands of Americans.

The total amount of controlled substances that is prescribed and
controlled is over 20 billion dosage units. The amount that is illicitly
diverted would approximate 250 to 300 million of those 20 billion
dosage units. :

There are some 600,000 registrants that the Drug Enforcemeni Ad-
ministration registers under the Controlled Substances Act of which
96 percent are at the retail practitioner level. Our agent workforce
includes some 220 compliance investigators and 20 special agents. Our
registrant to investigator ratio is 2,500 to 1.

And candidly, I think we need some significant changes in the re-
sources that are available to combat this problem and perhaps some
changes in the law, as well.

I say we need changes in the resources because, principally, the Con-
trolled Substances Act, the congressional mandate we have as an
agency is to focus on the manufacturer and wholesale distributor of
these licit, legal manufactured drugs. And the State and local juris-
diction have the responsibility to police, to investigate, prepare for
prosecution, and to prosecute the physicians and docters at the local
level.

Candidly, the resources at that level are not adequate to meet this
challenge. I think they need to be beefed up at the State and local
level. T think our resources which have been used generally to pro-
vide seed and initial funding assistance to the States through the in-
vestigating units, the DIU’s, should be expanded.

I feel, in addition, we should consider changing the law in a num-
ber of areas:

One, for example, in the amphetamine and barbiturate area, we find
penalties are 5 years for Quaaludes, amphetamines, and barbiturates
because they are nonnarcotic. And I would suggest that this commit-
tee and its membership may want to consider whether section 401 of
the Controlled Substances Act ought to be amended to provide that
illegal sale and distribution of nonnarcotics as well as narcotic drugs
recelve the same penalty. ,

The power that the Drug Enforcement Administration has over
registrants is also limited in that we can only remove registration if
a registrant falsifies an application or is convicted of a drug-related
felony. In some States, the violation of the Controlled Substances
Act in their States is a misdemeanor offense. And there are and have
been indicated reluctances of State medical societies and registering
boards to remove entirely the doctor’s right to practice.

Once that is removed, then we have the right to rescind the doctor’s
right to store narcotics. It seems to me an examination of the present
procedure is in order.

In addition. Mr. Chairmarn, we have seen instances—this is a sample
of a doctor’s clinic in California——

[Holding up a picture.] :

Now, the photograph shows drug abusers and dealers lined up be-
fore the doctor’s office opened in the morning. What the photo doesn’t
show is that the line extended completely around the block and then
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arounc another block. Our undercover agent reported at 8 a.m., an
hour before the office opened, there were 20 people already in line.
The physician had to hire & special security guard to keep the line
orderly.

Thig particular docter was arrested and charged with 35 counts
of drug related offenses. The type of drugs this doctor was distributing
included Quaaludes, Dilaudid, Preludin, Ritalin,

We have recommended that the Food and Drug Administration
remove the indicator for obesity for amphetamines and for Preludin.
This is a major drug substance that has been widely diverted. It has
been a subject in Washington of major examinations.

We feel 1f FDA concurs with our recommendation, that the total
production of amphetamines that would be legally authorized under
the Controlled Substances Act would be cut by 80 percent.

We feel, in addition, that there is a strong meed at the local level
for stronger support in prosecution and in sentencing. ‘

And T might add, there have even been some Federal cases where
we have seen individuals given 5- to 10-year sentences with sentences
suspended. An individual in New Hampshire, in particular, was re-
sponsible for 60 percent, I believe—Ken, you correct me—of the am-
phetamines that were available in that State in the entire year, 2 per-
cent of the national production at one point in time, who received
a suspended sentence upon conviction.

We feel generally the level of awareness in the minds of the public
is not sufficient to really address the problem. '

On the left is 4 cost and street price chart showing amphetamines,
Dilaudid, methaqualone, Preludin, Talwin, and Tuinal. If you looked
at the value of the retail cost, the amphetamine for 17 cents is sold
on the street for $12. Dilaudid at 17 cents is up to $56. Preludin, selling
for slightly less than 25 cents, has been sold for as high as $15.

[See exhibit A on p. 44.]

The total value of these drugs alone is close to $1 billion in the diver-
sion field. And that is only six out of the total legitimate controlled
substances that numbers in the tens of thousands—in fact 20,000.

This market is so large, Mr. Chairman, that we are presently review-
ing a CENTAC operation for one of the major organized criminal
activities specializing in retail diversion.

We have seen individnals recruited who are overweight to go around
to doctors’ clinics and just to buy pills. And then go into a van and
day after day buy pills and then go out on the street and sell them for
20 or 30 times the amount they paid for them.

Mr. Worrr. Almost as good as oil today.

Mr. Bensiner. It could well be. It has certainly reached a percent-
age of the population that has not been subject to some of the embar-
goes that the petroleum industry in the past has.

I think we need, obviously, more information to the public about
the dangers of diversion. I think your hearing, Mr. Chairman, is ex-
cellent to call to the Congress and to the American people the prob-
lems about licit diversion. - .

I think that you will find our agency feels frustrated in the sense
that we don’t have a mandate at the retail level that we feel is adequate
to impact on the problem, either legally or in terms of resources. And
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we see at the State and local level a lack of resources as well. There
is a clear gap. There is a clear need.

We are at your disposal to answer any questions that you may have
on this very serious and important problem.

Mr. Worrr. Thank you, Mr. Bensinger. As always, your testimony
is one that is not only provocative, but it gives us a good overall picture
of the existing situation.

One of the elements that we have found in our investigations of the
Veterans Administration for example, is a redundancy of prescrip-

‘tions. We found that some veterans getting prescription drugs from

* the VA hospital were then going out and obtaining a number of addi-

tional prescriptions from other doctors to treat a specific illness. Then
especially in Pureto Rico, these prescription drugs would be diverted
into the illicit market.

Second, we found people who had a specific health problem using
this health problem as a device to pick up whatever e:.10unt they
sought by going from doctor to doctor. The cost of the visit to the
doctor—and this might be a very legitimate doctor—is regarded as a
cost of doing business. With those profits in mind, you know, a pile ot
pills is almost better than food stamps. They can go in and “cash”
these pills almost anyplace they want to.

What are your thoughts on the idea of some sort of a central registry
where the prescriptions would have to be filled on a centralized basis
so there would not be this redundancy ? Do you think this would——

Mr. Bensinger. I think that is an excellent idea, Mr. Chairman. 1
think a central registry, not only of the practitioners, but conceivably
of the prescription itself. And I would ask Ken Durrin—-I think it is
in five States, Ken, where this exists.

Mr. Durrin. That’s correct. California, Idaho, Illinois, New York,
and Rhode Island, all have some kind of triplicate or duplicate pre-
scription system. I have talked with officials from all of those States,
and they have found that these have been useful in terms of tracking
promiscuous script-writing doctors, as well as tracking patienis who
are doctor shoppers that go from one doctor to another as you describe.

One of the problems that New York State has been faced with in par-
ticular, California as well, is the tremendous volume of prescriptions
and digesting and regurgitating leads from this kind of system. The
State of Idaho doesn’t have that kind of a problem. They can pretty
neatly keep track. They have a machine card system.

Mr. Worrr. Is it only the practitioner that has to report, or do the
pharmacists also have to report on an individual prescription basis?

Mr. Durrin. The pharmacists are the ones that report under the
normal triplicate seript system. The practitioner fills out the prescrip-
tion for the patient in triplicate. Two copies go to the patient and the
physician keeps one. The prescription the patient received is then
cashed in a pharmacy where one copy is maintained as a record in the
pharmacy and one copy goes to the government. :

Mr. Wovrr. I don’t think that California has a very good record of
this because we have found most of the diversion in that area. So that
doesn’t speak very well for that system. :

Mzx. Dorrin. This is true. And as I say, one of the problems is with
a mass of paper involved here, using the system effectively to seek
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out and learn who are shopping from doctor t d
these people are very clever an%i use diffe (2 names amd to, ShoouIse,
: rent, i
Veg d%%cult to Ctra,ck some of them down. names and the like. It i
<2, WorLrF. Can it be tied into a social securit d ing li
that ? We have registrations for everything today}.’ card, something like
usi\{[;‘(.) gi)agRRIN. Ilhere are a lot of third-party payment systems that do
e countrys.ecum y numbers on insurance-paid prescriptions around
Mr. Worrr. On this score, somethin ighli i
] . _ g that was highlighted
media recently was Elvis Przesley’s death and the red?md%zlmir olfnptxg?
scriptions he had. Is DEA looking into this situation at all 2
kiMr. Durrin. That 1s being handled at the State level. Basically, the
coﬁgegﬁspzobllfem_iﬁzs is ahSltate monitoring problem. DEA primarily
1tself with the wholesale t 1stributi i
o vops Msel wit ype of distribution. And we get into
ildlir. Vgomm‘. Don’% 7;377011 get in(fio the practitioner level 2

I. DENSINGER. We can and do on a selected basis. I think the ¢
problems that are characterized by Elvis Presley’s death and theedrvg;
::fa't;,c}algttls .%ttnbuj:ed and talked about and referred to in news articles
rel reaso?l ; , One, 1s the doctor-patient relationship. And here is one of

Mr. Worrr. I don’t think that should be dj i 1
m(ilf inllgportant o protons . u disturbed. I think that is

T. DENSINGER. That is important, and that is one of the ;
(viv(ﬂfsli; siometlmes %gctor; :*ivho may be. making available (3ust se;lssg;_s

arge numbers of drug c 1 i i i
be%; meﬁiical s & capsules to patients say that is their

n the other hand, T understand physicians and professi
_ : : onals look-
Ing at the total dosage numbers that have been or%ered for arslyogne
person say clearly this is excessive. And what you have in a prosecu-
torlgl Sltuation, and we have seen this many times, and we have taken
som¢ individual practitioners to court, is the argument we are the
doctor.

We don’t want to propose that we act in th

_ . wat role, but the docto
thlld say, “That is my judgment that that person needed those pills.’l;
N ometimes that happens without an examination. Sometimes, that
bzppens @hough the doctor may not even know who that patient may
be. r'tI;}(lieaSILuatﬁgn is, 11{11 fa(c}t},l characterized to the extent that we have
. crackdown, Mr. Chairman, in 22 State ] i-
tlol\riers‘,;‘crlocbors, and ,pharmacists. , #es, of 109 major practi

r. WoLFF. May I interrupt you for just i

llt{{r. %;ENSINGER. g pty r jJust a moment, Mr. Bensinger?

L. WOLFF. As I understand it, there was a medical doctor wh

convicted here. Was it in the District or was it in Maryland ? o s
1\1\{/{r. %XRPEN'I;ER. }fl[n the District.

. WOLFF. In the District. He was convicted in this District. and
his license was revoked. He moved i is still prac
ticing oS oved into New York and is still prac-

l1\\T10w],)don’t you have any control over a situation such as that?

r. DUrRrIN. Mr. lQha,lrma,.n, we are very familiar with that case. As
geri%at:vzr Igfdfag,}t;,, Jointly imth the Metropolitan Police Department

» We made the criminal case on that doctor here i 1stri
Columbia where he did lose his license. etor fiere in the District of

R .
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that ¢ . .
ﬁi ggkliva‘;}i?erﬁ}jv f?lsemory serves me correctly, I believe 1t was ap

pr(h)/ﬁn%‘t’;gg‘l«}gzg’.ﬁ? This is the end of 1979, and this fellow is still

icing 1 v York. ) . ) 1
practlcanRg an1 New is DEA registration which he oes
hat doctor lost his _regl v :
noltwlfé,\g todal;. ITma'ight‘ add. And he lost his license here in the District
. day,
of I‘%)v%rl u?vglli.ave a problem with regard to this partwullar caflei Il;)ecrarmlgi(f
an application for registration with DEA is a currently pe;ili gunder
tn b%Ef)ore DEA. And Mr. Bensinger will be the deciding o csil;) Jndex
ffxfe Administrative Procedures Act: And he is not .11111ba %)}3, Y
s‘peak'to this particular case at this time because he will be the
catli?[lf ’\?Vﬂ(i)ii‘ll‘;«‘ Let me go a step further. Som};a ofdthfése thizgfitgléag;hgg
yreotics a t doctor prescr
t; controlled substances, Can tha
norﬁl ?frﬁz é%seglll?t have his license for nargotlc substances ¢ it
evi\/[r Durrin. The doctor cannot prescribe controlled substla}I‘lces v Ath-
out a. DEA régistration, regardles.s off Wh(:)txlllgo‘}i:dhgsb:talrgggsseﬁ -~
have the registration for ¢ led substances.
Eﬁgggfige?s 1%?121210wia£¥1?)ut a Dﬁ?‘A registration, he is in violation of the

lavﬁr Worrr. What contact do you have with the local medical

Soﬁﬁ.i%mm. When we make a case and (vivlégrérat((:)ozl}xlfécéi&i 381122211;%;
gﬁtﬁog?ir:;c%i?%ﬁzlsggfg;ﬁgaogcéisoﬁilgpropriate action may or may
nof\l??éﬁlfﬁli%%}?%hat is the problem, Mr, gélai;n;?grftv iﬁig{ll?l(‘)a{f:e;%
:3%%(}0(1))87 ’pilgc?ilteio(f;?s,(;fl@%‘e flx}l){ecrggt I:fp t?}fa}; I}furgber were engaged in
un%élllliﬁl gﬁgf I'l‘lsnlgroIl){I(;icggsvsﬁ to 20 large States with maybe only 6 t% 8
investigators per State looking at 500 different potential leads, the
inﬁf‘ﬁ%\?gﬁg‘? fit?lrllikag gfled;slgéct of this par.tiiillla;'alézag}‘li:t:gtz}xlrixs(isitzlzlsﬁ
g‘;t? Ill)z };eﬁzzg%%gzsvlvll}ile};?lfcg&iggi?lttl)l]: (;flelgicaﬁ practitioner. I think
it should be clearly understood.

INGER. We concur. . )
1\1\{%: \]%TESL?EI'\I GAnd it is either the unscrupulous or unknowing physi

cian who is involved in this tl}épg of procedure(;tIot;ﬁi;l({i:kgcazllts}tilgg&ni%
i fession, we would be in grave, not o i , t
:vlz)lflncflﬁg g I;_;)rave in]zustice to the medical profession and the pharma
. . k‘ . n. . - 3 . 3 N
cmgftalI t?lfi(;)tlgf}ll?xt where we have specific cases like this, it is a glosz
miscarriage of justice that someone is able to practice medicine in o
area after having been convicted in another.

viction obtained ?
ﬁ:s nggl‘g?tg: was convicted. He was sentenced to 45 years and

fined $100,000. That case went all thefﬁway (iiso the Supreme Court, in-
i his conviction was affirmed. )
ﬂ%if%%ﬂ?ﬁe is not in jail, so obviously it was overturned.

.,
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Mr. Durrin. No. It was not overturned. He received a reduction in
sentence and received early parole for good behavior, and so he served
his term, and he is out, :

Mr. Worrr. That is beyond me.

Mr. Durriw. It is beyond me, Mr. Chairman, but that is the case.

Mr. Worrr. Mr. Railshack.

Mr. RatLsack. May T ask what triggers the revocation procedures
for their DEA registration? In other words, say you have widespread
allegations about pill pushing, which we have had in the city of Chi-
cago, as disclosed by the Chicago Tribune series.

It is necessary for there to bo a conviction before the DEA takes a
look at that guy’s DEA registration ¢

Mr. DurriN. Yes. As far as the practitioner goes, the doctor goes,
or a pharmacy, that is correct, Mr. Railsback. The registrant must
have been convicted of a drug felony or he must have materially falsi-
fied his application for registration with DEA, provided that he has a
State license.

Mr. Ratrssack. That is required by statute ?

Mr. Durrin. By statute. We are locked into the State license of the
individual doctors.

Mr. BensiNager. And that is something, Mr, Railsback, if T might
say, that we in the Department of Justice are looking at. Because in
some cases it may be the clear, flagrant misuse of the right to inven-
tory and store controlled substances, lack of adherence to administra-
tive records, lack of adherence to the procedures under which that
person first cbtained the registration that could, in fact, in the public’s
interest, justify nonrenewal or revocation of that license.

Mr. Raseack. How often are they renewed, by the way ?

Mr. BENSINGER. Annually. They are renewed annually. But the
basis by which a doctor loses his license has to be a conviction, a felony
conviction, or a misrepresentation jn the application.,

. Mr. Rarwseack. QK. Then who has the initiative once, say, a phy-
slclan or pharmacist ig convicted, in initiating the procedure to
revoke? ;

Mr. Durrin. We take the initiative on that.

Mr. Ratrseack. You have the right to take the initiative there ?

Mr. DurriN. Yes.

Mr. Ratnspack. Let me ask you this. I guess, Peter, T would ask
you, I kind of get the feeling-—and this we got in Chicago as well—
that your primary enforcement activity with respect to diversion is the
use of go-called diversion investigation units, Would you say that is
correct ? : :

Mr. BeNsINGER, Yes; that is certainly one of the major areas of
retail diversion emphasis. The principal resources of the agency are

put at the wholesale and manufacturing level,

Mr. RamsBack. Right. Now, as I understand your testimony, there
are not very many Federal personnel that can be diverted to the diver-
Slon nvestigation units. In other words, the DEA does not have very
many personnel that can be—I don’ want to use the word “divert”—
assigned to that particular job.

So then the primary reliance in the diversion invesﬁgation units is
with the State people as well 2 ' |

57-472 0 - 80 - 3
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Mr. Bensnveer. That’s correct. . o
Mr. RamsBack. What, if any, kind of a training program do we

have for those State people, or is there any at all ? o

Mr. BENSINGER. I?es ;pthere is. And Ken could describe it. =~

Mr. Durrin. Yes. Of course, each of these diversion investigative
units—and we have 19 of ther now, 18 States and here in the District
of Columbia—receive initial training from DEA.,

Mr. Ramwssack. How long is that ¢ .

Mr. DurriN. That is a 1-week training course. And we also assign a
DEA agent as a full-time working member of the unit which provides
additional on-the-job training. _ .

We also hold periodic training sessions from 8 to 5 days for State
pharmacy board inspectors, medical investigators in regional locations
throughout the country. Our most recent one was in the New Orleans

area. .
We have in the past year hold them also in Atlanta and in Albany,

N.Y., for the New England area. o . _
Mr. RamsBack. Is the Diversion Investigation Unit a relatively

new thing? ]

Mr. Durrin. That has been in existence since 1972. We started with
our first three pilot States, Michigan, Alabama, and Texas. As I say,
we are now up to 18 States and the District of Columbia. It has been
a very effective thing. ) q )

We have, incidentally, about 200 State investigators committed to
this endeavor throughout the country in addition to 20 DEA agents.

Mr. RamsBack. Is that a large increase? In other words, does the
200 now committed represent a relatively large increase, say, in the
last year or two?

r. DurriN. It has been gradually going up since the program
started in 1972. But there have been, I would say, probably 60 to 70
in the last 2 years, roughly in the last 2 years. _

Mr. RausBack. In your opinion, based on what we know in the
recent revelations, in all of the persons is there any more personnel?

Mr. Durrin., Yes.

Mr. Bensinger. Clearly.

Mr. RamwsBack. Substantially more ?

Mr. Bensinger. Clearly, we think so.

Mr. RamsBack. Both State and Federal?

Mr. Bensinger. Yes. We have doubled the number of personnel,
both at the State and Federal level, in the last 814 years. But that is
still far from what is needed to combat this problem effectively.

Mr. Ranssack. Thank you.

Mr. Worrr. Mr. Coughlin.

Mr. Covenrin. I have no questions at this time, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Worrr. Mr. Livingston.

Mr. Livineston. I have no questions, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Wourr. Mr. Bensinger, before you leave, may I divert for a
moment. This has nothing to do with this particular hearing, but it
has been said recently that a number of old moonshiners that existed
up in the mountain areas, are now going into the marihuana business.

Did you hear anything about that ?

Mr. BensiNger. There are certainly some people in some hills of
northern California and other States, most other States.
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of I(ilomesti.c marihuana growth.

can give you a more sub i i iti
bel&ap%y ve, gso. e substantive response in writing and would

r. Worrr. I would appreciate it if vou would because t. i
has been posed to us, and I would like toyrespond. ’ 1150 the question

’l}‘Iﬁ' BEII\ISIN(;IER. Very good, Mr. Chairman,

6 only other comment I would make would be in conclusion, i
- . n f
I collllld, to just a follow-up on this one specific retail diversion initia,llly
\;_Ve ave taken. And that is to select 109 targets who have clearly, we
1 :;1, b(%?tn;onstra,teéi they };a‘i? Iiot only been in clear violation of the

» UL represent some of the largest retail divers; 5
or%‘f;nlged basis in some 22 States. ¢ ersion networks on an

e do not think those investigations which are now und i

) ) erw. 11
solve this problem. We think they will, as they become a ma?ugey:)f
public record and are prosecuted 1n the jurisdictions in the States in
which ph principal businesses are located, raise the attention not only
of the public, but the size and the scope of the problem. And we hope
that the State and local Jurisdictions in which these operations take
place will provide additional resources as Congressman Railsback’s
llnfI of (Vl‘lrlestlonzlg would indicate are needed.

I+ WOLEFF. ATe you working with someone now? We have the I
spector General of HEW coming here. Are vo rki ith HETW
on 1\t{his lgype of situation ¢ N you working with HEW

I. DENSINGER. We have been in a number of bureaus not only with
NIDA and FDA, but we have had contact i Ken, with ¢
Tnspectis GaDA, contact, I believe, Ken, with the

Mr. Durrix. That is correct. On medicare, medical fraud cases we
furnish them with leads from our computer file as well as with data
on violative doctors from our DI, '

Mr. Wovrr. Is there a widespread problem in medicare today ¢

Mr. Durrin. I think the Inspector General could spealk better to
that than I could. In the terms of the overlap between controlled sub-
stance diverting registrants and medicare-medicaid, we have not seen
te date a large overlap there, Apparently, the different types of vio-
lators are sticking pretty much to their own ballgame. -

We have had a couple of significant investigations jointly with the
FBI in Kansas City and in Philadelphia involving both controlled
substance diversion and medicare-medicaid fraud.
lieMr. 1270{41*? Om;1 areal th?it has interested the committee, and I be-

Ve a task force has already been set is, i
the agin et up on this, is the problems of

Mr. Bensivger. Yes.

Mr. Worrr. The problem s the overprescription by practitioners and
unscrupulous nursing home operators who use this as a device for at-
;a;m:ﬁ tléanqulllity in their particular facility. The fact is that they

© ab.e to use less supervisory personnel by keepi
tranquilized and in bed. v P 7 eeping thes people
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I just wondered whether or not there is anything that you are doing
i az . .
mltill?:tgginm. When that type of information comes to our attention,
we turn it over to the appropriate State authorities. It is more of a
medical and association problem than it is a controlled substances

iversion problem. )
dniirfs a V%I‘y real problem, I couldn’t agree with you more, but we do
turn that over to the State medical authorities who really have the re(i
sponsibility to make sure that patients are getting what they need an

t being bombed out every day.

nOM};sangOLFF. We will prgss that on to Mr. Lowe who I am sure can
respond to some parts of that.

further questions? . | i
%fngotl,l we thqank you very much, Mr. Bensinger and Mr. Durrin.

i ‘ ment

Mr. BexsiNger. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, I share your com
about not indicting the entive medical profession. Having the benefit
of a doctor as a wife, I wouldn’t want her to hear my point of view in

thi\shf'.a S‘N}n(())ll.ll;r. I wouldn’t want to have any further trouble with my

neck in this fashion.
g i ’s prepared statement appears on p. 78.]
1[\%1{1 \N?of;;}nl%f: SLI())W(E), I am going te ask if you and ycur colleagues

ind taking the oath. .
Wo[ul\lﬁ'.m Ilzwe? l\llr;g Cogan, and Dr. Nelson were sworn by the cl_1a1r-

man. ]

MONY OF RICHARD B. LOWE III, ACTING INSPECTOR GEN-
TEI?I%‘:II:&L, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE,
ACCOMPANIED BY PHILIP H. COGAN, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF
LAW ENFORCEMENT COORDINATION AND DATA COLLECTION;
AND DR. MICHAEL NELSON, CHIEF MEDICAL OFFICER, DEPART-
MENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE, OFFICE OF IN-

SPECTOR GENERAL.

Mr. Worrr. Would you identify the géa}rlxtl.eman accompanying you ¢
. I 1d be ha to, Mr. Chairman. .
%{5 IIJ(y“Yfft is Dr. Michas] Nelson who s the Chief Medical Officer
flice of Inspector General. ) )
fof&?(f oOn I(ifyorigr}lxtpis Mr. Philip Cogan who is the Director of ou;
Division of Law Enforcement Coordination and Data Collection o
f Inspector General. )
th%{gﬁi&%girn?mll) and members of the committee, I am very Lhappy
to be hers this afternoon, and I am please(z.1 to outline for you the re-
hich T} submitted for the record. ) _
maﬁ]ﬁ} ~{‘;;7()11(:13‘15‘ VlVai‘t’flout objection, your full statement will be included

in the record.Th y Me. Chatrman
Mr. Lowe. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. o o
Wle; are pa,rticular{y concerned with drug diversion in the medicaid

icai buse

ram because the real dollar cost to medieaid caused by drug a )
gggsg far beyond the actual cost of the medication. The true figure must
include the cost of office visits, laboratory tests, X-ray and other serv-
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ices to “legitimize” the prescriptions., This is to say nothing of the
larger human loss and suffering due to the physically and mentally
debilitating effects of drug abuse.

The Drug Enforcement Administration has informed us that 80
to 90 percent of the drug diversion from legitimate channels is at the
practitioner level. Because of their legislative authority restricting
them from implementing major controls at the retail level, DEA con-
centrates its control efforts at the highest level of the normal drug
distribution chain. However, these persons account for less than 2
percent of the total universe of individuals who are legally registered
to handle controlled substances. '

We found that DEA does not presently have the resources to assist
HEW in an initiative to investigate diversion through the medicaid
program. In the event that new directions are undertaken in the
future, I hope that drug diversion from the medicaid program will be
included.

We believe the majority of medicaid recipients and providers are
honest, but controls are necessary for the few abusers. Since medicaid
1s a State-administered progrant, there are 53 different programs, one
for each participating State and jurisdiction. Consequently, controls
vary from State to State.

Controls that have been effective in several States are: ‘

First: Implementation of a formulary to limit the type of drugs
available.

. Second : Limitation on the quantities of prescription drugs pes recip-
lent in any given period of time.

Third : Restriction of known abusers to a single physician or phar-
macy for routine services, This is otherwise known as “lock-in”
producers.

Fourth : For known abusers, establishment of “prior authorization”
requirement before routine services will be reimbursed. :

Since its inception, the Office of Inspector General has launched
several initiatives to identify aberrant practices by way of computer,
and we stand ready and willing to help any State interested in using
computer screens to identify aberrances.

The benefit of our computer techniques is that it surfaces the targets
for which we then proceed with the investigations to determine if
these aberrant practices indeed are either criminal in nature or abusive
1n nature,

Last year “Project Crackdown,” utilizing computer sereens in the
drug abuse area, was assigned to the Health Care Financing A.dminis-
tration under the direct management of their Office of Program Vali-
dation. The objectives of Project Crackdown are twofold

First: We wish to identify and to take action against medicaid drug
Pushers at all levels, including those who operate under the guise of
medical practice, as well as those who actually operate on the streets.

Second : Working with the States involve(f in the project, we are
seeking regulatory and administrative improvements to prevent Fed-

“eral and State financing of drug abuse.

. Indeed, the irony of it all is that the Federal Government is financ-
Ing this licit drug diversion.

To date, the results of Project Crackdown can best be described as
spotty, and frankly, overall, somewhat disappointing. But I will get to

- -
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that at the conclusion of this statement. We have seen only a handful
of convictions, but there are some 60 to 100 cases under active investi-
gation at the present time. :

In addition, the four controls I mentioned a moment ago have been
shown to be successful in the States that implemented them. In De-
troit, for example, visits and prescription acquisition by high risk re-
cipients decreased 80 percent and 93 percent respectively.

Wisconsin experienced a 90-percent decrease in the utilization of
certain drugs after the medical examining board banned the prescrib-
ing of specific drugs except for a few limited purposes.

Other States such as Illinois and California registered successes
after instituting a more restricted formulary. The approach in Loui-
siana and Texas has been a bit different. There, the quantities of drugs
covered under medicaid have been limited.

At this point, let me share with you some ideas that the Office of
Inspector (General is considering :

Firsi: To require termination from participation or a very long sus-
pension from Federal health programs after being convicted of violat-
Ing any provision of the Controlled Substances Act.

The difference here is that the present law enables us to restrict or
indeed to terminate providers if they are convicted of violating any
of the terms of the medicaid or medicare laws. But in the case of in-
vestigating & provider in a drug area, very often it is easier, even
though it is difficult, it is much easier to convict or to prove an abuse
of the narcotics laws than it is of the medicaid laws. This is contrasted
to the requirement to prove violations where medical judgments and
the validity of prescriptions are involved.

But there is no corresponding ability to terminate him or her if
the violation is of the Controlled Substances Act. ‘

Second : To seek amendment to the Social Security Act to make it
illegal for a practitioner to pay a pharmacist to fill his prescription for
‘centrolled substances.

Again, presently, we have a law that makes it illegal for the phar-
macist to pay the physician, but the corresponding payment is not.
And that poses a problem.

Third : To upgrade from misdemeanor to felony the punishment for
use of medicaid cards to aid in the procurement of controlled sub-
stances to be sold on the street by drug pushers.

Fourth: To suspend payments for prescriptions, supplies, and serv-
ices ordered by physicians suspended from medicaid.

In conclusion, we feel'that we can have a significant impact on the
diversion problem. Regulatory and administrative modifications to
the program are preventive and will decrease the burden on law en-
forcement agencies.

It is obvious that law enforcement alone cannot solve the problem.
We, therefore, have to combine varied resources of I'sderal, State,
and local agencies to maintain a mix of regulatory and law enforce-

ment initiatives. Lo
Now, I mentioned Project Crackdown. And I indicated the fact that

it proved disappointing. It proved disappointing, frankly, because

Project Crackdown was essentially a law enforcement effort. We at-
tempted to crack down. And what we did is we got 10 States as partic-
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ipants, and we attempted to reall is diversi
, te: y crack down on th -
lerr‘LV Wﬂ;h the tk;)ragiltlfonal law enforcement approach ' diversion prob
ell, maybe in fact, Project Crackdown wasn’ g disappoint
EL.fter alll, because what it did do was point out the fact thal-t),li):?liantg?i?f
1011}13,58 s:lw.(zn{lorcexgent,approach is not the answer,

] ed, 1t showed us that those States which were usine S ;
:mrr;lplzs-tl%at I mentioned like lock-ins, formularies, mzdi%{'?i?iorfl;};‘-}
;' egéa ! :;‘ld ntlhorrpatmn system improvements, prior authorization. the
sl s,h at is when a recipient is determined to have been an al;user

ugs, he is then furnished a separate and distinct type of medicaid
caid, évli}ﬁh limits the services available. '

n California, it happens to be a red card. That ident;

ns t . 1dentifies tha -
son as an abuser of prescription drugs, And therefore helise}glgézg Ii)sr
paztl_c(:iul_ardprcllor authorization category. *

\Nd, indeed, we have better enforcem : i
naKor& of providers who abuse the syster(;:.lt or stronger efforts at termi-

D4 you mentioned earlier in prior testimon the tripli

1 : e triplicat -
fﬁli‘;pitsmtnh ;n:lt)};ﬁ;c\lyihhive foun(}; téhll;ough ProiYect Cracﬁdgwg flfzt
t a at we m i j i i
tmﬁeinfnt supll)ort o gt endl.ls age 1n conjunction with law en-

ut 1 can tell you, Mr. Chairman, that mv prior diseinl:
L tel]l " : 1or discipl
%fog&s%%l)?ggﬁtlﬁld%ed, ﬂlin the cﬁty and Stat};reli)f New Yf());lr{le ;V?:atsh?rf

: au’s office as chief of the trials division for

And T can'tell you that this aren is very difioalt for 1or, 4 3c0s
meIntdon the traiiol ! . ;;i: }(ll;rea is very difficult for law enforce-
oo, 2ot (e i dverion, i dug

I , _ 1tional narcotic drugs like heroj d
Cocaine, et cetera, these are individual sinele { otions in torm «

‘ , cetera, ] , single transactions i ’
;Jile“lsarlr'f:ﬁrlpttlo? an’gi the filling of that prescription. IndiVir(lili;l(ealll‘mtshg::3
Wilat theirp:egpggsgibi(ili‘tpeanuts lﬁotl;‘ them in terms of their eﬁortzs and

1es are. Yet, overall it is a massiv
do{llﬁeet%’ % cannot even tell this co;nmittee the extent of i?hlé‘r;z{filgziid
o rr?mezrlx A ails'e {ﬁ;l;lrﬁlout on the c%rug é.liversion end and how much this
ally paying. We don’t know yet, W ki
every effort to try to itemize and determi arge the problam 1
! try ] ine how large the problem i
of the (33 lal}ovy 1t is large. We cannot tell at this time Exactlypﬁgw ?;11:1;;

& eI tﬁ 1c}z{ud dollar is indeed spent to support this illegal effort

You M (élllllai iyrg:nfoIr the opportunity to summarize my remarks for
ma[}li{[have. - L am very happy to answer any questions that you
r. Lowe’s prepared statement a : |

%‘I.r. EVQLFF.I Thank you, Mr. Lowe?peal wonp.5a.]

Arst, just let me say that we are ver h

s _ A v ha to see the a -
g;ﬁg%ﬁﬁ (imv% élﬁaggt‘astttl:hit you hz}lve put inté) F}z;s areime. Kr?oivnilx?;l;rzgf

2k , hat you w i

l\l\gr. IVJ‘?WE. T}mnk MAS sir'?’ will continue to do that.

T. WOLFF. I am interested in attempting to elici 1

; ted , elicit from for-
11:113&031 :;sl t;(;l etélii ;)ix:ieli'glglscrlpt.mn by medical practitioners ilg’ ;)I;Ieé?cfa?:e
similar foolo: e maintenance of people in nursing homes and

Is ther ine ; s s )
at all ? ¢ ahy ongoing nvestigation ? Are you looking at this situation
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1 tantly re-
Mr. Lowe. Mr. Chairman, I do know that we are cons
ceivirng tll)xis kind of informat’ion. And if I could just take,one iliril?mefnt
to show you how, as you know, the Inspector General’s O'db% 05
example, has the oversight responsibility of the State medicaid ;'au ;
control :mit, what we commonly refer to as the section 17 units o
i 95142, . .
Pu}) (};:gfla‘]g[ines, as you know, the special prosecutor for New Yorl;, lsl
the deputy attorney general in charge of the medicaid fraud co;lsrof
unit in New York. We receive a communications network from : fo
these medicaid fraud control units who have the responS1b1lhty d'OI:
investigating nursing homes, hospitals, along with the overall medic
i 1 ram. . o
alé[‘%lt;oi‘gg:;r?;&%n that we have received so far is that there is t}ndegg,
an apparent pattern of overdrugging, or overprescribing, for the
elderly. o Gion 17 units
hich we are coordinating are between section i
anrgh:uisﬁ(éztsdgerl;lline how we can mal%:e inroads into this area. }’li’ou
could probably appreciate the difficulty in determining Whe(rix_ you h l::ve
a populace of elderly people who are In the more infirm condition than
“healthier” individuals. o .
yozlk%exé,o tﬁerefore, a pattern of prescription usage 13 normal. tod
Mr. Worrr, One of the points that I reéﬂly a;n vel.?{tmlilc};)g;;r:i t?l |
0 ihie particular area is that the pattern ol senihity 1S )
;I’l!l;rna?;zgm;ted and fostered through this overmedication thus Ilraa]ge
ing people much more the public charge than they ordinarily wou
i instituti izing them. ‘ )
Wllf\l}lil? ui:)%m%t;%%il,zﬁg Chairman, what { would really like to sagr
is this: it is, indeed, a problem. Tt is something that we are lookllng at.
And I, unf(,)rtunately, am not in a position to tell you that we have a
: ¢ problem. ]
ha%%?l?%iﬁa;rgiothis, that it will be an effort that 1 will lea\ég he;(z
today and beef up. And I will be happy to report to you at any time
your request as to the results of our efforts.
Mr. Worrr. We would agpéecﬁte &hat. olin
ime has expired. So Mr. Coughlin. ‘ .
ﬁ?dé?)%gg?;maan tlile Federal medlcaiid pa);ments, what proportion
' seription drugs, do you know: _
Ofltl'flgtﬁgsvsnt? 181(;2, sixg I have that figure. The part that gees for pre
scription drugs is $1.127 billion.
Mr. COUGHLI%\T. ?{ altotal of Zt +£819.401 billion
al paymen . . o
1\13[1;' ngvt?(.}}(;)m; OOf Iihz $1.127 billion that goes fgr prgs;mphon
drugs; what proportion of that do you estimate 1s dwgrte 15 And
Mr. Lowe. We do not know. That 1s Whai; Itr%;nt%ggeth;%roﬁa;{ously
kine every effort to try to learn that. e X
msaf:zrrrrxl;ié&ge shm?ld know that. We should know 1t. But we do not
know it at this point. 4. and albeit limited
~v. What thoughts have you had, and ited,
w}?gg .tlgﬁltgﬁ;‘g) you have of %teps that can be taken to prevent diver
i iption drugs? . .
Smll\lh? fIIJ);svS;.r 1\%«:?11,1 ﬁrstgif all, T have to emphasize t}}? %ac(:lt t}’ltm;r:g al:
primz;rily g State problem. When I say “primarily on
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that we in the Federal Government do not bear any responsibility.
But what I means is that it is 53 jurisdictions which administer a
medicaid program. And the administering of that program varies with -
each State.

One of the primary ways that we could make inroads into this area
is to develop better medicaid management. And the development of
more efficient management of the medicaid program involved develop-
ment of medicaid management information systems.

It is the collecting and analysis of information that is the key, be-
cause the collecting of the information shows the aberrant billing prac-
tices, shows the aberrant prescription uses, shows the aberrant uses
by the individuals.

Mr. CovenLIN. How would you collect that information ?

Mzr. Lows. You collect the information through implementation of
what we call the MMIS system, the medicaid management informa-
tion system. It is the use of computers which collects bulling data which
is constantly monitored and looked at.

That is the second problem. There are many States who do not have
the system in place. There are those States that have it in place, but
don’t have either the resources or the personnel to monitor it.

If you have the system and you don’t use it, you are not going to
get the benefit out of it. And this is where we feel our greatest input
to the States is—either through monetary support or technical sup-
port to implement these management information systems. When you
have that, then you can put into place the controls which I previously
mentioned—formularies, lock-ins, prior authorizations. So, that you
can monitor the people who are abusing the system.

Mr. Covenrin. Just so I am clear as to what we are talking about,
what you are saying is that a medicaid prescription, once it is filled,
in order to obtain reimbursement, would go back to the State to be
entered into a computer. If there were an undue number of prescrip-
tions for a particular patient, you would be able to have a computer
drop that out and call attention to that aberration. Is that correct?

Mr. Lowe. That’s correct. For example, the triplicate prescription
form is almost unnecessary in medicaid because the medicaid informa-
tion system has all that information. And it is all there.

Mr. CoueHriN. It has to be there in order to have payment for
medicaid preseription drugs.

Mzr. Lowe. That’s correct. And it is the monitoring of that informa-
tion that gives rise to the supervision.

Mr. CovcHrIN. I wouldn’t think that monitoring would be very
hard if it is all in the computer already. :

Mr. Lowe. Well, it still takes personnel. And if the States are not
committed or if they don’t have the resources—I don’t mean to point
fingers at the States. I just mean that they need assistance. And that is
where we feel our greatest role can be.

Mr. CouenriN. But the computer can drop out or flag any aberra-
tion of the prescription form, can’t it? They don’t need to monitor it.
The computer does the work.

Mr. Lows. Yes, sir, the computer does the work. But you are talk-

ing about mounds and mounds of paper. And you have got to have
the commitment to look at that paper.
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Mr. Worrr. If the gentleman would yield, it reminds me of the fact
we have vehicles out 1n space which send back messages in a few min-
utes. However, it takes us about 4 to 5 years to analyze that informa-
tion transmitted in a matter of minutes. That seems to be a part of the

problem. .

Mr. Lows. It is the followup, sir. Once you get the information,
then you have got to have the resources that go out and validate it.
I# you have a kickout of aberrant billings, then you have to have peo-
ple to compare the billings with the services that were provided in the
case of physicians. You have to validate to determine if what is on

the computer screens is justified or not. .
1 1 kicked out of the computer

Ycu cannot just use the information as ' _
as evidence that the physician or the pharmacist has billed them 1m-

properly. It requires followup investigation. All the computer does is
surface your targets. Then, you must use the targets that have been
surfaced for you to go forward and do the investigative legwork. That

is the problem.
Mr. Cousrrin. And who would that investigative legwork be done

by ?
Mr. Lowe. The States.
Mr. CoueHLIN. State personnel ?

Mr. Lowe. Yes.
Mr. Couearin. Can any investigation be done by Federal person-

nel in that?

What I am getting at is if you have got the computer to kick out the
three most egregious cases in any particular State and you went after
those. I expect you could significantly affect diversion just by example.

Mr. Lowg. There is no question that publicity, that kind of deter-
rence, is very useful. For example, that occurred in Philadelphia

where we started Project Crackdown. Crackdown emanated by the
enterprising resourcefulness of a reporter in Philadelphia. And then
with the attenuating publicity that occurred, they found that half of
the investigations were worthless because the street markets dried up
because the physicians were aware of the efforts that were being made.

But I agree with that.
Actually, the computers with the medicaid data are in the hands of

the States, not the Federal Government.

Mr. CougnLiN. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Worrr. Thank you.

Mr. Livingston ?

Mr. LivinestoN. No, Mr. Chairman. I had a couple of questions,
but they were fairly well answered by this gentleman.

Mr. Worrr. Thank you very much.

One final question. Could you furnish for the record what percentage

of the prescriptions under medicaid are filed by mail or filled by mail ?
Mr. Lowe. I don’t know, Mr, Chairman, I would be happy to fur-

nish that information.

[The information referred to follows:]

We have contacted a variety of people including the Health Care Financing
A_dmmigtratmn’s ‘Pharmaceutical Reimbursement Board, State medicaid agen-
cies, private pharmaceutical organizations and others. The consensus is that there
are very few prescriptions filled by mail under medicaid. The feeling is that since
the recipients do not have to pay for services, there is no incentive to send away
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f()l- Pl'eSCI‘iptiOns; .t .
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. Worrr, Yes, T say, i ' -
? %;;WE. Absolute,lys,’ » 1f you could furnish jt for the record
M. Worre, ) . '
Rico, for examg;: 1};‘:111"% found 1n the case of the VA hospital i
éhe Prescriptions l’)y 1?1 ait]h(f)l(;e 1s a ste]:rious problem theré) 1’13 q,li}eflﬁrtﬁ
months without reexaming o 226, they are continued fop g ooy ©
. minati TN - tor a period
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The administration which I direct is responsible for, among other
things, review and control of the utilization of medical services reim-
bursed by Maryland medicaid. Within our program, we include pre-
seription drugs which, in the last fiscal year, numbered approximately
2.5 million prescriptions for which we paid approximately $16 million.

The drug utilization review effort is an integrated process involving

three distinct elements: .
The drug prescriber or physician;
The drug dispenser or pharmacist; and

The drug recipient or patient.
The results of our reviews leave absolutely no doubt that all three

elements quite often contribute to and even more so encourage diver-
sion of legitimate drugs into the illicit market.

First of all, physicians are manipulated by patients, by threats, per-
suasion, misrepresentation, and sometimes, unfortunately, higher office
fees, into prescribing precisely the drugs desired by the patients in
quantities far exceeding medically acceptable consumption rates. And
in succumbing to this manipulation or often as & result of poor record-
keeping, physicians often exceed maximum duration Ji drug use as
recommended by the manufacturers or other authorities. . .

I have examples from our information system that are quite vivid.
I have before me an example of a physician in the Maryland medicaid
program whose prescribing in the medicaid program resulted in 69.3
percent of his prescriptions being central nervous system drugs and
cough preparations, antihistamines, that tend to enhance the effect of

these drugs.
I have many examples of this.
Mr. Worrr. What has happened with that particular example?

Mr. N1porr. I will get to that in a few moments if you will bear with
me, sir.

S’econd, the pharmacists. The pharmacists often in our program
dispense drugs 1n-quantities or combinations which are patently inap-
propriate without verifying the legitimacy of the prescription or the
intent of the prescriber. I must say, however, that many of them are
frustrated by inaction on the part of local law enforcement agencies
and courts. And they are not motivated to report forged prescriptions.

The individuals or the recipients or the patients who have medical
assistance cards for eligibility who, by Federal regulation, must be
guaranteed freedom of choice shop a variety of physicians to secure
prescriptions to their own order.

Also, with a medicaid card and a stack of prescription blanks that
they can get fairly easily, there is virtually no limit to the number of
forged prescriptions that they can pass.

The motivation to divert prescription drugs into illicit channels is
enormous. I won’t go into detail. The markup is outrageous. I would
like to point ocut one thing, though, that the markup is even more
favorable in the medicaid program because the medicaid recipient

pavs zere. In Maryland, he pays a 50 cent coinsurance on every pre-
scription, but this makes it virtually free.

The office visit to the physician’s office to get the prescription costs
him zero. So there is even more incentive. I would like to point out
one thing, though. Our major problem in Maryland is not the narcotics.
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I am talking about in the medicaid
] wbout ) program now. We h
%atn}rle drug utilization review effort in I%.Iaryland for ea, gg:dh;(}ili?:
tiO?l izILIV((a) 1?;3,%{ Z?alt 1sdcommonly ;eferred to as the triplicate prescrip:
L Maryand program for a good while so we actuall
the prescript i ici was fill] by
thez)lgha,rma% J:.on that was written by the physician that was filled by
ur major problem, as I said, is not the narcotics, bui i
lf)iood &)'f the minor trapguilizer’s, the minor drug a}bulslg t&};'?lg;rtgl?é
E }els;lzlg a;ﬁip%}??é t_ra,li.\(}ulhferfi Xﬁ),lilum, as being virtually pumped’ into
- 1L 15 In Maryland the largest number of preseript;
-th; ((iirug; that is prescribed the most often of any in ouli'r;i(g.glfg;igns .
streetoil& t have to tell you the amount that these things bring on the
gram'ar é)gﬁgiwgﬁt%ly 30 Il)ercféltd()fhthe drugs prescribed in our pro-
: at are classified therapeutically as central
}slystem drugs. They ease pain; they elevate mood}; ; they seﬁatlxlﬁri‘:’l?: ;
ygnotlz: t,e they stimulate. ’ o
ur attempts to control the inappropriate prescribi
. . ! ln
%‘lr'gﬁs vl;zsdrggftvgét;l};rati 'l_)gst mlxedl lrezulfis How d(I)) we contr%l g,fl g:fss g
) ol 1t very well. And the most ti is
that we are fully aware of a Iot of th T we oan’t quantit
tha \ e abuse, although we can’t quanti
1t Into the actual dollar because it is virt) ly i possible toomr
computer listings and determine what is alll)a L and whan 2o oSk at
¢ . use and what is not.
. 131.113 weh}_lave the wherewithal in Maryland to conduct psr:s(t)zribing
0Vu 12s8w ich we have done recently, and we have found that out of
16er 800 physicians in Maryland who prescribe under our program
ﬁnge?}gf)f’thenﬁ yvroted'T 5 fpercent of all prescriptions. ’
OW, this 1s not 1n and of itself abuse, but it do i ivi
tIi Igén;lrcl, to}:rer;presi:rlkémg o(if all kinds of drugs. 1;71%33111233 21‘1’1;;%1122
¢ stiimulants, and we found that 45 physicians. 1
g;rgﬁgtsgii; ltl}ll]e pthys101ag§% IIlorefscribing in our pll'g())g};'am, wsifot??fsf EIL:;I%
ants, one- of the psychotherapeutic d
tenth of the sodatives and h i ‘ fvon in the Cics mteis
inllilarylai;ld catives a ypnotics that were given in the office setting
number of physicians clearly prescribing excessi
; X cessive am
igiaullr‘cltélgisc%u;&(;é‘gedl%hfor weight control wel{g(; referred to oﬁﬁitzf
\ edical society. There wa, ecis 1 i
m%:hablts oF thoas thoare ™ S an appreciable change in the prescrib-
. Flowever, we arrived at the ultimate solution to thi b
simply cut out payi e Gl e
5 ;uﬁ’ering one%o%;.ng for these drugs under our program, and nobody
say cut out, I mean virtually cut out. We do
: . . allow th
é)}i} dlspen-sed. only where the physician in his own hangisr(iigrllgs (i):g
the prescription puts down one of a few diagnoses for which we allow
! © prescription of these drugs. And the net resuit has been that we
aI\_rfaO\;;rtually di'led_lép t;hel abuse in these drugs.
ever, as 1 sald earlier, the minor tranquilizers ar j
E}fgsl;l?i?ﬁ ;&Sn% c}:a:ll}zrlllkllt llos 2he 1vitew that the mgdical pI'Of:SS(;gII; lﬂ?g
gs.Iec eip but relate to you a conversation that h
at a meeting with members of the medical fon 10t 100 Ty La
! ' : Ical profession not too 1
E)‘Z‘ml?:crlnlz%rsrgi our tI}Jlrogram addressing this very poinfs0 (:v}?;% av%g
program.. Ove these tranquilizers as covered services in. our
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One physician, when he heard we were talking about removing Val-
ium as a covered service in the medical assistance programs, almost
fell off the chair and readily admitted, “My God, without Valium, I
couldn’t practice medicine.”

How do we cope with the recipient abuse, the patient? This is prob-
ably the most frustrating of all. Recipients with a history of acquiring
abuse-prone drugs from many different physicians are first “coun-
seled,” warned, and then finally asked to select a primary physician
and primary pharmacy to service them.

Now, such a provision is difficult to administer at best when you have
many abusers of the programs. And often, the individual either con-
tinues what he is doing by acquiring someone else’s medicaid card or
just ignores this completely. And I have some vivid examples of re-
cipient abuse. I have before me some cases where one recipient—and
this is in a 1-year period—saw 30 different physicians, paid visits to
15 different hospital outpatient departments—and these are different
than the 30 physicians—and had his 235 prescriptions filled at 28
different pharmacies. He was shopping around, bouncing around,
thinking nobody would ever know.

I could go on and on. We have one who saw 42 different doctors and
had his prescriptions filled at 44 different pharmacies.

As Mr. Lowe indicated, you have to have the information first, but
once you have the information, where do you go? What do you do?
How do you stop it? We have been successful to some degree in some
areas, but I think we are, under our current procedures, trying to
empty the ocean with a thimble,

We have had a situation where we called in a physician who was
blatantly overprescribing abuse-prone drugs, and counseled him. About
1 month later, we received a call from a medicaid recipient who was
rather disturbed.

“What is the matter?”

“Well, T was to Dr. So and So to get my regular Valium prescrip-
tion, and the doctor told me he would give it to me, but he couldn’t
write it on medicaid prescription. I would have to pay for it,” which
was fine as far as we were concerned, which indicated we had some
impact.

However, what we accomplished was chasing this abuse from the
publicly funded market to the privately funded market. So it really
didn’t solve the problem.

I think it is apparent from what was said today that steps have to
be taken to stem the flow of these drugs into the illicit channels. Mary-
land, and I am sure all the other States, will continue to do all that is
in their power to reduce the flow, but our power is severely limited.

On the national level, I would recommend strongly educational pro-
grams to enhance physicians’ awareness of the limited benefit over
time of many of these abuse-prone drugs; to the accumulative effect

of certain drugs even when they are taken as prescribed; and the
dangerous interaction of certain drugs, especially with alcohol.

Further, I endorse the programs of Federal assistance to States to
attack the problem of prescription forgery—and I am sorry to say my
own State has not taken advantage of it. _

Finally, I recommend most strongly something that would be of
benefit to every medicaid program in the country, and that is, that we
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be allowed by Federal regulation to incor : isions i
1 porate provisions in our
Sf:ltl’i programs to suspend benefits to those individuals who abuse
Right now, our hands are tied. All of the gimmicks that

heard of locking into one provider, special cgrds, they Worky 2(1)1 s},:*ag:
degree, but they do not solve the problem. The only way that we can
deny benefits to an individual is where he has been convicted of g
fraud against the medicaid program. And, quite frankly, very little
attI?ntloél or pr_1<21_'1ty is placed on this by prosecutors. P

.~ raud convictions against our program by recipient Vi
Impossible to get. Convictions of probviders %asedpon offe?;r:slgﬁ;l;g
1s virtually unknown. And we have no vehicle right now with which
to stop the known abuser from continuing to abuse the program.

I {1 do thank you for the opportunity to bring to light our problems.
- think you could probably guess by my presentation I also brought to
light indications of our frustrations. I hope that somehow, we can
‘be-given the resources with which to attack the problems that we know
exist, we identify, and in many cases, are helpless to solve,

[Mr. Niport’s prepared statement appears on p. 86.]

Mr. Worrr. Mr. Niport, I thank you for a very comprehensive state-
ment. I must say that we share frustrations because we hear this
constantly from various people. And it is an extremely frustrating
situation for those of us who are legislators. Members of this commit-
it;;lel: a;;etvery dedlcsa.tled tm(t}ambers serving above and beyond because of

‘act we are a Select Commi ' it1 i
resgonsibilities. mmittee. So we have additional committee

ut we must not throw up our hands with this situation W t
continue to provide whatever ssi i ‘interim until w
pontinu ultirl;l ovide Whate we possibly can in the interim until we

Iam going to pass on now to our next witne Ri
ss, Mr.
Mr. P arker, would you proceed, please? ’ r ichard Parker.

TESTIMONY OF RICHARD D. PARKER, SR., INDEPENDENT
PHARMACIST, KENSINGTON, MD.

Mr. Parker. Mr. Chairman, T would lik i
. Mr. t
my propared tsstimony. , 1ke to enter into the record
Mr ¥YOLW. Without objection, your full testimony will be included.
: I.h ARKER. I will try to excerpt from my testimony certain facts.
(Iil the area of drug abuse, I have seen a variety of problems which
ilee. to have corrective action taken to control either by regulation or
tgglslatlon. Among the most serious forms of abuse are the prescrip-
;%Iilghp}fesenﬁed to pharmacists which have been forged or altered or
oprrac &X:. een 1ssued by licensed practitioners not in the usual course
t is the latter of these abuses which i
e lat th ) ich poses the more serious problem
to pharmacy. Physicians in the District of Columbia may pII)'escr?be
lc&ntrolled substances and the prescriptions may be filled in the nearby
af‘grland or Virginia pharmacies in the proper course of business.
0 e problem arises when a practitioner orders a medication other
an in the proper practice of his profession. In this case, it is diffi-

I : . - : A
ggti*vitt% | obtain evidence substantial enough to stop him from this
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Recently, my pharmacy became a member of a voluntary coopera-
tive chain of independent pharmacies in the Washington-Maryland-
Virginia area operating under the name of Care Drug Centers of
Washington. While associating with my colleagues, I have found the
abuse of the right to prescribe a prevalent concern and have discov-
ered an unwillingness on the part of some to take action.

This reluctance on the part of pharmacists is usually based on the
perceived requirement to appear in court as a witness with resultant
loss in pay. This perception is compounded by the feeling of wasting
time since most convictions result in release with reprimand or short-
term confinement in revolving door fashion. .

Other pharmacists feel they are not.in o position to refuse preserip-
tions which should be suspect since they are written by licensed practi-
tioners and difficulty could arise if they failed to supply the substance.
For whatever reason, the availability of drugs in this manner 1s a
major source of illicit drugs on the streets and in the schools.

Forged and altered prescriptions are more easily controlled because
pharmacists are more willing to take time in the apprehension of
criminals or those under the control of drug habit. Most of these pre-
scriptions have some flaw or other feature which calls them to the
attention of the alert pharmacist. He then contacts the alleged pre-
seriber and upon determining the illegitimacy of the prescription calls
a local law ~nforcement team.

In this latter instance, some pharmacists are reluctant to “get
involved” because of the fear of retaliation in the form of personal
harm or possible property damage. Many stories are told across the
Nation of pharmacists being murdered or beaten by persons attempt-
ing to obtain drugs.

ile the major source of licit drugs being diverted to the street
market is the improper prescribing of some practitioners, there is
another source which needs attention. Persons with a drug habit and
those seeking to sell controlled drugs often find it more lucrative to
burglarize pharmacies known to stock these wanted substances.

In recent months, armed robberies have occurred with the criminals
bringing a shopping list for the most desired drugs.

There is another side of the problem to which we must address our-
selves. And that is the commission of crime by those seeking to obtain
drugs. Many muggings, burglaries, shopliftings, and purse-snatchings
are performed by desperate addicts in efforts to obtain funds to sup-
port the habit. These persons are sometimes less rational, and so more
violent than similar persons performing the same type of crime.

To prevent the commission of crimes for the purpose of drug abuse,
I propose the following:

First: A continued attempt to stop the spread of drug abuse by edu-
cation of the general public and followup monitoring of rehabilitated
gddicts. This 1s the obvious best method to decrease the demand for

rugs.

S%?:ond: Strengthen the forces presently in use to stop the distribu-
tion and sale of controlled substances. The vice-narcotics unit in Mont-
gomery County and the similar forces in other jurisdictions do a
tremendous job in enforcement when they have the opportunity.
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Third : Strengthen the regulatory processes whereb ractiti
may have their right to prescribe };ugpended or revol};eg and 1;)8191)2;2
criminal penalties in a more rapid application of due process.

Fourth: Adopt legislation making it a Federal crime to rob a phar-
macy 1n search of controlled drugs. Local enforcement agents are
unable to prevent the interstate traffic in drugs.

Tifth, impose longer sentences on second offenders who sell or dis-
tribute drugs. I have been told the need exists for more correctional
facilities to eliminate the release of criminals to make room for others,
Judges now have to determine which is the worst criminal when de-
ciding the punishment to be handed down.

Sixth, design other methods of control which would make it more
difficult to use prescriptions to obtain drugs for illegal use. Forms in
triplicate similar to these in use to obtain drugs from suppliers—
form 222 DEA—could be used to order the most abused drugs in the
no;'mal coux&t‘,g of fu('iactice.

n summation, 1 do not wish to indict the practitioner
the health needs of the Nation. The very sn?all minorit; Vi\lr}ll‘?oi)‘:’:&‘s:{%;
this unethical practice 1s such that internal controls would be effective
if the regulatory remedies were available to them. The medical-chirur-
gical faculty of Maryland does a commendable job in this area.

I thank you for the opportunity to appear before this committee
and am willing to answer any questions pertaining to this matter,

Mr. Worrr. Mr. Parker, thank you very much. I am impressed with
one point. Just prior to the time you mentioned some of your recora-
mendations, I spoke to chief counsel and said to him, “Why is it that
twe dtol?,t llllmlfcel a law Whli)Ch sitys that it is a Federal crime for anyone
o either holdup or to burglari ich !
suzstances thergin?” glarize a pharmacy which has controlled

nd you came along with the same suggestion richt a
don’t k‘npw whether that was ESP upon ?ngy part oxg Whaftﬁgxfg ?Dc.)uI
but I think it is an umportant factor. I think it would certainly be
:ﬁlil;ethmg to give consideration to. I have asked counsel to investigate
_ Mr. Parxer. I think legislation has been introduced on this subject
In the past and probably is still sitting somewhere around the House
or Senate.

Mr. Worrr. It is our job to motivate people in that direction,

[Mr. Parker’s prepared statement appearson p. 87.]

Mr. Worrr. Dr. Adams? )

TESTIMONY OF DR. JOHN E. ADAMS, CHAIRMAN, STATE OF
MARYLAND COMMISSION ON MEDICAL DISCIPLINE

Dr. Apams. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. With ' issi
will not read my_sta,temen.%. I would ask it be entex%;?:lu;n};)s I;:I}Illésilagg;'dl.
" gzgcgi? Without Qb]ectlon, the entire statement will be included

Dr. Apams. Thank you, sir.

The statement gives some indication of the structure and function of
the commission on medical discipline in. Maryland which is the State
agency empowered to remove physicians’ licenses, practice licenses.

57-472 0 - 80 - §
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i i indicati . in interfacing
a think. gives some indication of our success it \
wi]t:fl :)ltsl(l)érIState ?agencies and very importantly interfacing with the
lnegi?%o;)sli\s)fg;s}:%g. system in Miu*y],and iilthte pro}fl:s;,;ogo%tsglifﬁ.. eﬁrrlldt
without counting them, I would guess that peri: 00 e
icians in Maryland through 80 or more peer review gty ps he
E};;sgggn(s}fl I}chis szstem in terms of cz}llse finding and preliminary 1n
ioation and recommendation to the commission. _
Veiggi?:lllogf thai, what I would like to do is tell you very bm%f}y a ﬁiv(\i
current cases that I think illustrate the breadth of the pro hem_d_ nd
some of the reasons for the probgem. §5am remlr%ded Ofw(i?: 11; gs; eﬁx n
aw recently, a youngster about 39 years o1 age, )
Xrt(lat ?f“;esidencg ,pro)t,;rrams, an ort;llo};)edlct seurgio?. Arllldst;:fl ;ﬁr;xpiaslr;:
aoainst him was that he had made an attempt to sé s, As
ngligg.tout, this attempt to sell samples was Il)é'otbill‘myk?rﬁ ;ierslgmﬁll?;lstg
is office help who were, as far as we could te.l, S Ing. :
gefsﬁﬁ gf tﬁat clg)mplaint, his practice was looked at, and it was ffound:
that he was heavily involved in sports medicine. And he was n;h(ir}:ns
ally and without any record dispensing muscle relaxants to athlete
king with. ) )
he“V;vea %Jgoihis %hysician in and talked to him at considerable lepégt}:
in a session. And he said that he had never been told that, he didn
alize that what he was doing was 1mproper. o
re‘%ilzieé phzgfsician was informaﬁy reprimanded by the commission, and
il watched in the future. .
her[yﬁals?;)nd case that comes to mind is a physiclan who, because; }(:f or_
with at least serious alcohol and narcotic addiction, in a 9-mon b é)(;ao
riod was singularly responsible for the dlstrlbutlen of sor%e ,
prescriptions for Dilaudid which ove;- £l2le 9 lxlr}onths period then rep-
.esented a street value of in excess o million. ) .
Ie§I.‘his physician, the license of this physician, was lifted just yester
day. 3 oo
 Worrr. May I ask how long do these proceedings waxe:
%f . ZVDAMS, It isyquite variable. The investigations can be quite bglef
in terms of a few weeks, They can sflretch &n for a number of months.
Tt depends upon the complexity of the problem. ) )
Mes WOLFI;*. We heard, just a few moments ago, of a .sméaﬁmn
wherein a conviction of an individual practitioner was obtaine 3 ell'{e
in the District in 1975. The man is still practicing 1n 1979 in New York.
We wrote to the State and found out that proceedings were taking

place, but got no further information. Does that same situation apply
in Maryland ¢ '
asg:} llilll)AMS.yIt may. The commission has its own problems, largily
budgetary. And we are presently attacking the State Wlt}ll) g_realier
vigor, attempting to solve those budgetary problems. But hz}sifa o}:;
the mechanism to prevent what I call doctor chasing, which yt
brought up, is this: Whenever a State takes formal action ag;!alél:a tz
man’s license, that action is forwarded to the Federation o tate
Licensing Boards which is a national agency which, in turn, limssem.t E
all of those reports into a single piece of paper and redistri tg:.es.zl (i
all of the State licensing and disciplinary boards. Then, the in 1\71t }:a@
State boards are supposed to review those reports and pick out thelr
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own practitioners from that list and review the actions taken against
them and then take their own action.

And a case of that sort, I do not think would escape very long in
Maryland. It might take a few months for us to get to him because of
problems with backlog and lack of investigatory help, but the likeli-
hood is that that physician would not open up in Maryland.

Mr. Worrr. Those cases that you cited Mr. Niport, what happened
with those ¢ You told me you were going to tell me at the end.

Mz, Niporr. These cases were referred to the drug committee of the
medical society.

Mr. Worrr. What has happened ?

Mzr. Nirort. Nothing happened there. They had the same problems
Dr. Admas mentioned. We have since referred many of them directly
to the commission. And the commission is now investigating some
of these. ,

But they are still writing tremendous quantities of these drugs.

Mr. Worrr. To my mind, this is an extremely serious situation that
requires action. Not only by this committee as an oversight commit-
tee, but it requires action by the local authorities as well. It is hard to
understand the great hue and cry that some of our politicos raise con-
cerning drugs. Then, when it comes down to doing something about it,
there is very little in the way of money to fund the operations that are
necessary. That applies to our law enforcement agencies, and with our
treatment programs. Everybody is willing to talk about the war on
drugs, but we furnish people with a bunch of cap pistols and water
pistols to do the job.

Mzr. Nirorr. We are probably inundated. Dr. Adams’ commission,
whether he wishes to say so or not, it is my understanding they are not
paid, that they are voluntary.

Is that right, Dr. Adams?

Dr. Apams. Yes.

Mr. Nreorr. And the resources are so limited that they can only
attack so many of the problems in a given time.

Mr. Worrr. Do you have any opportunity to get any funding
through LEAA for this type of operation ¢

Mr. Nreort. We don'’t. ‘

Dr. Apams. We have not investigated that. I could not really answer
whether there is an opportunity or not. We are presently asking the
legislature for proper funds. I think in fact that until the last couple
of years, the level of activity was less than desirable. It is my belief,
and I think the record would show, that the level of activity presently
is much increased and will continue to increase if it were properly
funded.

Mr. Worrr. The committee is concerned that the problem of legal or
licit drug abuse in this country may be larger than the problem of
illegal narcotics traffic perhaps not in dolars and cents, but certainly
in the number of abusers that are involved. We keep concentrating our
efforts; perhaps we were stimulants for that in heroin users. Then we
beat that problem or reduce it a little bit, move onto something else.
Now the big cry is PCP.

It is obvious that there are more people teday who are abusing these
drugs and these substances of abuse on a licit basis than there are on
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an illegal basie. And it is contradictory. It is illegal as well as legal.

It scems to me that this is an area that goes almost totally un-
noticed because it is not very dramatic. You don’t make a big drug bust
and have the old cops and robbers chase that you normally associate
with the drug bust.

Yet, it makes the problems of the Jaw enforcement officers that much
more difficult. It undercuts and undermines their very basic ability to
do their job. .

Dr. Apams. I was interested in the frustration experienced by the
DEA people over their inability to act except when a man’s hicense
was lifted. And I submit that in the system that we have, that is not
a problem, given a system with enough rescurces. The reason being
that when we investigate apparent’ overprescribing, the medical re-
ports of the patients involved are examined. And there must be In
those records strong medical justification for the prescribing.

If there is not, then we are empowered to take action against that
man’s license so we do not need to wait for a major event. And that
is in our law. It is part of our legislation.

Mr. Worrr. I must commend you, Dr. Adams, and I understand
your service is voluntary. And you are certainly heeding the admo-
nition of physician heal thyself.

Dr. Apams. Could I complete my statement

Mr. Worrr. Oh, I’m sorry. I didn’t mean to interrupt you. _

Dr. Apaus. The third position I wanted to tell you about—and this
is the most important one, I think—is the physician who is in his late
fifties, early sixties, practicing in a suburban area that 1s failing. And
because the area is failing, his practice is failing. And in order to
buck up his practice, if you will, he developed the tendency to please
people. So that he fairly rapidly gets into the habit of giving people
whatever they want. .

This is a very common situation in abused-drug prescribing. In the
particular situation that I am reminded of, a pusher was apprehended
by the police in one of our counties. And that pusher was substituted
by a female undercover agent who then called on the doctor and estab-
lished a rapport with the doctor, and then wired for sound, made
several buys from the doctor, with him stating on tape that he knew
that this agent was going to turn around and resell these drugs on the
street.

The later part of this story is unusual in that the vast majority of
physicians who do write improperly are unaware that the drugs may
bo sold on the street. So that this physician undoubtedly will suffer
substantial sanctions on his license.

And this case is about, to come before us.

The final case T wanted to tell you about, which I think also illus-
trates the point I wanted to make is that of a professor of pediatric
surgery, full-time academic surgeon, in one of our medical schools who
was approached by the mother of one of his patients who was a nurse,
and told the doctor that she was running a home for cancer patients,
terminal cancer patients, and she was having difficulty in getting a
physician to see these patients, and she needed drugs to keep these
patients comfortable. Would he prescribe for them.
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And he said, “Fine. I know you; you ient’ ;

mﬂ}(}g ho said, you; you are my patient’s mother; I

bout 6 months later, another nurse, a friend of the first lady, cam
along, and she also had a home for terminal cancer patients. Xnd h:
also prescribed for her, accepting no money from either one of them
at any time. And after this went on for about 2 years, there was a
Iknock on his door one day, and it was the police. |

In order to defend himself, and even though it is not admissible, he
took a polygraph, and the polygraph showed that what he was claim-
ing was true, at least insofar as the polygraph was concerned, that he
was not aware, as he stated, that there was a problem with diversion.
He was a full-time academic physician who got no money from what
he had done. And he did not know, no one had ever told him, he had
neXsIll- read it in the newspaper, there was any problem with diversion.
licensg tragically, that physician will also suffer sanctions on his

The point that I am trying to make is that I think that—and i
been said many times here today so I won’t dwell on it—educz;ii;ignh?L:
many different levels is necessary. Medical students, for example, are
?laug t what drugs do to nerve ends, but they are never taught what

appens or what could happen to a prescription when it leaves the
desk of the physician.

_ Older physicians forget that there are alternatives to drug prescrip-

tion. And when someone comes in who is anxious because of family
problems, this anxiousness makes the physician in turn anxious, and
particularly if he has got a waiting room full of patients. ,
. The easiest way to get rid of this patient or make this patient happy
Is to write him a prescription for Valium or for whatever, one of the
many psychotropics. So that the older physician needs not only to be
reminded that there is a major diversion problem, but he also needs to
be reminded that there are alternatives to prescribing drugs.

And I would also like to second the motion relative to computer
control systems. I believe that the MMIS system in Maryland which
Mr. Niport told you about has been helpful to us because it detects
cases. And once we know where the problems are, we can look at them
and take action, and we hav= taken action.

The problem is that that is only the tip of the iceberg because that
only covers medicaid recipients. And that is a very small, very minor-
ity “I;ﬁrcelr_'ltigei ’

at I think needs to be done is a major computer program i 1
all controlled substances, including thg prescrri)ber, igle ?‘ecipilgl::v};lrclg
the prescription itself need to be listed in a computer system. And then
there would be limits set beyond which there would be fallouts either—
not on drug interactions, that is too complicated, but simply on amounts
of %{L}gs to 1ﬁ1dgfidua1 patients.

1is would find the cases for us. And havi
would be able to take action. aving found the cases, we
o Thell'e are a lot oftother thizgsd I could comment on, but I don’t want

prolong your afternoon. And I do appreciate t i
come here and talk with you. PP ° the opportunity to

[Dr. Adams’ prepared statement appears on p. 89.)
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Mr. Worrr. We certainly appreciate your coming here.

I am going to ask Mr. Gilman who has his questions to take over. As
I indicated to you a little while ago, I have to take off for overseas
very shortly.

I do want to say, however, that we are very grateful for the dedi-
cated work of you gentlemen who are attempting to solve this prob-
lem. This organization is a very interesting one. I would like to know
more about it.

I feel that there is always an attempt to put people into categories
and in some broad-brush fashion attach a stigma, whether it be to the
pharmacists, the medical practitioner, or people who are administer-
ing medicaid, and challenge or charge you for all the frauds and abuses
that exist. Yet, when it comes down to it, we really are not backing
up those agencies that are necessary to produce the result.

. This committee is determined that it will not follow the patterns of

previous committees and indicate that the only place for everybody is
in jail. We feel however, that the law enforcement part of it, is a very
necessary ingredient. There are those who will charge that we are ori-
ented too much toward law enforcement.

The fact is you just couldn’t do without policemen. It would be a
great idea if we didn’t have to have police in this country, if we didn’t
have to have military machines. But we have to have it in order to
maintain that order so there is freedom within our society.

Similarly, it cannot be just education, and it cannot be just enforce-
ment. There has to be a broad mix, and it is a multifaceted problem.
And it requires a multifaceted series of answers, You can be sure this
committee is going to continue to pursue this and ¢ther avenues until
we are able to provide all of you with the proper and necessary imple-
ments.

I thank you, and T am going to ask Mr. Gilman to assume the chair.

Mr. GiLmaw., Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Gentlemen, could you tell us roughly how many people are involved
in investigations in the professional organizations in the State of
Maryland ?

Dr. Apams. I am sorry, sir, I didn’t hear you.

Mr. GiLman. How many people do you have involved in the inves-
tigatory field in the professions with regard to drug abuse?

Mr. Nrporr. I could speak to the medicaid program. We have about
4 or 5 people in drug.

Mr. GiLmAN. For the whole State ?

Mr. N1port. Yes.

Mr. GiLmaN. And how many are in the pharmaceutical field ?

Mr. Pareer. We only have a peer review committee of our own.
And as Dr. Adams has pointed out, we can only act with people who
have been brought up on charges. We have no authority——

Mr. Giman. Do you have any investigators?

Mr. Pareer. We have a board of pharmacy which has a staff, but
it is underfunded. And this is the major problem we find, I think, in
all areas—the underfunding of the staff that has to do the work.

Mr. Giman. As part of that staff, do you have any investigators,
Mr. Parker?
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Mr. Parkxr. They are not mine, see: the
_ y are board of pha ’
and there are probably 7 or 8 on this pz:rticular staff who alx?e blt;rrr;?)(;%r’e?i,

ﬁgg’ lt;;?ftate board of health, the Health Department of the State of

%\)Ir. gILMAN_.V‘l’Xnd, Dr. Adams?
- Ur. Apams. We share the same staff that the pharmac, T
. ] . ¢ pharmacists do, Th
%re two investigators used by all 18 health regulatory boards that fﬁg
State of .Marylangi,has of which the Commission is one. The same
prg})(l)zxtn 1; gue Wlti‘i the legal help and secretarial help, whatever
of the work , 1 .
phg{sicians. I our system presently is done by voluntary
r. GILMAN. Volunteer physicians?
Dr. %}DAMS. Yes, sir. P
L. OILMAN. Then, there are only two investigators that 1
_ The: . ] are doin
alll of tl%e investigation work in pharmaceutical groblems in the meldig:
;a,gurégg ession and in the méc};caid abuse? Or there are a few more,
‘I\Bgr. g IPORT. V‘I;e have about four or five.
I'. GILMAN. But you don’t extend over to t, y i
professions outside of medicaid ? © the Pharmacy and medical
ll:{Ir. lg 1PORT. No, sir.
I. GILMAN. There are about 5,000 physicians i
l]‘)Ir. éDAMS. 20,000 registered. physicians in Maryland?
T UILMAN. 20,000 physicians. How many pharmacists ?
%I{r. 'PARkER. There are about 3,000 pharmacists in Maryland.
madg.tgtl;ﬁzﬂélz. é lgu(_asls 1?rou :mi,1 understaffed. Has any request been
ate legislature to have an i i i
10(:)11); inX;)these ate log an mvestigatory unit that would
r. ADAMS. I am not completely familiar with it. T do know that
in{edlca.ud fraud unit has been recently set up in Maryland. I am saurz
Mr. Niport knows more about it. But for my own part, we are launch-
iligdgz major campaign for proper funding for the Commission on
Vig;gal D&smplme in Maryland. And a bill has been drafted tc pro-
theiwle goiglgt l;ag;ate funding and will be introduced into the sessions of
r. GiLman. There must be a drue enf it 3
Maryland o thoro not 7 g enforcement unit in the State of
Mr. Parker. It is under the department of health,
Mr. GiLman, How many investigators do they have?
Mr. Parker. There are the ones I referred to.
ﬁr. %ILMAN. TWhere are about two ¢
oL I'ARKER, We have about seven that tour the Stat:. Thev take
dﬁﬁ.’erent areas from time to time, investigating pharmacies fory other
thmgs besides the diversion of drugs. They come in ¢n a routine
check-up. And while they are there, they will have a tendency to inves-
tlgﬁte aéxy reportis we give thermn,.
r. GiLmaN. Mr. Parker, you are a pharmacist. are ?
Mr. ParkEr. Right. Y P RISt a7 you not!
Mr. GiLsan. How often have ihey been in your drugstore?
Mr. Parker. They come in my store about once a year. We get, more
response from the local law enforcement units. When e have a prob-
lem, we call them. h
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Mr. GiLmax. They come at your request, that is, once a year?

Mr. Parser. No; I am talking about the local police department.
They have a narcotics unit in Montgomery County. When we have a
suspect, we call them.

Mr. GiLman. Would these two people be able to call on every phar-
maﬁy in the State once a year?

r. ParkEr. They do call on every pharmacy. Sometimes, they call
more frequently if there is a suspect pharmacist. Other than drug
abuse, they may be doing something improperly in recording, what-
ever. The nspectors routinely check them more frequently.

Mr. Gizman. How much time do they spend in your pharmacy when
they come in ¢

Mr. PArRkER. A couple of hours as a rule.

Mzr. Gizman. How do they spread 8,000 around with three guys?

Mr. Parger. There are not that many pharmacies; that is
pharmacists.

Mr. Giman. How many pharmacies :

Mr. ParkEr. I think somewhere in the neighborhood of 1,700; I am
not privy to the full information of those, There is a lot of change.

Mr. N1rort. Somewhere between 800 and a thousand.

Mr. Gizman. I would hope that you would make a request for
sufficient investigatory people. It would seem to me that it would be
very difficult to examine the abuse without proper investigation.

Mr. Nreort. Mr. Gilman, if I may, cvery time we seek additional
resources, we have to prioritize, if you will. And what to the medicaid
program is a flagrant drug abuser, someone who gets 200 prescriptions
a year, four a week, is not an overly extensive abuser to our program.
T'wo hundred prescriptions a year could be $1,000, $1,200, $1,300. And
that is not really that much more than the average medicaid recipient
costs the State of Maryland. So just looking at numbers, there is not
that much incentive on the part of the administration to allocate addi-
tional investigators to solve a problem that is costing $1,200 a year
more than the average medicaid recipient costs us.

Tley give more precedent to those abuses of the system that are
much more dramatic as far as cost.

Now, the cost, as I said, it costs our program $1,200, $1,300 a, year.
That $1,200 or $1,300 a year on the street could be worth 20, 30, 40,
100 times that.

Mr. Gmuman. You are aware of that, I would hope, that someone
else on the other end of that budget is aware of that and those of us
who work in this area certainly are highly aware of it. And I don’t
think you can put the dollar value at just what the retail value of
the drug is. . .

What we are trying to do is close every loophole possible. And it is
true that the sale of pills and some of the amphetamines and barbitu-
rates are probably a smaller part of the overall picture. Yet, it is a
substantial amount as indicated by some of the testimony today, get-
ting into the millions and billions of dollars.

And when we talk about Valium and when we talk about some of
the other abusers, we find that they are substantial abuse. And the
only way we are going to get at it is to follow some of the ohjectives

of the Federal strategy.

|
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“ ;:st{gu lfggw,.in t{ae 1979 Federal strategy, there is a portion: that
professiorI:s (iSSé(glan and business associations of organizations and
. related to drugs will be éncouraged to intensify the moni-

gghz}t(:; Sillﬁnfi?s(‘, }:;Lmo(zilg t,;hose independents who violate their codes of
e n'lonitor' ie;sgr on’t have adequate investigation, we don’t have
) Ing to speak of, unless you wait for a complainant to

walk in the door.
theso days r. And there are not too many volunteers out there

Ege éi:;;eiloa%gr&éifrﬁ ilt‘;lt;ategymWe v;ere pleased to see finally some
' problem of an organized
would hope that those State organizati H Do o nd T
t ] | ganizations and 1
g:;;lzllgego%}rlnze that every facet of drug abugs?s) gx?:elgﬁylggﬂ
portan . S e only way they are going to do the job is proper
fo(r iE X'Iti(li ait?thzrogf;- Itlt())ct)uls. And 1f you need it, you should be shooting
Wi}ltl}elp Souwshe (})ft f;)r iy responding, let our committee know, and we
1s certainly an important part of this over
) all war \

ge;v%l;]lgr 3§123m9 any suggestions you might have for (:l,llll}(} ra?x%aaéb;(s)%
o © 18 some need at the Federal level to help you in your

Certainly, T think your intent is to bé

- ¥ 0 bé commended. il ’
lIlat‘; I(:i lil:%;eti)lge){)aig abllll)tl;y, You certainly intend to t:ryv‘z)11 ((iaoy(t?,lllled;');lbf
whoromitn D problem 1s to make sure you have the adequate

Ho o .. .
Dr.“fyx (:ﬁ;&lgs?we 1s the drug diversion market in your Stute ?

Dr. Apawms. T don’t know ex i i
Iny Impressions are it is quite exigflls};.vﬁ 1 T have are fmpressions. And
llt{[{r. (i')ILMAN. Mr. Parker?
. DARKER. I would have to agree, it is extensi
:pioblems I addressed earlier wasbthe"».interjurisdisclzz;’i?).ngin%rﬁﬂz};‘:
Where prescriptions are written in the Distriot of Columbia, and we
a%'ecn(it fortunate enough to have the same commission in the,District
% olu(r)n lll)r_nbla, we have with Dr. Adams. So a doctor in the District of
tlll oumt tlf;l ga:x See_ a tpatlent and write a prescription without doing
przscxc'libiﬁlg. amination and specifying the cause or diagnosis for
nd these District of Columbia, prescriptions find ways across th
fSizzlzlt;ethtes in stacks. And we have assisted police by chec%:ing ths [t:;
t;nld étathcomes In with a prescription, or we will follow them outside
an % : e tag number, the identification of the car, the person driv-
Ing lh » the person receiving the medicine. And we will sometimes find
gf&l;‘e ztzve ? driver and two or three people in the car, they will go from
stor o1 store with these prescriptien blanks, obtaining drugs which
10USly 1s 2 conspiracy to purchase drugs illegally and sell either

Mr. Guman. Mr. Ni i ive it i
: - AT N1port, any idea of how extensive it is?
wel‘cI‘IL : NIPO.RT.}}' don’t think anybody can quantify it. The only thing
e an tglayl 1s that the largest amount that we pay out is in drugs that
W0 central nervous system drugs which are the abuse-prone drugs.
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1 MI‘.QGILMAN. Eow much do you pay out in a year for those kind of
rugs?

Mr. Nrport. There are so many different drugs, I can tell you what
we paid for Valium. We paid over $600,000 in i year just for Valium.
And that is the cost level. You can multiply that by a factor of 10 or
20 as to the street value.

So we are talking about $6 million in Valium,

I don’t mean to imply that every prescription for Valium is for
an abuse purpose. But we find that any time there are the flagrant
abusers in our program, Valium is almost without exception one of
the drugs that they have taken.

Mr. GiLman. Has any agency or legislative commission in the
State attempted to undertake a research project to determine how
extensive the drug abuse is in the State of Maryland ?

Mr. N1eort. Not that I know.

Dr. Apams. Not to my knowledge.

Mr. Pay~ne. We did, I might point out, at the request of our State
legislature, a comprehensive prescribing practices study of all of the
physicians in Maryland who prescribed under the medical assistance
program. We did in fact use computer technology to prepare pre-
" seribing profiles of almost 5,000 physicians.

Mr. GiLman. Is that being utilized ?

Mr. PaynE. It has been submitted to our legislature. It is in their
hands. And we, of course, as Mr. Niport pointed out, have already
used the information that was developed through that study to make
recommendations to our Medical-Chirurgical Faculty and Board of
Medical Discipline.

Mr. GinmaN. How many physicians and pharmacists have been
disciplined for the abuse of their right to prescribe and dispense
drugs, Dr. Adams? ’

Dr. Apaums. Disciplined for the abuse of their right?

Mr. GILMAN. Yes. )

Dr. Apawms. Last year, we took formal action against the licenses of
about 15 physicians. '

Mr. GiLman. For drug abuse ?

Dr. Apams. No; total. And probably half of those would have
elements of bad prescribing in them. o

The point here is that someone who tends to write improperly also
has other problems. And so that the action taken against him is based
upon professional incompetence which encompasses a number of prob-
lems, including bad prescription practices.

Mr. GiLMAaN. Are those permanent revocations? o

Dr. Apaums. They may or may not be; it depends on the situation.

Mr. Gruman. Were there any reprimands in addition to the revoca-
tions of certification for drugs?

Dr. Apawms. Yes.

Mr. GiLman. How many reprimands?

Dr. Apams. I don’t know offhand. This year, we will handle 300
or 400 complaints. And probably 50 of those will be specifically bad
prescribing. And of those 50, there may be 6 or 10 licenses lifted, and
the rest will be reprimanded. -

Mr. GimaN. Do yon turn over any of your results of your cases
to the criminal authorities ¢

o,
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Dr. Apams. If there is criminal activity, yes, sir. Very often, the
activity we find is not covered in the criminal code. There is no—it is
my understanding in Maryland there is no—criminal violation of
someone who writes a prescription without, for example, doing a
physical examination or without proper indications that that is not a
criminal violation. It is a violation of our statute, but nct of the
criminal statute.

Mr. Giman. Mr. Parker, how many pharmacists have been cen-
sured or revoked or reprimanded ?

Mr. Parkger. This really comes under the purview of the Board of
Pharmacy. And I am not a member of that board. I have only heard
about two in the last year. :

Mr. GiLman. Two 1n the entire year?

Mr. Parker. Right.

Mr. GiLman. Mr. Niport, how many have been disciplined as a re-
sult of fraudulent or abrasive practices in the Medicaid ?

Mr. N1port. We don’t have the authority to discipline them. We can
only refer to the licensing boards or functions. We do, though, on a
continuous basis contact prescribers, counsel them. Those that we find
are sometimes more flagrant, we will call in and issue warnings. And
these are the ones we usually refer to the Commission.

And we are in a position where we can take no action until they
have either been convicted of something or their license has been sus-
pended or revoked.

Mr. GiLman. Where you do find forgeries, some abusive practice,
do you refer it to any criminal authorities or who do you refer
them to?

Mr. Nrreorr. There is very little exhibited interest in forged pre-
seriptions in Maryland. :

Mr. GiLman. Idon’t understand that.

Mr. Nrport. I don’t either.

Mr. GiLmaN. You mean by the authorities?

Mr. Nreort. I must say that Montgomery County does a fine job.
The Baltimore City Police Department had the equivalent of 114
persons on this problem. And virtually nothing is being done in these
areas. Anne Arundel County also has a rather significant effort under-
way. But 1t is the type of thing that the prosecuting officials do not
ggnglf;der very much of a priority because every incident is involving

, $6.

As T indicated in my testimony, the pharmacists are frustrated, they
call the pelice, and nobody wants to follow up on it. Or if they do, it
is constantly postponed and postponed and postponed. They have got-
ten to the point where they will send the forged prescriptions to us,
and we have been frustrated in trying to get anyone in law enforce-
ment to pay any attention to it.

Mr. Girman. Let me understand that correctly. Your medicaid peo-
ple, your investigators, would find some forged prescriptions ?

Mr. Nrport. Most of the forged prescriptions we get are sent to us
by pharmacists.

q Mré GrLmax. The pharmacists send them to you, and you investigate
1em ?

Mr. N1porT. Most of them are quite obviously forged. We will check
with the doctor.

— _ - _ - S —
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Mr. Gruman. And you report them to the local police ?

Mr. Nrport. And that is where it dies.

Mr. GrLman. Nothing further happens?

Mr. Nrport. Yes, sir. L

Dr. Apams. The same thing is true, sir, relative to the practice of
medicine ‘without a license. One would think that is a fairly serious
offense because it connotes a lot of hazard to the public.

Mr. Grumax. I would hope so.

Dr. Apams. But in terms of the action that one can stimulate by
reporting such a matter to the authorities, it is difficult to get them
to take action. It is a low priority item in my experience.

Mr. GiLman. Doesn’t the State have some unit that does this sort
of investigation and prosecution ?

Dr. Apams. In my tenure in this involvement which goes back
about 8 years, I remember one case in which we were able to get the
State’s attorney to indict a physician for practicing without a valid
license. And the only reason that happened was because he had in-
convenienced a large number of the public. And the public en mass
marched down to the State’s attorney’s office demanding action.

We had previously requested the same action which had not oc-
curred. It is a low priority item. It has no pizzazz to it.

Mr. Gmumawn. Has the medical profession made a request to the
State administration to beef up its enforcement procedures?

Dr. Apams. Not specifically, except through the commission which
regularly requests action. In other words, all we can do is take away
a license. And having disenfranchised a man, that is as far 'as we can

0.
. If he continues to practice, all we can do is refer him to the law
enforcement authorities. And even in thst situation, to get action is
difficult.

Mr. Gumax. Well, you have all apparently pointed to the failings’

of some of the law enforcement people, which is something that we
certainly should be locking at.

Tell me, do you feel that the professional societies can be doing more
to beef up its enforcement both the medical profession and pharmaceu-
tical society ? '

Mr. Parker. The pharmaceutical assosiation has no right really, no
legal status, to do anything except to deny them membership in the
association. We can refer them if we find some violation that hasn’t
already been caught by the authorities. We can refer it to criminal in-
vestigation or to the board of pharmacy for their action.

The board of pharmacy can take action, but then they have the same
kind of administrative procedures act. They have to call them in for
hearing, show cause orders, all these things which do take time. And
we don’t have that many pharmacists we find are really in viclation in
our area that I know about.

The ones T hear about are after the action has been taken by out-
side agencies. And there are limited numbers of them. I know of a
couple instances some years ago that fell through the cracks. For
what reason, I don’t know.

But these are people who were selling back when you could sell cough
syrups, and so forth.
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Mr. Gmaman. Do you feel that the g is i
] . : gency that is i of li-
censing at the State level—and T would assu);ne that isI:L (:'Shta;;%eegﬁc{:-
tion department—who is in charge of your licensing ¢
Dr. Apams. Health department. '

Mr. Grmax., The State heal.th department. Are th

societies, '

 And you agkeq previously whether the medi ety is doi
15 can. In our State, I don’t see how it could docilnfg}gllergr:as %‘(7)1111;% 3'1;
need is the ability to bursue and prosecute cases as they are found

r. GiLman. Well, we want to thank you for your apy »arance. It
apparently sounds to me like we need a lot more attention , both the

Again, I ask, do you have any recommendations t itt
wli()ere we may be of help to you in the work that you a?re:,) Ex?yicg,lgntn;lg?g
Dr. Apams. I think if your committee were to underling your con-
cerns to the State government that this would help us in getting oyr
pomlts across fog pl;;opei' funding, more support, and so ferth\g
C- GILMAN. Certainly, we will t i
Anylc\grther su%gestion s),r,gentleme 11132' to be helpful in that endeavor.

L. NIPORT. I can only suggest inasfar as the icai
regulations to authorize the Stgtes to take action Wlllllgx(li lé}}?ége lizv;'sﬁira(%
Ing of abuse. We do not have the ability to deny benefits where there
1s tlagrant abuse. We have to cut them off at the Ppass, so to speak, and
try to brevent the abuse even though it is there, and it is constant, and
16 1s ongoing, too, And the ability to prevent it ig very limited, =

Mr. G1rman. Good suggestion, ; -
es, sir.

I think this would hel effectively cut ]
illicit distribution of legﬁ:imate dru:}g;;s.u down on the Tajor amount of
Mr. N IPORT. We have found, if T may, that where physician/pre-
scribers in the past wrote indiscriminately for certain drugs, when it
was known they were under surveillance or when it was knc’>wn thay
had to put down on the prescription a specific diagnosis, and when they

knew it was controlled and someone was watching the incidence of .

prescribing, it went way down.,
I hes1§a,te.to say 1t, but sometimes the knowledge that “big brother”
1s watching is very effective,

Mr. Grumax. Any other suggestions ?
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Mr. Payne. I might for my part add just the one that any national
program to enhance physician awareness of the long-term effects of
certain drugs, any interaction of certain drugs, drugs with alcohol. I
don’t believe there is sufficient continuing education in pharmacology.
And I believe there should be. _ )

Mr. Giuman. I am inclined to agree with you from the prior testi-
mony we have heard, Mr. Payne. And we certainly will be trying to
emphasize some of that. . . o

What are the local societies trying to do with regard to raising
the consciousness of their people with regard to the dangers of drug
abuse and of the illicit narcotic trafficking ? Is there any program in
the medical society ¢ _ o

Dr. Apams. The State medical society has ongoing programs in this
area, but its resources, I think, are relatively limited.

The State medical society a few years ago did, for example, sponsor
amphetamine regulations in Maryland. And there exists now in Mary-
land specific prohibitions against amphetamines, specific prohibitions
against the use of amphetamines except in very selected situations
which does not include obesity, except for a single, one-time trial.

In other words, you can use legally amphetamines for a total period
of 8 weeks, once in any given patient. So anyone who violates that is
violating State law. _

Mr. Giuman. Mr. Parker, is the pharmaceutical society doing
anything?

Mr. Parxer. We have several publications that we mail out to our
membership. We have similar regional meetings. We have had in the
past a telephone chain set up where when something happens that it
looks like it is going to spread through the area like a pattern of drug
distribution, we call the other stores to alert them.

We have been trying now for 2 years to get a mandatory continuing
education bill through the State legislature, and they tell us it will
get through this year. We found some resistance from some organiza-
tions because they feel it is going to add to the cost of pharmaceutical
services. But I don’t thinlk it will add beyond the value that they re-
ceive from the continuing education program.

Mr. PaYnNE. One device, if T might bring it up, because I think it is
interesting and shows cooperation in this instance between the phar-
macy wholesalers, the drug houses in the State of Maryland with the
medical assistance program, when we became alerted to the fact
through our own investigations that a series of blank medicaid pres-
criptions had been stolen or lost, disappeared, the doctor can’t account
for them any more, we immediately send out a pharmacy alert.

And the drug wholesalers who visit or have occasion to touch every
store in the State sometimes, generally within 24 or 48 hours, cooperate
with us and actually distribute these fliers. So actually within 24
hours, we have put in the hands of the pharmacists in virtually every

pharmacy in the State the latest information we have about any scripts -

that might be stolen or lost.

And they know from that point if they appear, they are not to be
filled. We gei good cooperation on this.

Mr. Gruman. It is encouraging to hear that.
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Well, T want to thank i i
you, the panelists, for appearing. T w:
thzmk the officers and other members of the ,I\Iontg%}inery (%oun‘tvyrull\iiaﬁg
co 1c§ Ulmt, Dusty RhodeSfOﬁicer Dusty Rhodes—and those who pre-
bared the exhibit we have in the front of the room for their help in

bringing this exhibit befo inti i
forao sac ript problos i re us and pointing out how extensive the

1[\?96 éxhibit Bon p.45.]
. UILMAN. Your suggestions certainly }
. : : ¥ have been noted.
1Wllll, I am sure our committee wiil, explore what we can do t%nti vg;fa
1e AIL) mirymg to ?rmig some of those to bear.
re there any further questions, Mr. ier ¢
My, CarpENTIER, No. 1 1S Mr- Carpentier
Mr. GiLman. Mr. Starek ?
lltllr. %I‘AREK. No. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
r. Gr . i ‘ther i i
Ao &:MAN. Th.ele being no further questions, the hearing stands

. [Whereupon, at 5:15 p.m., the hearing was adj ourned. ]
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EXHIBIT A

ESTIMATED STREET VALUE
OF DIVERTED DRUGS

IN MILLIONS

Amphetamines

Dilaudid

Methaqgualone

Preludin

Talwin

Tuinal

A

$426 MILLION
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SUBMISSIONS FOR THE RECORD

THE WHITE HOUSE
WASHINGTON
November 26, 1979

Dear Mr. Chairman:

i i he House Select Committee
ng the recent hearing held before the : ct
gﬁréagcotiCS Abuse and Control on the D%v§r51o: zf L;:;grgrﬁgs
ssman Railsback asked that I furnish a status .
Sggg;gA proposal to withdraw approval for the use of amphetamines
in the treatment of obesity.

; i ' ister which gives
d please find a copy of the Federal Regis ch: .
igglg:§kg§ound of the proposal by the Food and Drug §dm1n1;§ratlon
tobban the use of amphetamines for treatmgn? of obesity. The
proposed ban would not include the prgsgrlglgg Qf g§§23§2$;2§s
x treatment of narcolepsy and minima rain 5 .
55; ;Bi has received numerous requests‘for further hearlggs on
tﬂe proposal and is currently consi@erlng whether there is .
sﬁfficient justification on the basis of new data to warran
further hearings.
I hope this information will clgrify the issue. Please let me
know if I can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,

/S
Lee I. Dogoloff
Associate Director
Drug Policy Staff
Domestic Policy Staff

The Honorable Lester L. Wolff

Chairman
Committee on Narcotic Abuse and Control

U.S. House of Representatives
Washington, D.C. 20515

—_—
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Federal Register / Vol. 44, No. 133 | Tuesday, July 17, 1979 / Notices

[Docket No, 794-0190; DES) 5378}

Amphetamines: Drugs for Human use;
Drug Etficacy Study Implamentation;
Amendmant or Pravious Notice and
Opportunity for Hearing .

AGENCY; Food and Drug Adninistration.
ACTION: Notice. |, . .

* SUMMARY: The Food and D; )
Administration (FDA) announces its
decision that the indication for the .
management of exogenous obasity .
should be removed from the labeling of
drug products containing an-
amphetamine. An opportunity for

-hearing is offered in the notice,
DATE: Hearing requests due on or before
August 16,1979, ..

ADDARESSES: Communications forwarded -

in response to this notice should be
identified with the reference number
DESI 5378, directed to the attention of

. the appropriate office named below, and
addressed to the Food and Drug

dministration, 5600 Fishers Lane,

Rockville, MD 20857,
- Supplements {identify with NDA
number): Division of .
Neuropharmacological Drug Products
(HFD-120}, Rm. 10B-04, Bureau of Drugs.

Original abbreviated new drug .
applications and supplements thereto
and notices of claimed investigational
exemption for a new drug {identify as
such): Division of Generic Dreg
Monoggaphs {(HFD-530), Bureau of
Drugs, X

Request for Hearing (ideatify with
Docket number appearing in the heading:
of this notice): Administrative -
Proceedings Staff—Hearing Clerk Office
(HFA-305), Rm, 4-65.

Requests for the report of the National
Academy of Sci -National R ch
Council: Public Records and Document
Center (HFI-35), Rm. 12A-12.

Requests for opinion of the
applicability of this notice to a specific
product: Division of DBrug Labeling .
Compliance (HFD-310), Bureau of Drugs.

Other communications regarding this
notice: Drug Efficacy Study

§01), Bureau of Drugs,

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Ronald L. Wilson, Bureau of Drugs
(HFD-32), Food and Drug
Administration, Depariment of Health,
Education, and Welfare, 5600 Fishers -
Lane, Rockville, MD 20857, 301443~
3850, :

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: i

Definition

For the purpose of this nollcc;. the.t.emi

“amphetamine,” the name ordinarily

used to des
the drug, is

ignate the racemic form of
used to cover several drugs

or isomers within a class, and the term -

“dl-amphet

amine” is used when

reference to the racemate §s intended. '

Unless otherwise stated in the text, the

term “amphetamine” includes o
dextroamphetamine, dl-amphetamire, ...
methamphetamine (which ig used in this
notice to cover both the dextro-isomer *

and the rac:

dextroamphetamine and di- L

amphetamine, and salts of the drugs. -
The drug products described below, . -
which are the subject of this notice, /= .

contain an

emate), a mixture of

amphetamine in either the

single-entity or combination form.

1. NDA 5-378; Desoxyn Tablats e
containing 2.5 milligrams or 5 milligrams -
methamphetamine hydrochloride per - ¢ -
tablet, Desoxyn, Gradumst Tablels -

coataining

5,10, ot 15 milligrams

methamphetamine hydrochlorida per - '

tablet, and

Desoxyn Elixir containing 20 -

- milligrams methamphetamine S
bydrochloride per 30 milliliters; Abbote
Laboratories, 14th and SheridanRd, . - -
North Chicago, IL 60064,

2. NDA 5-540; Methedrine Tablets

contining 2

milligrams or 5 milligrams

methamphetamine hydrachloride per
tablet; formerly marketed by Burroughs
Wellcome & Co., 3030 Cornwallis Rd.,

Research Triangle Park, NC 277

3. NDA 5-756; Drinalfa Tablets
containing 5 milligrams
.methamphetamine hydrochloride per
tablet; E. R. Squibb & Sons, Inc,, P.O.
Box 4C0, Princeton, NJ 08544,

4. NDA 5-969; Racemic

.

Desoxyephedrine Hydrochloride Tablets *
containing 5 milligrams d}.
methamphetamine hydrochloride per
tablet; High Chemical Co., 1780 N. .
Howard St, Philadelphia, PA 15122, °

5. NDA 6-003; Miller-Drine Tablets ..
containing 10 milligrams dj-

. methamphe

tamine hydrochloride per

tablet; Smith, Miller & Patch, Inc., 401
Implementation Project Manager (HFD- {)ggs Kilmer Ave., New Brunswick, Nj

6. NDA 10-093; Biphetamine 714+~ -
Capsules, Biphetamine “12%" Capsules,
and Biphetamine “20™ Capsules,
conlaining 3,75 milligramns, 6.25 .
milligrams, and 10 milligrams each of

dextroamph
per capsule,
exchange re

etamine and amphetamine
respectively, all as cation

sin complexes of sulfonated ~
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containing 10 milligrams of
dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;
- Halsey Drug Co., Inc., 1827 Pacifi St.,

7. NDA 11~522; Obetral Tablets Brooklyn, NY 11233, ]
containing 2.5 milligrams or 5 milligrams - 19, ANDA 84-001; Ferndex Tablets
of amphetamine asparate,amphetamine  containing 5 mil!igrams
sulfate, dextraamphetamine saccharate,” dextroamphetamine sulfate, Ferndale
and dextroamphetamine sulfate, per Laboratories, Inc., 780 W. Eight Mile .Rd..
tablet; Obetrol Pharmaceuticals, * -  Ferndale, MI148220, - )
Division of Rexar Pharmaceutical Corp., 20. ANDA B4-D§1;

396 Rockaway Ave., Valley Stream, NY  Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets
11581, . R containing 5 milligrams or 10 milligrams

8. NDA 12-042; Eskatrol Spansules of dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;
containing 15 milligrams
dextroamphetamine sulfate end 7.5 ~
milligrams prochlorperazine maleate per .

sustained-relesse capsule; Smith, Kline
& French Laboratories, 1500 Spring
Garden St., Philadelphid, PA 19101,

9. NDA 17-071; Benzedrine Sulfate
Spansule containing 15 milligrams of )
amphetamine sulfate per capsule; Smith, 22. ANDA 84-931; Methamphetamme
Kline & French Laboratorles. Hydrochloride Tablets containing 5

10, NDA 17-078; Dexedrine Spansules  milligrams or 10 milligrams of . .
containing 5, 10, and 15 milligrams of = methamphetamine hydrochloride per
dextroamphetamine sulfate per table; Rexar Pharmacal Cor?.
sustained release capsule; Smith, Kline 23. ANDA 84-935; Dexedrine Tablets
& French Laboratories, © . . containing 5 milligrams of

11, ANDA 83-563; Amphetamine dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;
Sulfate Tablets containing 5,10, 15, or 20 Smith Kline & French Laborataries.
milligrams of amphetamine sulfate per 24, ANDA 84-966; Daro Tablets
tablet; Delco Chemical Co., 7 containing 5 milligrams of
MacQuestsn Pkwy., North, Mt. Vernon,  dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;
NY 10550, Vitarine Cd., Inc., 227-15 N. Conduit

12. ANDA 83-564; Delcobese Ave,, Springfield Gardens, NY 11413.
Spansules containing 1.25, 2.5, 3.75, or & 25, ANDA 85-212; .
milligrams of amphetamine adipate, Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets
amphetamine sulfate, . containing 5 milligrams of

‘dexroamphetamine adipate, or dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;
dextroamphetamine sulfate per Stanrabs, Inc,, Box 3108, Portland, OR
sustained release capsule; Delco 97208,
Chemical Company. 26. ANDA 85-370;

13. ANDA 83-735; Dexampex Tablets  Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets
containing 5 milligrams or 10 milligrams  containing 5 milligrams of .
of dextroamphetamine sulfate; Lemmon  dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;
Pharmacal Co., Sellersville, PA 18960, Cord Laboratories, 2555 W, Midway

14, ANDA 83-889; Methamphetamine ~ Blvd., Broomfield, CO 80020,
Hydrochlaride Tablets containing 10 27. ANDA §5-371;
milligrams of methamphetamine Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets
hydrochloride per tablet; Lemmon containing 10 milligrams of
Pharmace! Co., P.O. Box 30, Sellersville,
PA 18960, .

15, ANDA 83-900; Benzedrine Tablets, «
containing 5 milligrams or 10 milligrams
amphetamine sulfate; Smith, Kline &
French Laboratories, L

16. ANDA 83-902; Dexedrine Elixir
containing 5 milligrams per 5 milliliters
of dextroamphetamine sulfate; Smith,
Kline & French Labaratories.

17. ANDA 83-903;

Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets
containing 5 milligrams or 10 milligrams
of dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;
Lannett Ca., 8000 State Rd,,

Philadelphia, PA 18130,

18. ANDA 83-930; .
Dextroemphetamine Sulfate Tablets

polystyrene; Pennwalt Prescription
Products, 755 Jefferson Rd., Rochester,
NY 14623, .

+ Ave, Valley Stream, NY 11662, -

21, ANDA 84-125; v
Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets
containing 5 milligrams
dextroamphetamine Sulfate; Purepac
Pharmaceutical Co., 200 Elmora Ave.,
Elizabeth, N] 07207,

Cord Laboratories.
28, ANDA 85-892; »

Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets

containing 10 milligrams of '

Vitarine Co.

29, ANDA 86-521;
Dextroamphetamine Sulfate Tablets
containing 5 milligrams of
dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablef;

M. M. Mast & Co., 4152 Ruple Rd.,
Cleveland, OH 44121,

30. Dexamyl Spansule Capsules and
Tabléls containing dextroamphetamine
sulfate and amobarbital;"Smith Kline &
French Laboratories; products are not
the subject of an approved NDA.

Rexar Pharmacal Corp., 336 Rockaway .

dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet;

dextroamphetamine sulfate per tablet; ’

It is the responsibility of every drug,
manufacturer or distributor to'review
this notice to determine whether it
covers any drug product that the person

. manufactures or distributes. Such

person may request an opinion of the

applicability of this notice to a specific
drug product by writing to the Division
of Drug Labeling Compliance (address
given above). * B

‘ .

Background ..

In a Federal Register notice of
February 12, 1973 (38 FR 4249), the Food
and Drug Administration revised 21 CFR
13046 (subsequently recodified as 21

* CFR 310.504) to announce its findings

that single-entity oral anorectic drug

- products containing anvphetamine or - )

dextroamphetamine are effective as
short-term adjuncts in the management
of obesity. Amphetamine, :
dextroamphetamine, melhamphegamlne
hydrochloride, and dl-methamphétamine
hydrochloride were the subject of a
Drug Efficacy Study (DESI) notice .
published in the Federal Register on July
19, 1874 (39 FR 26459). In that notice

amphetamine and dextroamphetamine

were evaluated as effective for the
treatment of narcolepsy and minimal
brain dysfunction in children, and all the
drugs were determined to be effective as .
short-term adjuacts in the management
of obesity.
In Federa! Register notices ‘of March

30, 1973 (38 FR 8290, September 35, 1973
(38 FR 26748), and May 23, 1875 (40 FR
22570), FDA withdvew approval of all
combination products contzining an
emphetamine, except for Eskatrol
Spansules (NDA 12-042), on the basis of
a lack of substantial evidence of

- effectiveness and a lack of proof of )
safety, Hearing requests were submitted
by Smith Kline & French in response to
the Federal Register notice of February

" 12, 1973 (38 FR 4279) for Eskatrol

Spansules and their Dexamy! products
“(related products which are not the
subject of an approved NDAO. The
hearing request for Eskatrol Spansules is -
still under review by FDA, while the
hearing request for the Dexamyl
products is the subject of a court ruling.
Smithkline Corp. v. FDA, 58i7 F.2d 1107
(D.C. Cir. 1978). With respect to Eskatrol
- and Dexamyl, the action announced in
this notice is in addition o the
proceedings presently pending before
, the agency concerning thase drugs.
In another notice of February 12, 1973
(38 FR 4249), the Commissioner of Food
and Drugs recogrized that the use of
amphetamines for long periods of time
may lead to drug dependence and
abuse. Their potential for abuse i3
related to their action as a central

N
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nervous system stimulant; they can
produce intense psychological
dependence and severe social
dysfunction. When the drugs were
approved for use as an adjunct in the
management of obesity, they were
approved on a benefit/risk basis which
took into consideration their potential
for abuse. By limiting the use of these
drugs to a short period of time and
reducing the opportunity for misuse
through regulatory action, the
Commissioner concluded that they met
the safety requirements of the Federal
Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act and were
.appropriate, on a benefit/risk basis, for
. the treatment of obesity for a few weeks

as an adjunct to a regimen of weight
reduction based on caloric restriction.
Hp stated, however, that persistent

' abuse of these drugs would itate

" additional change has occurred since

then.

4. A significant amount of the
amphetamines used for abuse purposes
comes from supplies that are legally

.manufactured, shipped, or prescribed.

5. There is no new evidence te
challenge the previous FDA conclusion
that amphetamines have no advanlage

-over the nonamphetamine anorectic .

drugs as an adjunct in the treatment of
obesity. . . ’

The October 14, 1977 notice also
stated that because of this continuing
level of abuse of amphetamines, the
Commissioner believes that, consistent
with his stated intent In the February 12,

. 1973 notice, further action under the act

may be necessary.to protect the public

. health. 7% provide an open forum for

ts on information provided in

. taking further steps to restrict their

avallability and use. .o

The policy of the Food and Drug
Administration regarding the use of
amphetamines in the freatment of
‘obesity, as stated in the February 12,
1973 notice (38 FR 4249), was .
promulgated as a regulation {21 CFR

~310.504; formerly codified as 21 CFR

130.46). The regulation provides the
marketiag conditions for amphetamines
and refers to their efficacy review which
found limited effectiveness for the drugs
in the treatmeat of obesity. In light of
the conclusions in this notice concerning
the marketing conditions for
amphetamines, a future Federal Register
notice will propose revocation of this
regulation., B

In a Federal Register notice of
October 14, 1977 (42 FR 55374), the
Commissioner stated that legally
manufactured and matketed
amphetamines are continuing to be
abused at a level that conslitutes ar
apparently significant public health
problem. He further stated that recent
information made available to FDA has
revealed that, in spite of the restrictions
imposed over the last 5 years, there is .
evidence for the following conclusions:

1. Among prescription drugg, the
anorectic agents are commonly used for
nonmedical purposes.’ :

2. Among the anorectic drugs,
amphelatnines account for more abuse
episodes than other drugs in the class

and also have the highest rate of abuse

. of all drugs in the class, B :
3. There has been no significant
decrease in the rate of abuse of
ampheatamines over the past 3 years.
The major reducticn in their abuse
appears to have occurred between 1970
and 1973 as a result of regulatory

actions taken during that time, and little -

" the notice on the abuse of legally

manufactured amphetamines, the .
Commissioner announced that a public

" hearing would be held on December 2,

1977. He specifically requested well-
documented corament on the merits of
the following possible course of action:
1, Remove the anorectic indication

from the labeling of amphetamine drug
products.

* 2. Retain the indication of narcolepsy
for dextroamphetamine and dl-
amphetamine products, and retain the

. indication of minimal brain dysfunction

for dextrsamphelamine, dl-
amphstamine and methamphetamine
products. {A notice published in the
Federal Register of October 24, 1978 (43
FR 48573) eliminated the term *minimal
brain dysfunction” from physician
labeling in order to more accurately
describe the bebavioral syndromes of
this indication.) o

3. Require patient labeling which
would provide certain information on
use and warnings concerning the
potential for abuse of these drugs.

On November 22, 1977 (42 FR 59917),
the agency announced that the
administrative record of the public
hearing would remain open for 30 days
after the December 2, 1977 hearing to
permit sufficient time for all interested
persons to submit written data,
information, or views on the current .
patterns of medical vse and abuse of
amphetamines. .
Review of Testimony and Written
Submissions

Since the public hearing was3 held,

FDA has carefully reviewed the
testimony and written submission:

*  (written submissions will herealter be

referred to in the text as comments),
Among those who participated in the
public hearing or submitted comments

wete representatives from the Drug -
Enforcement Administration, National
Institute of Drug Abuse, Canadian
Ministry of Health, the academic and
scientific community, industry groups,
health organizations, and consumer
groups. A total of 38 persons gave
testimony and 31 persons submitted
comments. Of the 55 persons who
testified or commented on the removal
of the anorectic indication from the
labeling of amphetamioe products, 30
persons supported the actian, while 25
persons opposed it. The 14 persons who
testified or commented on retaining the

“indication of narcolepsy and minimal

brain dysfunction presented unanimous’
support for this action. Of the 14 persons
who testified or commented on patient
labeling for amphetamine products, 12
supported the action, while 2 opposed it.
The most substantial teatimony and
comments have been identified and are
briefly discussed below in alphabatical
order according to the last name of the
person: . : :

1. Mr. Peler Bensinger, Administrator .

. of the Drug Enforcement Administration

{DEA ).—Mr. Bensinger reported that
substantial evidence has been presented
for many years to FDA and
Congressional committees which shows
that amphetamines are frequently used
for nonmedical purposes by a sizable
segment of the population, that such use
can result in severe physical and
psychological impairment, and that

* legally manufactured products provide

for and suslain such usnge. On the
diversion of legally manufactured
products, he: stated that DEA estimates
that reported thefts account for roughly
one-tenth of the amphetamines actually .
diverted, the remaining nine-tenths

being diverted primarily throngh
promiscuous script writing physicians,
forged prescriptions, illegal sales, and
dispensing fat clinics. According to Mr.
Bensinger, a principal factor in the

higher rate of diversion for i
amphetamires is their ready availability
through disperising physicians. He
reported that one physician in New
-England was responsible for dispensing ~
2 percent of thet annual .+ .. :
methamphetamine quota of the United
States, or roughly one million dosage -+
units. He added that despite the
expenditure of substantial resources to
bring action against this physician, the
approved indication for short-term °
obesity treatment provides this

. physician and many others with

considerable Jatitude to skict the law."
2. Dr. David Brillinger, Professor o,

Statistics, University of California ntf

Berkeley—Dr. Brillinger stated that
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" examiners the decreases were 27,6 ,

neither the October 14, 1977 notice nor percent from 1974 to 1975 and 27.3 -

the IMS America report presents a

percent from 1975 to 1976, Dr. de Cani dangers are careful}

hyperkinetic children, but shou!d
g:lpyregg'ibea only after their potential

y weighed against

complete statistical analysls of the time also stated that for all Schedule I "~ ' their possible value.

! ince they did not spell out .
‘l;}?el::sduﬁ;tsi:nc: of ﬂ!x,e fitted st[atislical m;onrsﬁt;ti) d/{uves& t:lz ;?;I;?eifl?ggéage
which their conclusions are m 1 )
ﬁ?sisll.sig: stated that the conclusions of  kilograms of amphe!atﬂrn}me;};lu;;;is for-
the report and the notice appear decreased from }97?1! ou;ups' or”’
essentially subjective, l—ga c:ﬂ&:}rde? ea;h l;’rf 217; rf,ogx‘ Gaz:‘fﬁzgz‘hiefaflhe K
sumplions and validity o 5. Dr. D, , Chig,
g::tti?;ii:lsmodgls. confidence inlerva!s(, .;txmulaz;lt CI{:;? ;f(%j‘: L;?acjazfgincrifﬁth .
error analysis, and possible componen esearc 9 tami;xe D
1d be explored in the . testified that amphe
;ﬁ:;isctsi};?luof DAWIBI mentions data. 3 g harmle;s prac;?:égu; :31‘11 g;gglé:icy
~ Dif adverse
o) frons {2@8‘5’ .Ca’a g:i' gi@c:a; A fhe . ;;v;:: drug, He stated that dggen&en;y
A;ffg;'goal the Notional Institute ag gn;g :)ﬁtegﬁ;g?:tgx;huz et};esx:;];:;x;c inu:: :
Abuse (NIDA).—Dr. Cooper stated tha e , S N s .
that the benefits of chronic, repetitive pe . e
Snlg‘:e?:ﬁ;:: to the individuel and the ~ dependency, accqrdmg t; grt.h?ghf;g:{ic
Ruiwcighe by e publ bouhricke v of emphmines produots bsormosa
outweighed by the public health risks use of an 3 ;mon e o
ted with the use of these anq anxiety, g
:ﬁlszgf;?\fes. The data sources available which gives the person thguse
fo NIDA show that incidence and predisposition ]to gs? or ?_1 uee
prevalence of non medical use of barbiturates, al coﬁlcr)than Dinor
amphelamines remain high. He reported  tranquilizers. He hy etr ste ed that
that, despite the prescribing of dependency on amphe &nunﬁ Sloas
alte;na(ive non amphetamine djfﬁcu}t to treat as ?i?rcg t}‘):aat ,
anorectics, the strict scheduling of ¢ Dr.p%g{?;ﬁ:;:oa::sml‘i Lnat
ines, and the exercising of am ]
:gg};?slgy physicians in pre&crg'l:}ilng pr;:idl):c;x :yp:g:ﬁgs&_z glf :i &i;a:lfrigmpc’poi
amphetamines, data suggest that the whic| e s et A
icence and prevalence of non acute exposure to ]
gxl::iigglcuse of‘;mphe(amines is actually month's prescription for ﬂ 1o Dr
increasing, particularly among the amphetamine will, acco)l; g ¢ T .
young. Based on an analysis of these Griffith, pkm?l:}?: ;i;g:tsoisfxfhl;lc‘l’mg isp
vhich was summarized in his 80 percent o
?easlmuny. Dr. Cooper stated t:hat }\HDA tztik:ax:i hmngiﬁziley’:sﬂ\;;ﬂ\v:ggt;;ﬂgd tor
supports removing the {ndjcation for stated th s oationte e
i hetamines, and identifying or exclu pa
ff:fﬁ?ngfhnéf 1;:2kage labeling warn are sensitive to amphetgmmis Bt; ;;Jl .
consumers of the potential harmfu} dependency or psychosis or tx‘o .In
effects of amphetamines from conclu]sim}. hedstat(eid}:ha;p: tﬁ:ysusa
s long-term use. not only placed at risk whe: )
co:.‘gﬁ uj‘t:;n S.gde Cani, Professor and amphetamines, butth are g\lven ':od;:rg that
Chairman, Department of Statisticés, is n.u}!1 ﬂg:: better than placel
iversity of Pennsylvania~Dr. de weig 3 - .
ggrlx‘iliiimslagr‘;ﬁd withyFDA'a decision to 6. Dr. Lester Grinspoon, Assocuye
exclude the DAWN data from Professor of Psychiatry at Harvarrts e
consistently reporting crisis centers, He University—Dr. Gnnspopn d?upgo r
also suggested using the amphetamine removal of the anorectic in caH on fom,
quota data instead of prescription data the labeling ofamphetaminesi) ? v
to calculate the denominator for the rep%r‘tt;ad mta}:at{]je::ﬁ?f;p:ril;:;ibierxge"
index (abuse rate). - conditions :
pr%t:l%n: ga:ixs[tated that IZ)r all amphetamines. He questioned t}t\ie use of
Sche.dule Il anorectic drugs, the average gmphetamu'!ea for weight Educ on
number of monthly DAWN mentions * - under any(cnrcumstangﬁs. e week
decreased from 1974 through 1576 for commepted that}:lxifl;r e Huse
each of the four consistently reporting egpl?o_nc high, wh c;. kmay ;a S8 et
facility groups {crisis centers, emﬁrgency dm_mﬁx‘sl}:)esc: f:ront; }1lne :a a::i 1:25 :re nocionger
rooms, medical examiners, and a weigh! N :
f ! i i ctics unless the user
facilities), For example, in Table 1 of hia  effective as ar‘xjore o unloss the u
i . de Cani observed that the  increases the dose, thus L3
:aevs:::enx{:lgger of monthly DAWN pattern of abuse. He con'i\menled that
mentions decreased 20.7 percent from amphetamines (}re.useglo tocz;;{:g
1974 to 1975 and 5 percent from 1975 to select group suffering n:'l s ot of
1976 for emergency rooms; for medical varieties of narcolepsy and a num

1

7. Dr. John Henderson, Director of the

au of Drugs and Health Protection
’ 'g:arfwh a§ Ih’;%anadlhn Ministry of
Health—~Dr. Henderson stated that )
legislation passed in Canada on - 4
November 1, 1971, essentisliy restricted -

use of amphetamines to the L
g'l:ahnent of narcolepsy, hyperkinetic .
disorders in children, mental X
retardation, epilepsy, and Pa:kinsox}lsm.
Any physician who needs to prescribe
amphetamines for individual patignls for
conditions outside the appfoved list
must obtain the authorization of the
Bureau of Drugs of the Health Protection
Branch. Dr. Henderson pointed out that
only 36 such requests have been
received for the 12-month period
preceding November 1977, As there are

38,000 physicians in Canada, h_e .
observed that “Canadian physicians are
practicing a high standard of medical
care with a very low use of the more . P
hazardous members of the amphetamine
class of drugs.” After Canade passed the
legislation in 1971 that virtually ended
the use of amphetamines for treating
obesity, the importation of a;nphetamine
rugs (amphetamines are no
gnax%ufgchﬁ-ed in Canada) had dropped
from 757 kilograms in 1971 to 0.720
kilograms in 1977. )

8, Mr. David Joranson, Drug Abuqe
Policy Specialist with the Wisconsin
Bureau of Alcohol and Other Drug
Abuse and Dr. Karl Marquordt, - )
Executive Secrelary of the Pharmacy
Examining Board of Wisconsin~Dr.
Marguardt and Mr. Joranson conducted
a study in Wisconsin on the abuse L
problem of a name brand amphetamine

- which involved a high volume of sales in
some pharmacies. At the request of the
Controlled Substances Board and
Pharmacy Examining Board, they .

" reviewed data that had been compiled

" and tabulated through the Automation
of Reports of Consummated O.rders_
System (ARCOS) of DEA and identified
465 pharmacies that had purchased -
800,000 dosage units of this name brand .
amphetamine in 1975. Among these 465
pharmacies, 10 were identiffed asthe .
-pirchasers of the largest quantity of this
amphetamine product during 1975. The
study then identified 73 physicians who
had issued prescriptions for this
amphetamine product which were
subsequently dispensed by one or more
of the 10 pharmacies during 1975, Of the
total prescriptions written for this drug
product by the 73 physicians, 827 )
percent were written by 8 physicians, \
One physician had issued 25 percent of

.

A

i
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the total prescriptions written by the 73
physicians. Another physician among
the 73 had issued 82 percent of his total .
prescriptions for this amphetamine
produet. As this nume brand
amplistamine is only one amphetamine
product in Schedule It, D, Marquardt
and Mr. Joranson pointed out that the
problem could be much larger if other
amphetamine abuse by overpreserihing
physicians is considered. They .
concluded that the problem probably
extends to other States, as Wisconsin is
ranked 27th in per capita consumption
of amphetamines, Mz, Joranson also
reported that the Controlled Substances
Board supports the three actions s
outlined in the October 14, 1977 notice,
9. Dr. Albert Madansky, Professor of
Business Administration, Uni versity of
Chicago.—For IMS America’s data
(Figure 8 of the October 14, 1977 notice},
Dr. Madansky proposed two different
= models to predict trends in DAWN
mentioas. From his first fitted quadratic
model, Dr, Madansky predicted that the
estimated minimum of the abuse trend
occurred in October 1976, From his
second logarithmic transformed model,
Dr. Madansky predicted that in each
year the number of mentions will
decrease by 11 percent, He predicted
that by the end of 1879, the level of
deseasonalized Schedule II mentions
from all consistently reporting facilities
will drop to 313 per month, :
For FDA's data {Figure 9 of the
October 14, 1977 Totice), Dr. Madansky
stated that the statistically significant
decreasing trend was found from
Janvary 1974 through December 1976 for
the observed data (amphetomines .
mentions with other drugs). He also saw
no significant correlation between the
prescription sales and Schedule 11
DAWN mentions for all consistently
reporting facilities. He then concluded
that the FDA's abuse rate (DAWN
menllons/prescﬂpﬁons) does not
provide reliable information about drug
abuse, R
10. Dr. John W. Rupel, member of the
Wisconsin Medical Examining Board.—
Dr. Rupel explained that the Wisconsin
Medical Examining Board is the State
govemnmental agency that licenses and
disciplines physicians and defines
acceptable standards of professional
practice, After an investigation into the
dispensing and prescribing of scheduled
stimulant drugs by Wiscansin R
Physicians, the Board found that
approximately 2 percent of the State's
physiclans are responsible for . '
prescribing and dispensing the tota)
amount of scheduled anorectic drugs
that reached the public through legal
channels in 1975, The Board could find

no credible scientific evidence that js
statistically valid and reltable to show
that any of the scheduled anorectic
drugs had more thaq a trivial advantage,
at best, over placeho therapy in either
the short- or long-term management of
obesity. Dr. Rupel reparted the

« investigation revealed that, of all the

scheduled anorectic drugs, .
amphetamines have the most serious
and widespread abuse, The findings of

. the Investigation were summarized by
Dr. Rupel as follows: N

A tiny fraction of physicians i our State -
are prescribing and dispensing large amounts
of abusable drugs for a condition for which
these drugs offer very little, If any, prospect
of benefih’l‘ha distribution of an abusable *
substance with no likelihood of significant
gain to the patientis a danger to the health,
safety, and welfare of the public, and as such

. constitutes unprofessional conduct,

After reviewing these findings, the
Board promulgated an administrative
rule that defines as unprofessional
tanduct the prescribing of an
emphetamine for any purpose other than
the treatment of narcolepsy, :
hyperkinesis, drug-induced brain
dysfunction, certain refractory forms of
depression, or clinical research under
appropriate safeguards, Any Wisconsin
physician who violates the rule does so
at the risk of having his or her license to
practice medicine suspended o
revoked, In concluding his presentation,
Dr. Rupel stated that the Wisconsin
experience with amphetamines and the
Board's findings clearly support the
evidence set out ia the October 14, 1977
notice, He urged the removal of the
anoretic indication as it would directly
assist the efforts to deal with the
amphetamine problem at the State level,

11, Dr. Philip Tannenbaum, Medical
Director and Vice-President for Medical
Affairs of Smith, Kline and French
Laboratories—Dr. Tannenbaum said
that FDA's use of the problem index or
abuse rate (amphetamine DAWN -
mentions/amphetamine prescription
sales) is debatable, He stated that the
data bases used to derive this index
would overestimate the numerator and
underestimate the denorainator, For this
reason, the relative contribution of
DAWN mentions from legitimately
produced amphetamines would be
overestimated, He suggested that a

revised problem index for legitimately
produced amphetamines should be used,
1.e, DAWN inentions associated with

* legitimately produced amphetamines/

Pprescription sales + direct physiclan
dispensﬁng -+ thefts. e .
Dr. Tannenbaum also disagreed with

FDA's decision to exclude from the

) analysig the following consistently

-,

reporting DAWN mentions: all data
from crisis centers, all mentions
favolving jargon terminology, and all
mentions for phenmetrazine, He
contended that without the above
DAWN mentions, the DAWN data
(CAWN amphetamine mentions - .
together with other drugs) used in FDA's
Figure 9 of the October 14, 1977 notice
only accounted for one-fifth of the data
included in Figure 8. He also stated that
a 27-percent reduction in total DAWN

' mentions {amphetamine DAWN n

" mentions with other drugs) was still .
observed between 1973 (1,655 mentions)

" and 1976 {1,209 mentions) if the data are
used from Figure 9 of the Octaber 14,
1977 notice. . R

12, Dr. Kennard Yaffe, Chairman of ..

the Committee on Drugs of the  + Y
Maryland State Medical Society.—Dr.
Yaffe spoke about the promulgation of
amphetaming regulations in the State of
Maryland when {t became apparent to
physicians of Maryland that
amphetamines were severely abused
and that the benefits from their use were

* very limited. “The benefits,” according

.to Dr. Yaffe, “were thought to be of .-
value in narcolepsy and the hyperkinetic
syndreme of childhood, and the greatest
abuse was thought to derive from N
prescribing by physicians of N
amphetamines for obesity.” He briefly
described the regulations as allowing
amphetamines, except for ;
methamphetamine, to be prescribed for -
narcolepsy and hyperkinetic syndrome
of children, and requiring the conditions
to be well documented in the physician's
record. For other used, “the physiecian -
raust ask permission from the Division
of Drug Control, setting forth the st

problem in such detail ag to permita -
Teasoned judgment to be made.” Dr: '
Yaffe stated that thig program has
produced a sharp decline In the  * .- °-

prescribing of amphetamines in -

* Maryland without any problems in the

treatment of obesity, He added that the
removal of the anorectie Indication .
would assist in reducing the abuse of
amphetamines on the State level,

The transcript of the public hearing
and a copy of all comuents submitted i3 .
on file in the office of the Hearing Clerk |

. atthe address given abaove.
-* Findings of FDA

- The testimonies of Drs, de C;
Madansky, and Tannenbaum, aaxl:fi' the
comment of Dr. Brillingar wera i
statistical criticisms of FDA’s analysis
of data provided 1o FDA from the v
system. After a review of thelr
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14,1977 notice (p. 55375} as revealed by
the DAWN data, His response to these
statistical criticisms of FDA's analysiy
of the DAWN and IMS America :
prescription data is as follows.

1. Dr. Brillinger's comments are valid
regarding the assumptions and validity
of statisticel models; confidence
intervals, error analysis, and possible

" component analysis. However, becausa
of the limited number of data points
available for our analysis (36 points), Dr.

, Brillinger's comments are somewhat
more theoretical than practical. In
response to Dr. Brillinger's comments,
FDA has calculated the estimated
slopes, the 95 percent confidence limits
of the slopes, and the squared multiple
correlation coefficient for several
‘DAWN trend lines, to verify its
statistical model. A statistically
significant decreasing trend was found
between January 1974 and Becember
1876 for amphetamine DAWN mentions
with other drugs. For amphetamine
mentions alone, however, no significant
decreasing trend was found from
January 1974 through December 1976,

2. The results of FDA's analysis of the
DAWN data were quite different from
Dr. de Cani's findings. For example,
DAWN mentions in conjunction with
other drugs for all Schedule II anorectics
(including phenmetrazine),
demonstrated only a 5-percent decrease
from 1975 {90 mentions) to 1976 (85
mentions) for the medical examiners,
compared to & 27.3-percent decrease |
cited by Dr. de Cani. The decrease was 1
percent from 1875 (1,334) to 1976 (1,314)
for emergency room aentions, compared
to a 5-percent decrease cited by Dr. de
Canl. As for DBAWN mentions alone for
all Schedule i1 anorectic drugs, only a
0.9-percent decrease from 1975 (683
mentions) to 1976 (677 mentions) was
found.

The figures cited in Table 2 of Dr. de
Ceni's testimony paper are also - -
questionable. Because he also did not
calculate the correlations between the
DAWN mentions and the annual
production quota data, his figures of

* average monthly DAWN mentions per
1,000 kilograms of amphetamine quota
are not likely to be reliable,

3. Dr. Madansky failed to explain how
satisfactorily his statistical models fit
the observed data, He did not
demonstrate that his proposed models
were better than the linear models used
by IMS and FDA for prediction
purposes. His long-term extrapolation of
the DAWN data to the end of 1979 by
the fitted logarithmic model without
explaining the appropriate validation
procedures of the fitted model is not
convincing.

Dr. Madansky evaluated-only part of

the data presented in the October 14,
1977 notice, namely the DAWN _ .-
amphetamine mentions in conjunction .
with other drugs only; the amphetamine
DAWN mentions alone were not..
analyzed. With regard.to the correlation
of prescription sales and DAWN A
mentions, his statement i{s true that there
is no significant correlation between
1974 and 1976 for quarterly data.
However FDA's reanalysis of the
updated data base on monthly - .
prescription sales and DAWN data from
January 1974 through June 1978 does
show statistically significant .
correlations. : -

4. As to Dr, Tannenbaum’s comments
on FDA's use of the abuse rate, the
numerator of the abuse rate used by
FDA does not eppeartobe . .
overestimated. FDA excluded the jargon
and crisis center data when calculating «
this numerator in order to avoid some of
the previous criticisms of the DAWN
data. Data were excluded from the
DAWN crisis centers because of the
invalidity of crisis center contacts, the
influence of veriable case-finding
operations, and double counts. Data
reported toDAWN injargon - -
terminology were also excluded because
the reliability of the identification was
more uncertain than when the report
was made in standard medical
terminology. In addition, FDA used the .
DAWN consistently reporting panel of
emergency rooms and medical

examiners to eliminate much of the
instability of the DAWN system. These
panels are composed of the facilities
that have reported consistently during -
the time period studied. Thus, FDA's

- estimated level of abuse used in
calculating the abuse rate is not
necessarily overestimated as Dr.
Tennenbaum indicated.: .

Dr. Tannenbsum commented that

Figure 8 of the October 14, 1977 notice
{FDA's data) shows & 27 percent decline

in mentions with other drugs between

* 1974 and 1976. His calculation whs
based only on DAWN amphetamine
mentions with other drugs. When the
DAWN amphetamine mentions were
examined elone, there was no’apparent
chenge between 1974 (604 mentions) and
2976 (621 mentons), - -

“The Director thus finds no new
information in the testimony and
comments to refute the evidence of the
Qclober 14, 1877 notice on the current
abuse of amphetamines. He does,
however, find additional information
which correlates the abuse of
amphetamines with legitimate
prescribing of the drugs for the
treatment of obesity. ki iinds the

testimony of Drs. Marquardl.. Rupel, and”.
Yaffe, and Messrs. Bensinger and
Joranson especially revealing as to the

“substantial abuse of amphetamines by

high volume prescribers and dispensers
of the drug for the treatment of obesity. -
In addition, the testimonies of Drs, *
Henderson, Marquardt, and Yaffe
demonstrate that when controls are
instituted on prescribing amphetamines

" for this condition, the prescribing of the

drugs decreases very sharply without

. any deprivation or harm to persons who

have problems with obesity. Dr. ;
Henderson's testimony further revealed
that after legislation was passed in 1971,
the overwhelming majority of the
physicians in Canada did not request
permission to use amphetamines in the
treatment of obesity, which undoubtedly
indicates that amphetamines are not an
essential drug for this condition.
Moreover, this information further
corroborales the testimony of Drs, »
Griffith and Grinspoon, wko find -
amphetamines to have limited
effectiveness in weight loss.,
As to retaining the indication of dl-
emphetamine end dextroamphetamine
. for narcolepsy, and retaining the
indication of dl-amphetamine,
dextroamphetamine, and . .
methamphetamine for the treatment of
children with a behavioral syndrome,
the testimony and comments presented
on this issue unanimously supported the
tetention of these indications because of
their'medical benefit. With regard to
their potential for abuse, the Director
believes that with the removal of the
anorectic indication from the labeling of
amphetamine products, these remaining
indications will not provide a source of
the drugs for abuse, Because at least 80
percent of the legal medical use of these
drugs has been for weight reduction, the
recommended praduction quotas for
amphetamines will be sharply
decreased after the anorectic indicatio;
Is removed. As this action will - :
substantially reduce the major supply of
legally manufactured and dispensed
amphetarmines, the abuse rate of the
drugs will also ke reduced as the major
source of their diversion will be _ .
eliminated. The Director therefore
concludes thet the continued use of
these drugs for narcolepsy and the
treatment of children with behavioral
syndromes at this time appears to have
more medical benefit than risk for .
abuse. S e
The October 14, 1977 notice also
invited participants to comment on the
merits of requiring patient labeling
which would provide warnings against
using amphetamines for weight
reduction {and ugainst using

e T

41558 Federal Register / Vol. 44, No. 138 / Tuesday, July 17, 1979 / Notices

53

methamphetamines to treat narcolepsy).
Based upon comments received and
other available information, the Director
concludes that this issue should be
deferred until after the action propesed
in this notice is implemented. If at that
time he determines that legally - -
manufactured amphetamines continue
to be abused at an unacceptable level,
he will consider patient labeling for
amphetamines as an additional measure

to curb their abuse. Patient labeling for -

nmphetamines may also be required
when the rules have been promulgated
under which patient labeling will be
required for prescription products in
general, et
Recent Information

Since the December 2, 1977 hearing,
FDA obtained additional DAWN and

National Prescription Audit (NPA) data -

through June 1978 which permitted an
updated analysis. Furthermore, FDA
was able to obtain data sets from
January 1974 through June 1978 on a
monthly basis rather than quarterly;
thus providing many more individual
data points on which to bage the
statistical analyses. As stated: .
previously in the document, the original
analysis of the 1974 through 1978 data
excluded the jargon and crisis center
data when calculating the numerator of
the abuse rate In order to avuid some of
the previous criticisms of the DAWN
data, It excludad data from the DAWN
crisls centers because of the invalidity
of crisis center contacts, the influence of
variable case-finding operations, and
“double counts, It also excluded from the
first analysis data reported to DAWN in
jargon terminology becausa the
reliability of the identification was more
--uncertain than when the report was
made in standard medical terminology.
.. In addition, FDA used the DAWN
" consistently reporting panel of
emergency rooms and medical
examiners to eliminate much of the
instability of the DAWN system, These
panels are composed of the facilities
which have reported consistently during
the time period studied. [
To respond to some of the eriticisms
of its original analysis, FDA undertook
an updated statistical analysis of
monthly DAWN mentions and monthly
NPA data for the period January 1974
through June 1978 to address several
issues raised in these criticisms at the
December 2, 1977 public hearing,
namely: (1) to detarmine whether a
correlation exists between the monthly
DAWN data and the monthly NPA data,
. (2) to assess the trend over time for both
DAWN mentions and NPA data and to
fit these data with an appropriate -

statistical madel, (3) to examine the
effects of including or excluding jargon
groups for amphetamine DAWN
mentions alone and amphetamine
DAWN mentions with other drugs, and
{4) to evaluate the relationship of
DAWN mentions for amphetamines
versus DAWN mentions for other
anorectic drugs and phenmetrazine
when adjusted for their relative
prescription sales, - ° .

FDA's updated statistical analyse:
generally show a consistent pattern
whether data from the jargon group are
included or excluded and whether
DAWN mentions for amphetamines are
used alone or with other drugs. These
analyses demonstrate the following:

1. There are observed and predicted.
downward trends in amphetamine.
DAWN inentions and amphetamina
prescription sales over this period. (See
Figures 1and 2)

2. There is a significant positive
correlation between reported monthly
DAWN mentions and the monthly NPA
data, As an example of the pattern of ~
this observed correlation, Figure 3
displays a scatter diagram for DAWN
mentions for amphetamines alone
(jargon excluded) on which the
estimated sample correlation is 9.83
{P<0.01).

3. Despite observed and predicted
downward trends in both monthly
DAWN mentions and NPA prescription
sales for the period January 1974 through
June 1978, the amphetamines have-
consistently demonstrated over all
months statistically significant increases
in DAWN mentions compared with
other anorectic drugs above what would
be expected when these DAWN
mentions are adjusted for their relative
prescription sales. The procedures for
adjusting DAWN mexntions by their
peescription sales are reasonahle
because of the existing significant
correlations between these two data
sats, Figures 4(a) through 4{d) display
these relative increases in DAWN
mentions associated with amphetamines
for four data sets: (a) amphetemines ..
DAWN mentions alone, jargon group
excluded, {b) amphetamines DAWN
mentions alone, jargon group included,
{c) amphetamines DAWN mentions with
other drugs, jargon group excluded, and
(d) amphetzamines DAWN mentions with
other drugs, jargon group included.
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In addition to reanalyzing the DAWN
data, FDA has also reviewed -
information made available since the
publication of the October 14, 1977
notice. This information from DEA, .
NIDA, and the National Clearinghouse
for Poison Control Centers demonstrates
that there still remains a substantial
degree of amphetamine abuse. This _ -
recent information {s described below as
it relates to the conclusions and data
described in the Octcber 14, 1977 notice.

1. Among prescription drugs, the
anorectic agents are commonly used for .
non medical purposes (p. 55375);

The October 14, 1977 notice referred
to a household survey conducted in 1975
and 1976 on drug use among a sample
population in communities throughout
the United States. According to recent
update from NIDA, the prescription
stimulant category is still the category of
prescription drugs most abused. The
update also shows that there has been
an increase in the number of 18-25 year

. 'olds who have engaged in the non

medical use of stimulants. Data from the
rural population study and veterans
were not available for an update.

2. Among the anorectic drugs,
amphetamines account for more abuse
episodes than other drugs in the class
and also have the highest rate of abuse
of all drugs in tke class (pp. 55375- |
55378). .

As stated above, from January 1875
through June 1978 the reported DAWN
mentions associated with amphetamines
were approximately 8 to 14 times higher
than reported DBAWN mentions for other
anorectic drugs when adjusted for their
relative prescription sales, The monthly
data between January 1974 and June
1978 also reveal significant positive
correlations between amphetamine
DAWN mentions and NPA data.

3. There has been no significant
decrease in the rate of abuse of
amphetamines over the past 3 years {p.
55379). :

The NPA data show that the legal
prescribing of amphetamines decreased
28 percent from 1976 to 1977 and 14
percent from 1977 to 1978, while the
prescribing of other anorectics
decreased only 9 percent from 1878 and »
1977 and 8 percent from 1977 to 1978,
Despite the decline in legal prescribing,.
information available after publication
of the October 4, 1977 notice shows that
there still exists a significant amount of
amphetamine abuse. Data, updated .
through June 1978, demonstrate that
DAWN mentions for amphetamines
correlate to their prescription sales and
still have consistently remained -.. .
proportionately higher than mentions for

other anorectics relative to their
proportional volunie of prescription
sales. The conclusion that no significant
reduction in the relative occwrence of
amphetamine abuse has occurred since
January 1974 also continues to be
‘supported by recent data from the
National Clearinghouse for Poison
Contro! Centers. These data record the
collective experience of the 580 poison
centers throughout the United States,
For 1977 the data still indicate that
Schedule I drug products containing
amphetamine continue to be reported
more often each year as causing injury
to users than do all anorectics in
Schedules I1f and IV combined. In

there wasw 10 percent incréase i
legally manufactured dosage units of
amphetamine and methamphetamine -
stolen in 1977 over 1976 (5.5 million
dosage units in 1977 vs. 5.0 million in

1973). For other anorectics, there wasa,

27-percent decrease in dosage units |
stolen in 1977 compared with 1976 (4.0
million dosage units in 1977 vs, 5.5
million in 1976).

The substantial decrease in the legal
prescribing of amphetamines as "
reported by the NPA is much greater

- than the decline in the retail prescription

sales in general (26 percent vs. 3 percent
in 1977 and 14 percent vs. 1 percent in
1978). This decline could be attributed to
the publicity about Congressional
hearings in 2976, the public hearing on .
amphetamines in the latter part of 1977,

‘and actions by certain States to reduce

or prohibit prescribing and dispensing
amphetamines for the management of
exogenous obesity.

4. A significant amount of
amphetamines used for nonmedical
purposes comes from supplies that are
legally manufactured, shipped, or
prescribed (p. £6383).

As previously stated, DEA theft
reports indicate that thefts of legally
manufactured dosage units of
amphetamine and methamphétamine in
1977 increased 10 percent over 1976 {5.5
million dosage units in 1977 vs. 5.0
million in 1978}, compared to a 27-
percent decrease in thefts of other- -

. anorectics, These reports suggest that

amphetamines remain the anorectic
drugs most frequently desired by those
who steal anorectic drugs. In addition to
theft reports, reports from DEA's
Diversion Investigation Units (DIU) still
show that health professionals,. . ..

. including physicians and pharmacists,
are involved in diverting a substantial

amount of legal amphetamines to illicit
use, .

. 5,There is no new evidence to ' -

challenge the previous FDA conclusion

that arephetamines do not have any
edvantage over the phetami
anorectic drugs as an adjunct in the *
treatment of obesity {p. 55384},

. No new evidence to refute this

lusion was submitted orally or as

comments to the December 2, 1977 -~
public hearing. There is a greater degree

. of abuse evident for amphetamines than

the other anorectics. This is undoubtedly
an advantage for the use of )
nonamphetamine anorectics rather than
amphetamines as adjuncts in the
treatment of obesity.

Reacent Actions by State Organizations -

-

- and Authorities
addition, DEA theft reports indicate that |

This notice earlier described
-testimony presented at the December 2,
1977 public hearing on the control of
amphetamine abuse in the States of
Maryland and Wisconsin by the
promulgation of regulations, Besides
State authorities, several health
organizations submitted commenty
which are on file in the office of the
Hearing Clerk. Among them, comments
were received from the American
College of Physicians, American
Pharmaceutical Association,
Connecticut Department of Consumer
Protection, the Mississippi Medical
Association, and the Wisconsin Nurses -
Association. All of these organizations .
support the removal of the anorectic
indication from the labeling of
amphetamine products. The Duval
County Medical Socidty submitted
information on their amphetamine abuse -
and contrel program, while the
American College of Physicians .
* submitted the following statement: *

“Because long-term treatment of .
obesity with amphétamines has been
shown to be ineffective and because

-amphetamines are potentially dangerous
drugs, they skould not be used in the
treatment of obesity. The American > *
College of Physicians supports
revocation of approval of amphetamines

. for use in obesity control.”

The Director of the Bureau of Drugs
notes that there is an increasing trend
among State authorities and
organizations of health professionalsto
promulgate regulations, adopt

. legislation, or institute programs to
combat the abuse of legally

manufactured amphetamines. These -
actions as described below have been
taken in response to several types of  *
diversionary activitiesincluding . -

" burglaries, thefts, forged prescriptions,
and high volume dispensers, Often, the
type of action taken by the State is in
response to recognizing a particular

-diversionary activity, such as high . ~.——.
volume prescribers and dispensers.
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With this continuing leve! of abuse of. -
legally manufactured amphelamines at
the State level, these rece 1t aclions
reflect a grave concern not only of -
public officials, but alsc of health
professionals including nurses, ~
physicians, and pharmacists. This
concern is directly related to the harmful
eifects of amphelamines upon the
individual and society. The Directar
therefore finds that these actions on the’
State level demonstrate a long-term,
wide spréad and growing concern about
the abuse of legally manufactured
amphetamine products. These actions
are described below in chronological
order by the date of implementation,
including those which were the subject
of testimauy or comments, R

1. The Board of Trustees of the Utah
State Medical Association was one of
the first organtzations of health
professionals to take action ta combat
the abuse of ampfietamines. On ‘
December 9, 1970, the Board adopted the
following resolutian: .

SINCE, the Utash Saeiety of Inter, wal
Medicine has renderes a veluable
professional and public eesvice in announcing
to the public, by formal resolution, that its
member physicians will not prescribe
amphetamines or similar drugs in the
trzatment of abeslty because use of such
drugs provides no lasting benefit in the
treatment of that condition but, instead,
frequently results in excessive and harmful
use of drugs, and -

SINCE, the Utah Society of Internal
Medicine has advanced the cause of law
enforcement and provided assistance {n
combating the drug-sbuse problem by said
resolution in which al} pharmacies and law :
enforcement officials were Informed that
prescriptions bearing the names of Society

members for such drugs should henceforth be

considered forgeries, and .- - LT :
SINCE, the Utah Stute Medical Assaciation
concurs with the findings of thx Utah Society
of Internal Medicine and other medical '
euthorities that the use of amphetamines or
similar drugs by drug abusers appearstobe” -
related to heroin addiction and to contribute
to the drug-connected crime epidemic, and
SINCE, the Utah State Medica] Association
has the responsibility to encourage its
member physicians to forego prescriptions of
drugs which have not been demonstrated as
enef, 121" ; zatient treatment and which are
likely to .12 sdrug abuse and potential
addiction, now, therefore, be it
PESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the
Utah State Medical Association that it :
. 8pproves the principle pronounced by the
+ Utah Society of Interna} Medicine, and be it
v. further
- RESOLVED that Utah State Medical
" Acsociation physicians be asked fo refrain”
" from prescribing amphetamines or similar
* drugs in the treatment of abesity, and be it
- further 3
RESOLVED that the Association send to
I each of its member physicians a copy of thix

-State passed legislation and in August

resolution in such form that any physician .
may, if he desires, indicate his approval and *
support of the resolution by affixing his
signature thereto and returning the approved

. resolution to the offices of the Association.

2. Maryland was the first Stuie that
acted through legislative action to

_control the use of amphetamines for the _

treatment of obesity. In July 1972 the

1973 the State's Board of Medical ’
Examiners promulgated regulations that
essentially restricted the use of .
amphetamines to the treatment of .
narcolepsy and hyperkinesis, In rare or
exceptional cases (i.e. intractable
obesity), amphetamines may be used for
other purposes, In all such cases,
however, the prescribing physician must
submit a written justification to the
Board. In addition ta these restrictions,
all prescriptions of amphetamines must
contain no more than a 34-day supply.

3. In 1874 the Arizona Board of
Medical Examiners enacted a rule which
states that the Board found that
amphetamines and sympathomimetic
drugs have a high potential for ahuse,
The rule allows the use of
amphetemines and sympathomimetic
drugs 1o treat obesity enly after all other
alternatives have been exhaested, and
then for no more than 30 days. It states
that any violation of this rule constitutes
a danger to the public health and safety,
and is considered unprofessional

_conduct,

4.In late 1878, the Northern Kentucky
Pharmacists Association and the Boone
County and Campbell-Denton Medical
Societies adopted a program %o reduce
the abuse of legally manufactured L.
amphetamines. Under this voluntary ~ *
amphetamine control program,
physicians agreed to prescribe -
amphetamines only for narcalepsy, ©,
hyperkinesis in children, or neurotic
fatigue, and to write the diégnosis.or
“Phone me if necessary” on the
prescription. Only original container
amounts are to be specified, and
patients are advised to allow the
pharmacist 2 to 3 days to order the drug.
The program was adopted because
people were obtaining amphetamines
with prescriptions, either legal or .- -
counterfeit, and selling them. Also, there
was a large number of burglaries to
obtain the drugs, L

5. The following resolution was .
ratified by the Rhode Island Medical
Society House of Delegates in May 1977:

WHEREAS amphetamines play no .
significant therapeutic role in the treatment of
intractable obesity, and . .

WHEREAS amphetamines have a high
potential for abuse, and .

WHEREAS the drug abuse committee of
the Rhode Island Medical Society and the .
Food and Drug Administratibn are concerned
about the hazards involved in the treatment’

* olintractable obesity by amphetamines, and

the Rhode Island Section of the
Amerfczen College of Obstetrics and -
Gynecology, and the Rhode !sland Chapter of _
the American Academy of Pedistricians, and
the Rhode Islend Society of Internal Medicine

* have taken similar posilions .

- + + . Therefore be it resolved that the
Rhode Island Medical Society be opposed to
the use of amphetamines in the treatm of
intractable obesity and that this use be
limited to specific well recognized medical
indications such as narcolepsy, minimal brain
dysfunction in ¢hildren (hyperkinetic
behavior disorders) and certain sejzure
disorders. .

6. On July 15, 1977, legislation was
passed in New Hampshire on the
dispensing of controlled substances. Ii;
essence, although a physician may
administer controlled substances, he or
she cannot dispense them unless there is
a medical emergency. Furthermore, in.
such an emergency, a Schedule I drug
may be dispensed only in 7-day
supplies. Although the law is not
specifically aimed at amphetamines, the
State’s experience witl high-volyme
dispensers was an Important factor in
instituting this law.

7. In response to the December 2, 1977
public hearing, the Duval County
Medical Society of Jacksonville, Florida,
submitted information on their ..
amphetamine abuse and contro}
program. As described in their
submission, physicians and pharmacists

", in Jacksonville in 1977 instituted a

voluntary plan to limit the use of
amphetamine, methamphetamine, - *
phenmetrazine, and methaqualone. -

.. ‘These substances were removed from

pharmacy-shelves to eliminate thefts, A °
48-hour delay in filling prescriptions
allows the pharmacist to verify the N
prescription and to order froma
wholesaler. Prescription sizes are
standardized prepackaged amounts so
that there are no “leftovers", And
finally, the Jocal medical association
formally stated to its members that
stimulants should not be prescribed for
obesity. The immediate result of this
effort was an 81-percent reduction in the
smount of amphetamines preseribed,
The Florida State medical and
pharmaceutical associations have
endorsed this program and have asked
ts initiators to expand it State-wide, -
8. In May 1977 the Mississippi State
Medical Association adopted the
following policy on prescribing.~ -
amphetamines: “Prescribingof ..
amph ines and othar stimulant ~..
drugs should be limited to specific, well.
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récognized indications. The use of these
drugs has no rational basis in the -
treatment of obesity.” e

9. The South Carolina Commission on

Alcohol and Drug Abuse has convened a
task force to investigate the problem of
drug abuse in women, Through this task
force, which has representatives of the -
State medical and pharmaceaticsl
associations, the problem of :
amphetamine abuse was identified. In
1978 the South Carolina Medical
Asgociation endorsed the following -
resolution; it was subsequently
endorsed by the South Carolina
Pharmaceutical Assaciation:

* WHEREAS, the prescribing of
amphetamines for weight contre] has resulted
in its abuse in some communities in South
Carolina: and o

WHEREAS, extended use of this drug in
waight control has resulted in what appears *
to be a medically-sanctioned tolerance and
dependency by some patients and has
resulted in the added abuse of amphetamines
as astreetdrug:and . - .

WHEREAS; the Insomnia and psycho-
motar agitation resulting from overuse of this
drug can lead to the abuse of other drugs,
stich as sedative-hypnotics, and at times
results in acute psycholic episodes;: NOW
THEREFORE

BE IT RESOLVED that the South Carolina -
Medical Association go on reocrd as

pposing the use of amph ines for weight
conlrol, and, therefoze, .

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the

" South Carolina Medical Association stipulate

that prescribing or dispensing these drugs for
this purpose is considered unethical and poor
medical practice. . . .

A bill based on the Michigan statute
regulating amphetamine prescriptions is
currently pending before the South
Carolina legislature. Although the bill
would permit the use of amphetamines
fo treat obesity, a thorough physioal
examination and a complete history of
the patient would have to be taken, the
therapy would be limited to 15 A
-milligrams a day, the maximum .
prescription size would be 30 days, the
maximum duration of therapy would be
90 days, and a diet for weight loss would
have to be prescribed along with the
amphetamines, In addition, the proposed
bill would impose diagnostic conditions
that would have to be met prior to
prescribing amphetamines for the
treatment of hyperactivity and
narcolepsy. .

10, On August 23, 1978, the
Pennsylvania Medical Society adopted a
position statement which encourages its
members to discontinue the use of
amphetamines as an anorexiant because
of its deleterious effects. Part of the .
slatement is quoted halow which refers

to the harm that can be caused by

. themgelves, When the drug is discontinued, a
- .psychologic vacuum {s created that must be

- 13. On January 26, 1979, the

amphetamines even when usedon a
short-term basis for weight reduction.’ .

Conditions mindful of amphetamines
potential for harm assert that in weight

. reduction the exposure s limited to a B

relatively short period. Although this may be
the Inteation, it often does not turn out that
way. People who have problems controlling
their need for constant gratification as
indicated by compulsive eating find it hard to
pul aside a medication that makes them feel k
good. Many patients consider their altempt to
lose weight doomed to failure once they loss .
this magic potion that pretects them from :

filled with food. Some patients gain back

even more weight then they have lost. So
although short-term use of the drug causes a
short-(engweight loss, it also helps the

patient avoid the issue of changing his eating
habits. For these reasons we doubt the o
wisdom of using amphetamines for welght -
reduction under any circumstances, :

“. 11. As described in Dr. Rupel's. .
. testimony at the public hearing, the

Wisconsin Board of Medical Examiners
promulgated final rules on June'1, 1978,

" that prohibit dispensing and prescribing . -

Schedule IT drugs for the treatment of
obesity, Amphetamines are permitted . .
only for the treatment of narcolepsy,
hyperkinesis, epilepsy, and drug-

induced brain dysfunction.

12, The Medical Practice Board of
Michigan approved a rule in 1978 which
restricted the prescribing of
amphetamines. Although amphetamines
may still be used to treat obesity, the

, Michigan rule limits the therapy to a

maxirum of 15 milligrams a day, a
maximum prescription size of 30 days,
and a maximum duration of therapy of
90 days. According to the Board, a major
factor in adopting the administrative
rule was the prescribing of
amphetamines for nonmedical urposes,
generally occuring under the guise of the
treatment of obesity. :

Washington State Medical Disciplinary
Brard adopted rules prohibiting the
dispensing or prescribing of any

Schedule II stimulant drug for the
treatment or control of exogenous
obesity. The Board had "recagnized that.
indiscriminate or non-therapeutic .
prescribing of these drugs was a drug
abuse problem in Washington.” This )
action was followed by the enactment of
State legislation on May 2, 1979 which
made the prescribing of Schedule 11
stimulant drugs for weight control an
illegal act. Violation of this law is a
crime punishable by up to two years
imprisonment, and fine of up to two

. thousand dollars. Schedule II stimulants

are allowed to be prescribed for the

* treatment of hyperkinesis, drug-induced

. amphetamines and sympathomimetic
" amines. The rules prohibit the. .

. sympathomimetic amine drugs are

brain dysfunction, and certain other
indications, . T
14. On Febrary 14,1979, the New - _
Jersey State Board of Medical =~ = °
Examiners in the Division of Consumer
Affairs of the Department of Law and
Public Safsty adopled regulations
cancerning the prescribing,
administering, and dispensing of

prescribing, ordering, dispensing, - .

_administering, selling, or transferring of
' . any amphetamines or sympathomimetic

amine drug or compound designated as

" & Schedule II Controlled Dangerous

Substance under New Jersey law, for : -

‘use in welght management, dieting, or

any anorectic purpose, or for the R
treatment of fatigue. Amphetamines and .
permitted for the treatment of .
narcolepsy, hyperkinesis, and drug- - °
induced brain dysfunction, . )

" Besldes the aL.ove actions, many

* states have adopted policies which do

not permit reimbursement for .
prescriptions containing amphetamines
for weight loss. A major reason for these
policies is the reluctance of the states to

-use public funds to reimburse .
Pprescriptions for a drug whose limited
effectiveness in the treatment of obesity
is substantially outweighed by its high
potential for abuse, Although many
states do not allow the drug's
reimbursement when prescribed for
weight loss, there appears to be no
restrictions when amphetamines are
usnd in the treatment of hyperkinesis
and narcolepsy. - .

Benefit Risk Ratia. N

AsDr.John D, Griffithof NIDA ...

- testified at the public hearing, thereis a
" risk associated with the use of

amphetamines, directly related to their

. action as a central nervous system
. stimulant that can produce toxic

reactions, de;;en'dency. and social
dysfunction. Morever, there is no new
evidence that amphetamines have any
offsetting advantage over the - )
nonamphetamine anorectic drugsasan -
adjunct in the treatment of obesity. The
anorectic review initiated by FDA\i -
1972 led to the coaclusion that there are
no-significant differences among the
anorectic drugs in their effectiveness in
enhancing weight loss over the short
term as adjunctive treatment to diet in
the management of obesity. Since that
time no evidence has been presented to

. the agency to show that this conclusion

was in error. Specin:ally, no adequate
and well-controlied trials are known to
the Bureau of Drugs which demonstrate
that amphetamines carTy an relative
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advantage over other anorectic drugs'in
the management of obesity.
Besides the availability of other
anorectic drugs with Jess risk and
equivalent eflicacy, the efficacy of
amphetamines is limited to a very short
period, usually 3 to 4 weeks. Moreover, ,
this exposure often is not limited to 4
weeks according to Dr. Lester Grinspoon
of the Harvard Medical School. He
testified at the public hearing that
“people who have problems controlling
there need for constant gratification, as *
indicated by compulsive eating, find it
hard to put aside a medication that
makes them feel good [euphoria is & side
effect of amphetamines]. What is more,
many palients consider their attempts to
lose weight doomed to failure once they
have lost this magic potion which
protects them from themselves, When
the drug is discontinued, a psychological
vacuum is created which has to be filled
with food. On occasion patients have
gained back even more weight than they
lest, & condition commonly known as
rebound phenomenon. So, although
short-term use bf the drug causes a -
short-term weight loss, it also helps the
nalient to avoid the issue of changing
bis eating habits." In addition, Dr. -
Grinspoon testified that after the 4-week
period amphetamines are no longer
effective as anorectics unless the user
increases the dose, thus creating a real
potenlial for psychologic dependency
and abuse, ~ -
From the testimony presented at the
public hearing, togsther with
information from the DEA and the
NIDA, the Director of the Burean of-
Drugs finds that amphetamines are
being prescribed and dispensed by "
certain physicians for weight logs -
beyond the 4-week period {the physician
labeling states a few weeks). Moreover,
patients 2re not only using X
amphetamines for an exlended time for
weight loss, but they frequently increase
the dosage in an attempt to deal with
the diminishing anorexic effect of the :
drug. The Director therefore finds that
the use of amphelamines in the
treatment of gbesity beyond the —
conditions of use specified in the
physician labeling is.exposing patients
to the risk of harm{ul effects through the
chronic use of amphetamines. In
addition to patients who become
involved in a pattern of amphetamine -
abuse through medical use for the
reatment of obesity, other people abuse
amphetamines solely for the euphoric
and energizing effect, R
Besides the damage lo ~ aciety in the
form of neglect of family and work,
financial irresponsibilily, crime, and
other antisacial behavior, the Director

. amphetamines also produces harmful
effects on the health of the user. These . -

finds that chronic abiise of

harmful effects fall into three major
categories: (1) central nervous system |
effects: (2) habituation, dependence, and
addiction; and {3) amphetamine o
psychosis. < :

1. Central Nervous System Effects.
With the development of lolerance to -
the peripheral adrenergic effects (such ~
as blood pressure response}, central
nervous system toxic reactions have
been reported. These reactions usually

- involve loss of hypothalmic temperature

regulation, with hyperthermia, leading to
cardiovascular collapse, convulsions,
and death, Convulsionx are most often

_associated with hyperthermia but can

also be a complication of high-dose
amphetamine use. Status epilepticus, the
characteristic seizure pattern, presents a
particularly serious threat to the
individual. Permanent severe brain
damage can result from status
epilepticus. Often multiple drug
ingestion.will potentiate the
epileptogenic effect of sfimulants, for
example, with phencyclidine and
lysergic acid. Cerebral vascular
complications can be life-threatening
and include secondary intracranial
hypertension leading to subarachnoid
hewiorrhage. Stimulant’ abusers with a’
history of congenital cerebral aneurysm"
and arteriovenous malformation are at
an added risk of intracerebral
hemorrhage. A necrotizing angiitis has

. been reported in amphetamine abusers.

This vascular inflammatory response is

especially severe in the cerebral and

renal arteries. IR
' 2.Habituation, Dependence, and

- Addiction. Scientific literature has - .-

shown various degrees of dependence
on amphetamines, ranging from mild

using the drugs chronically. The more
severe cases of dependence show all the
characteristics of true addiction.
*According to Dr. Orina Kalant in “Tlee
Amphetamines: Toxicity and * -
Addiction,” (Ref. 24) persons who are

* unable to terminate the continous use of

amphetamines have certain features in
‘ common. “All of them suffered periadic
ot chronic states of intoxication, with
the usual signs of central nervous
system overstimulation and sometimes
sympathetic overactivity. Many had

' anorexia, insomnia, irritability, and

erratic behavior. Abuse of other drugs
was common, especially barbiturates
: which were taken to counteract the

- insomnia, Development of toleance was

~common, and often marked, and the

. abuse preceded the onset of the - *
. habituation to strong compulsion and to * psychosis. There is no characleristic

hardship, r;eglect of family, and

" antisocial behaviour such as theft and

forgery of prescriptions. In eddition,
physical dependence has been indicated
recently by the discovery of certain..
abnorms) electroencephalographic and
electro-oculographic patterns during
amphetamine withdrawal, which are
abolished immediately by restoring the
drug” (p. 120). Dr. Lester Grinspoon in
“The Speed Culture” states that “the
esgential ‘normalify® and general
reliability of the initial euphoric effect of

amphetamine is what makes the drugso

likely to produce dependence” (Ref. 25,
p. 173). - o

3. Amphetamine Psychosis. Acute
“amphetamine psychosis” is one of the
most widely resognized phenomena of
psychiatric change associated with
amphetamine use. Most often the
psychosis Is a result of chronic abuse,
but even single large doses can produce
a toxic hallucinatory paranoid panic’
state. The emphetamine psychosis was
at one time thought to be seen only in
“latent" schizophrenics, but this view
has been refuted by evidence from many
scientific publications. A schizophrenia-
like state can be induced in laboratory
animals by administration of
amphetamine. The most common
clinical symptoms of amphetamine
psychosis are paranoid delusions and
vivid hallucinations of all senses.
Occasionally the patient is confused and
violently excited. Treatment consists
essentially of drug withdrawal, though
many patients have received neddless
shock and other therapy because of
mistaken diagnosis. Unless treatment.is
directed to the drug abuse rather than to
the psychosis, the relapse rate is high.

In most cases of amphetamine
psychasis, 1 to 5 years of chronic drug

mental or emotional picture by which a
high risk patient can be identified in
advance. :

After sub chronic and chronic use and
during amphetamine withdrawal,

- symploms of depression canbe - -

-profound. Prolonged sleep and lethargy
-can lead to severe depression and
suicide in some amphetamine users, Th
psychiatric manifestations of . - "
amphetamine abuse are an important
cause for hospitalization among
adolescents and young adults.
While the hazards from amphelamine

- abuse are many, little evidenceis * ~ .

available to conclude that these risks
oceur in patients under treatment for
narcolepsy or hyperkinesis. Children

- receiving daily amphetamine for

probiems of obtaining ths Jarge doses  « learning disabilities have not shown

required led in many cases to financial

either growth retardation or a later
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tendency to drug abuse. Narcoleptics 15. Administrator, Drug Enforcement - dextroamphetamine is regarded as a.-- ...,
have been followed for periods of 20 to Administration, latter to Director, Bureau of single-entity drug for the purposes of - -
Drugs, FDA, July 13, 1978, and 37-page this notice. L

attachment, updating information. Such drugs are regarded as new drugs®.

hedules. The effi of *
e e ooy - 18 Acting Director, National Institute on (21 U.S.C. 321(p)). Supplemental new .

amphetamines in those patients has

Drug Abuse, memorandum to Director, . PR .
blgep s:llp;m;(ed by well-controlled . Bureau of Drugs, FDA, July 16, 1978, and 11~ _ ;ihru%af;)pel;pca‘\mns;:e rec&uired to revise .
_clinical studies. AR . page attach “Update on Amphetamine/ | 1he ing in and to update préviously _

' approved applications providing for .-
Ref S !

elerance 17. Acting Director, Division of Poison such drugs. An approve(! saw drug ..

The following items, as well as | Control, Bureau of Drugs, memorandum to application is a requirer. s, frs

8 . )
statistical analyses of the DAWN data,”  Director, Bureau of Drugs, FDA, July 24,1978,  marketing such drug produ 3., .o+
are on file and available for inspection ~  and 1-page attachment, “Update on In addition to the product: specifically
in the office of the Hearing Clerk, at the ~ Amphetamine Data.” named above, this notice applies to any
address specified at the beginning of 18, Anthony, |, C., “The Effect of Faderal drug product that is nat the subject of an
this notice. Drug Law on the Incidence of Drug Abuse.” * gonioved new drug application and is
. . Journal of Health, Politics, Policy, and Law, *  ; dentical d .
1, Director, Mational Institute on Drug - ; : identical to a product named above. It

Spring 1979, . (

Abuse, memorandum to Director, Bureau of plg, g‘Baslc Neurochemistry,” 2d Edition, may also be_ agphcable. under 21 CFR
Drugs, Foed and Drug Administration, March  Edited by Siage), G. J.. R, W. Albers, R. 3106, toa su?.l.lar or rela!e‘d drug .
24,1977, and attached reports: “Anorectics,”  Katzinan, and B. W, Agzanoff, Little, Brown & preduct that is not the subject of an =
11 pp. and tabulation “Drug Use AmongHigh  Co., Boston, 1978, p. 721-722 - approved new drug application. It is the R
Sciiool Seniors in 1975 and 1976, 2pp. 20. “The Pharmacological Basis of responsibility of every drug - .

2. Natiosal Institute ori Drug Abuse, “An Therapeutics,” 5th Edition, Edited by manufacturer or distributor to review .
Invesligation of Selectzd Rural Drug Abuse Goodman, S., and A. Gilman, MacMillan, this notice to determine whether it .
Programs,” DHEW Publication No. (ADM) New York 1975, p. 496-497. _ covers any drug product that the person
77-451, U.S. Government Printing Oifice, .21, Meyler, L. and A, Herxhelmer, *Side manufactures or distributes, Such :
Washington, 1977, 20 pp. Effects of Drugs,” Williams and Wilkins, person may request an o in.io of th

3. Robins, L., “The Relationship of .. Baltimore, 1968, p. 3-7, applicability of this noti P b n .?.-
Arphetamine Use to Current Adjustment,” 22, “Cusrent Concepts on Amphetamine dru rodutﬁ b itin HCe 10 a specilic
unpublished paper, 1977, 13 pp. Abuse,” Edited by Ellinwood, E. H., and S, i Dg p Labelt ¥ wriling to the Division

4. “National Brescription Audit, Cohen, N. L M. H. Rockville, MD, 1972, .of Drug Labeling Campliance (address. : -
Therapeutic Category Report,” IMS America,  Chapter 17-19, . . given Bb""?)' "
Ambler, PA, 23, “Clinical Neurology,” Edited by Baker, A. Effectiveness classification. The

5. Drug Enforcement Administration, US. * - A. B., and L. H, Baker, Harper and Row, New  Food and Drug Administration has
Department of Justice, “Study of Prescription ~ York, 1876, Vol. 2, Chapter 20, p, 25. reviewed all available evidence and
and Drug Abuse Trends of CSA I, HI, &nd IV- 24. “The Amphetamines: Toxicity and concludes that single-entity drug
Amphetamine and Other Anorectic Drugs, Addiction,” 2d Edition, Kalant, 0.]., products containing amphetamine or
January 1, 1974-December 30, 1976, IMS University of Toronto Press, Toronto, 1073, dextroamphetamine, or a salt thereof, or
Anmetica, Ambler, PA, 1977, 83 pp. 25. Grinspoon, L. and P, Hedblom, “The methamphetamine hydrochloride, or ;ﬂ- i

6 Food and Drug Admintaration data from  Speed Culture; Amphetamine Use and Abuse  pyothamphetamine hydrochloride ages
Poison Control Center reports on anorectics in America,” Harvard University Press, 1. Effective for the indicati e a‘é‘:’
for the years 1972, 1973, 1974, 1875, 4 pp. Cambridge, 1975. . laboli dit bull cations 1n tae - - .

7. Administrator, Drug Enforcement 26. Finney, D. ., “Statistical Logic in the abe 08 concilions Selow. - 1
Administration, letter to Commissioner of Monitoring of Reactions Jo Therapeutic 2, Effectivé but lack evidence.of safety.
Foed and Drugs, December 30, 1978, and Drugs,” Methods of Information in Med foruseasa short-terfn adjunctinthe ..
attached DEA report, “Amphetamine Vol. 10, No. 4, p. 237245, 1971, management of obesity., e
Diversion," 88 pp, . . . (For purposes of this notice a rixture

Stimulant Data,”

8. Drug Enforcement Administration, U.S. Qonclusxons .of amphetamine and A NI
Department of Juslice, "DEA Laboratory The Director of the Bureau of Drugs dextroamphetamine is regarded as a -
Analyses: Schedule I, IIJ, and IV concludes that the evidence of single-enltity drug product}: oo

Anorectics,” March 186, 1976, 36 pp.

9. Hearings before the Subcommittee on
Monopoly of the Salect Commlittee on Small
Business, United States Senate, 94th
Congress, 2d Session, on Present Status of
Competitton in the Pharmaceutical industry,
U.S. Government Printing Office,

B. Conditions for oppreval and

continuing misuse and abuse of
marketing. The Food and Drug

amphetamines, the severe risk of )
dependence and harmful effects that Administration is prepared to approve
they present, and the availability of - ‘abbreviated new drug applications and-
alternative drugs with less risk create an  supplements to previously approved
unfavorable benefit-to-risk ratio in the new drug dpplications under the -
Washington, 1977, pp. 14433-15357. continued marketing of the drugs foruse  conditions described herein: ca
10. Minutes of the Sixth Meeting, as an anorectic agent when compared to 1. Form of drug. The drug is in
Neuralogic Drugs Advisory Commiltee, Food - the limited benefit expected. Therefore  capsule, tablet, or liquid form sujtable -.
and Drug Administration, Bureau of Drugs, the Director proposes to remove the for oral administration. It may be in
F?{u‘?l\rly ;-}-4. :lx!gl?. 24 pp. - ﬁ indication folx)- the management of controlled-release form. =~ - -
« “National Disease an erapeutic o i i 7 37 i
IndexDrug Flor 1518 Amerton, }fm btes PA, 3xo°enogs Ot esxt}; from the labeling of b 2, Laﬂl:elmg conditions, a. Tlfe label .
12, Drug Enforcement Adminietration Dat rug products containing an ears the statement, “Caution: Federal -
on NPA doug liat under'ect D}:Wrx"v tode | amphetamine, Accordingly, the July 18, law prohibits dispensing without
numbers, 95;’- bl 1974 Federal Register notice is amended  prescription.” . - R
13. Peraon, P H. Jr., “The Drug Abuse to read as follows, nsofar as it pertains b. The drug is labeled to comply with
Warning Network: A Stalistical Perspective,” 10 smgle-e{mly drug products containing  all requirements of the act and -
Public Health Reports, 81{5):395-402, 1078, amphetamine, dextroamphetamine, regulations, and the labeling bears T
14, Food and Drug Administration, Notice methamphetamine hydrachloride, ordl-  adequate information for safe and
of Public Hearing, October 14, 1977, Federal methamphetamine hydrochloride. A effective use of the drug. The Indications
Register 42(189) 55374-55308, mixture of amphetamine and are as follows: . .

~.
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P et

dl-amphetamine, dextroamphetamine,
and methamphetamine are indicated as
an integral part of a total treatment
program which may include other
remedial measures [psychological,
educational, social) for a stablizing

effect in children with 2 behavioral
sx ndrome characterized by the
fallowing group of developmentally
inappropriate symptoms: moderate to
severe distractability, short attention
span, hyperactivity, emotional lability,

and impulsivity. The diagnasis of the
syndrome should not be made with
#inality when these symptoms are only
of comparatively recent arigin.
Nonlocalizing (soft) neurological signs,
\carning disability, and abnormal EEG
may or may not be present, and a
dingnosis of central nervous system
¢ysfunction may or may not be
indicated,

dl- Ampheta:nme and
uext:oamphetamme are also effective in

~e treatment of narcolepsy.

3. Marketing status. a. Markeling of
such drug products that are now the
: 2bject of an approved or effective new
Jrug application may be continued
rrovided that, on or before September
17, 1979 the holder of the application has
submitted (i} a supplement for revised
:beling as needed to be in accord with
:ze labeling conditions described in this
~atice, and complete container labeling
«{ current container labeling has not
>2en submitted, and (ii} a supplement to
2rovide updating information with
:zspect to items 6 (componants), 7
[compaosition), and 8 {mathods, facilities, i
«nd controls) of new drug application
i9;m FD-356H (21 CFR 314.1{c)) to the
exteat required in abbreviated
2pplications (21 CFR 314.1(f)).

b. For any person who does not hold
=it approved or effactive new drug
=pplicalion, the submission of an
- sbreviated new drug application (21
CFR 314.1(f)) must be obtained before

1arketing such products, For -
“apa.atmns claiming controlled -
z!zase, such supplements should
:antain studies comparing blood levels
_ceurring with the controlled-release

“srm with blood levels occurring with

-‘ngle units of the conventional form
swen multiple times. For example, when

.amparing a 30-mxllxgram controlled-
z!zase form normally given every 12
surs with a 10-milligram conventional
“x'm normally given every ¢ hours, the
amparison should involve one unit of
- controlled-release form given once
-d one-unit of the 10-milligram form

.ven every 4 hours for three doses. .
T—‘:otocals for these studies are required
:a be submitted under a Notice of
<laimed Investigational Exemption for a
New Drug (IND). Marketing before

approval of a new drug application will
subject such products, and those
persons who caused the products to be
marketed, to regulatory action. ,

OPPORTUNITY FOR HEARING

Therefore, notice is given to the
holders of the new drug applications .
and to all other interested persons that
the Director of the Bureau of Drugs
proposes to issue an order under section
505(e) of Federal Food, Drug, and

- Cosmetic Act (21 U.S.C. 355(e}),

withdrawing approval of all new drug
applications and all amendments and
supplements thereto providing for the
indication as described in this .

announcement for th®management of

" exogenous obesity, on the ground that -

nevr information has shown the drugs to
be a risk to the patient, as well as to -
society, when offered for use for this
indication, and that this information,’
evaluated together with the information
available when the applications were

approved, shows that such drugs are not

shown to be safe for use under the

conditions of use on the basis of which .

‘the applications were approved, An..
order withdrawing approval will not
issue with respect to any application(s)

" supplemented in accord with this notice
! to delete this indication, except for those

, combination products which are only
" approved for this indication,

In addition to the specific ground for
" the proposed withdrawal of approval
stated above, this notice of oppurlumty
for hearing encompasses all issues. . -

! relating to ) the legal status of the drug

* | products sub]ect toit, e.g., any .
i contention that a product is not a new
| drug because it i'generally recognized
) as safe and effective within the meaning
{ of section 201(p}) of the act or because it -

is exempt from part or all of the new

, drug provisions of the act pursuant to °

" the exemption for products marketed

- ;prior to June 25, 1938, contained in

:section 201(p) of the act, or pursuant to

Isection 107{c) of the Drug Amendments ~

lof 1962, or for any other reason.

i In accordance with section 505 of the

act {21 U.5.C. 355} and the regulations
promulgated thereunder (21 CFR parts -
1310, 314), the applicants and all other

persons who manufacture or distribute a
. drug product that is identical, related, or -

similar to a drug product named above |
{21 CFR 310.8) are hereby givenan -
opportunity for a hearing to show why
approval of the new drug applications
providing for the claim involved should

not be withdrawn and an opportunity to

raise, for administrative determination,

all issues relating to its legal status,
Aui applicent or any other person

subject to this notice who decides to

seek a hearing, shall file (1) on or belore
August 16, 1979, a written notice of
appearance and request for hearing, and
(2) on or before September 17, 1879, the
data, information, and analyses relied
upon to justify a hearing, as specified in
21 CFR 314.200. Any other interested
person may also submit comments on
thig proposal to withdraw approval. The
procedures and requirements governing
this notice of opportunity for hearing, a
notice of appearance and request for -
hearing, a submission of data,
information, and analyses to justify a

hearing, other comments, and a grant o |

denial of hearing are contained in 21
CFR 314.200. . e ~
The failure of an applicant or any
other person subject to this notice -
pursuant to 21 CFR 310.5 to file timely
-written appearance and request for
hearing as required by 21 CFR 314.200 -

constitutes and election not to make use .

of the opportunity for a hearing
concerning the action proposed with

respect to the drug product and a waiver

of any contentions concerning the legal

. status of the drug product. A request for

a hearing may not rest upon mere
allegations or denials, but must set farth
specific facts showing that thereisa
genuine and substantial issue of fact’
that requires a hearing. ¥f it conclusively

" appears from the face of the data,

information, and factual analyses in the
request for the hearing that there is no

* genuine and substantial issue of fact

that precludes the withdrawal of

. approval of the application, or when the

request for hearing is not made in the
required format or with the required

.

analyses, the Commissioner of Food and -

Drugs will enter summary judgment
against the person who requests the
hearing, making findings and
conclusions, denying a hearing.

-All submissions pursuant {o this
notice of opportunity for hearing must

. be filed in quintuplicate. Such .

subrmissions, except for data and
information prohibited fom publie
disclosure under 21 U.S.C. 331(j) or 18
U.S.C. 1903, may be seen in the office of
the Hearing Cletk between'9 a.m. and 4
p.m., Monday through Friday.

Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act sac.
502, 505, 52 Stat. 1050-1053, s amended (21
U.S.C. 352, 355} and under the suthority~
delegated to the Diréctor of the Bureau o!'
-Drugs (21 CFR'5.82}) -

Dated: July 10, 1979,
" . Richard Crout,
| Director, Bureau of Drugs,

.
{FR Doc. 79-21533 Filed 7-18-70: &:43 nn]
BILLING COUE 41100334
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PREPARED STATEMENTS

PREPARED STATEMENT OF LEE I. D0ogoLOFF, ASSOCIATE DIRECTOR FOR DrUG PoLricy,
DomMEesTIC PoLIcY STAFF, THE WHITE HOUSE

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, thank you for the opportunity
to present the Administration’s position on one of the most critical problems
facing us in the drug abuse field, the misuse and abuse of legally manufactured
drugs.

In his Message to the Congress on Drug Abuse, President Carter noted that
along with heroin, “barbiturates and other sedative-hypnotic drugs account for
90 percent of deaths from drug abuse” and stated that they should receive the
Federal Government’s primary attention. The President directed several depart-
ments and agencies to deal more effectlver with this problem. I can report that
much has been done over the past two years and attach a list of specific directives
and responses to the President’s Message relating to prescription drug abuse.

In looking at this issue, we have determined that there are different categories
of problem prescribers and dispensers. The vast majority are doctors and
pharmacists who have no eriminal intent, but through a lack of knowledge or
from outside pressures, are allowing controlled drugs to enter the illicit market.
Another group of practitioners is the impaired physician or pharmacist who has
a drug abuse problem himself. These impaired individuals are not a significant
source of drugs for others. Finally, a small minority are people who have clear
criminal intent and are dispensing or prescribing sheerly for profit. Each of
these groups requires a different response.

The Federal response must, of course, be dictated by existing law. The powers
of the Federal Government over the primary source of diversion, i.e., the retail,
physician/pharmacist level, are limited under the Controlled Substances Act. We
recognized early in the Administration that while Federal efforts in this area
were extremely important, we could only successfully face the problem by work-
ing closely with State and local authorities and concerned professional and peer
groups.

Two years ago, the White House set up an Ad Hoc Working Group to look at
the abuse of prescription drugs, in particular sedative-hypnotics, minor tran-
quilizers, and stimulants. Since that time we have taken several steps. The
Strategy Council on Drug Abuse was concerned over the diversion of legally
manufactured drugs into the illicit market. This concern is reflected in the 1979
Federal Strategy for Drug Abuse and Drug Traffic Prevention which specifically
addresses amphetamines, barbiturates, and tranquilizers, and devotes consider-
able attention to the control of these drugs.

In addition, our office, in conjunction with the NIDA, sponsored a study con-
ducted by the National Academy of Sciences’ Institute of Medicine on “Sléeping
Pills, Insomnia, and Medical Practices” which showed that hypnotics appear to
have a minimal benefit in severe insomnia, that the efficacy of these drugs is of
relatively short duration and that other medications for sleep such as flurazepam
(Dalmane) can have cumulative effects which result in daytime sedation with
continued use. Among other activities, NIDA conducted a study of sedative-
hypnotic drugs and is developing preseribing guidelines for controlled substances.
The Food and Drug Administration has reviewed amphetamines, hypnotics,
benzodiazepines, and Darvon. These reviews have resulted in FDA’s proposal to
withdraw approval for the use of amphetamines in treating obesity, a change in
labeling of hypnotic drugs, a requirement for package inserts to indicate the dura-
tion of a hypnotic’s effectiveness when used continuously, and a stronger warning
statement for Darvon.

In light of our determination that this problem could only be successfully
addressed in conjunction with State and local efforts, we took a policy decision
that, in addition to the Federal activities directed by the President, we had a
responsibility to stimulate State and local activity to identify problem areas
and to take the necessary educational, regulatory or, where appropriate, erimi-
nal measures to remedy the situation. We knew that we had a great deal to
learn about how States with effective control mechanisms were addressing this
problem and met with many State officials having responsibilities in this area.
The common element of a successful program was communication. In these
States a rapport had developed between government agencies and professional
societies which recognized a common problem and worked effectively together

to golve it.
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We also found that the most effective means of dealing with prescription drug
diversion were use of peer pressure and educational initiatives to jnform physi-
cians and pharmacists who had been identified as the source of large quantities
of controlled substances that medical societies and pharmacy associations were
concerned over their preseribing and dispensing patterns. Regulatory actions
appeared to be justified in some instances, particularly regarding the use of
amphetamines for obesity and placing restrictions on a physician’s right to
prescribe certain drugs. State and local enforcement activity, often in coopera-
tion with DEA’s Diversion Investigation Units, was used in a small percentage
of cases, most often relating to pharmacy thefts, We are attempting to inform
other States of these successes and to foster similar efforts.

Our most recent effort to do this was on September 12, when we were honored,
Mr. Chairman, to have you attend a meeting the Drug Policy Office arranged
to discuss this question. Initially, we had expected to have a limited number of
Tederal and State officials in Washington to take a closer look at what we could
do to improve the situation. Word of this meeting spread so rapidly that instead
of the 15 individuals we expected, the final meeting was attended by over 850
people. At that time, we asked the concerned Federal agencies to explain the
actions they had taken and asked representatives from seven States to describe
what they had done to deal with this problem. Finally, professional and trade
associations were encouraged to present their views. With your permission,

Myr. Chairman, I would like to submit the minutes of that meeting for the record.

In summary, the participants agreed that the health hazards of prescription
drug abuse exceeds that of heroin. The inappropriate prescribing by some physi-
cians and the diversion from pharmacies have been the primary sources of these
drugs reaching the ilicit market; only a small percentage is derived from
unscrupulous or impaired physicians, or from the diversion at the wholesaler/
manufacturer level, .

The participants concurred that no one agency, either Federal or State, could
effectively deal with the problem. Common elements of successful State pro-
grams include professional education, professional peer pressure, regulatory and
licensing activities, and law enforcement as a final resort. The establishment

of a State prescription drug task force, bringing together these elements, has

facilitated and enhanced efforts to deal with each State’s unique gituation. Many
of the States closely cooperate with DEA and NIDA, and use data generated by

Tederal information systems such as ARCOS to help identify points of diver-

sion. The need for coordinated efforts involving Federal, State, and local gov-

ernment agencies in cooperation with professional, education, and trade orga-

nizations was repeatedly emphasized.
Actions stemming from the recomm

following : )
1. The White House Drug Policy Office will convene a meeting of representa-

tives from the Drug Enforcement Administration, the Food and Drug Adminis-
tration, and the National Institute on Drug Abuse, to develop a strategy for
promoting appropriate prescribing of controlled drugs by physicians and other
health care professionals, This interagency working group, in consultation with
professional organizations, will review existing programs and educational re-
sources, and will develop new resources, for increasing physician awareness and
sensitivity to the problem of prescription drug diversion, and for positively

modifying their prescribing practices.
9 Ag a follow-up to the studies on insomnia and the use of gedative-hypnotic
drugs carried out by the National Institute on Drug Abuse and the National

Academy of Science—Institute of Medicine, the Surgeon General is planning new
initiatives that include upgrading therapeutic practices relating to insomnia
and the appropriate use of hypnotic drugs. The Surgeon General will review
the applicability of these educational initiatives to other problem areas such as

the management of stress and anxiety.
3. The White House Drug Policy 0

endations made at the meeting include the

flice will write to each State Governor con-
cerning the seriousness of prescription drug diversion. Bach state will be
encouraged to develop a prescription drug task force which could bring together
the concerned state agencies and medical, pharmacy, and other professional
societies for identifying and dealing swith prescription drug diversion.

A state task force could examine the applicability of model programs that are
working to control diversion in other states. HEW will compile and make avail-
able methods used by several states to deal with this problem. The Federal

i
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Government will also make available dat i
L : a from its data systems t ili-
nglcaldtla?sédg:&;fiigzﬁlgﬁle(;fp l]))lli(c)b{)quxilt axt;eas,t and problem phs;siciai]sflﬁ ?a?{{f%oczl'lcle
i ability to its state of regulatory acti i
drugs; peer review of questionable ibi i i specific
: ; ew prescribing practices; restricti i
its on the prescribing of controlled drugs; and t i ' peing used by s
bin ; hniques bein d b
states, such as triplicate prescriptions  ohibiting drug e oty
ates, . € D prohibiting drug companies f istri
uting preprinted prescriptions for conérolled d i humbering I g
tion blanks to enable voiding of those that rug§, orialy nambering preser’n-
o e L D o ting of those at are stolen or lost, ete. Some states
. ¢ quests for payment from Medical f
may identify problem physicians and patients; guideli b e
limit the prescribing of certain dru asrictions pu M o ablished to
] r gs through restrictions on Medicail
4. State medical licensing boards and oth 1 e Dayments.
view their current policies and procedures Thih T o oot e,
licies an which, in some states it diffi-
ggxleet% ;’:;olishaér%hﬁ;clan s hcgpse or r_estrict his prescribing pri;'irlzzgs é\tre(lllugl
o i peers adjudge him to be prescribing inappropriately or
5. The White House Drug Polic,
Dri y Office will ask the Surgeon Ge -
Z'ene a nat_ional prescription drug conference in order to %ighlighléegﬁ}ie ti?xxc%?-
aléce ’.[?lfethsls px;oble% and ti) share existing State initiatives P
. rategy ouncil on Drug Abuse will establish' an Ad ¥
l;z;esvgr:;]et lfailsxg;lg t?roblgmto;f{ prescription drug diversion, to idefr}i(t)icfyggzgghet}g
y be undertaken to decrease diversion, and to foll
ress of change in prescribing practices that th Y hay bri fhe pro:
In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, the Carter Ad inistration 1§ com e fhout:
( . , tration is committed t -
dressing the problem of prescription dru e as i s Rty
; I g abuse as one of its highest prioriti
particularly since the overuse and mi s D onata
th§ il palanty misuse of these drugs affect, disproportionately
t is our duty to work towards ensurin
€ g that these valuable medicati
;%%lé)c):ft% fﬁ‘gg:?lgv.v ;&;«:‘ ?gst contulllue our efforts, both Federal :(llcclatslt?;tse a;'g
ctitioners who abuse the privileges they h: int
tionally make available these drugs on the illicit : O e A alirs
that the most effective way of dealin i D markep SN iy
® tive 7 of g with the problem is by fosteri -
sxﬁ?it% t%%orpgx;agngﬁ ngl 1(lient1fymg sources of diversion and lslrsing %‘égf gf&iﬁ?e
and other na means of ensuring compliance with proper prescribing
State governors, legislatures and concerned i iati
) y _professional association i
gga(lili:rr%%eitéxi lfé)rg; ggf; aG program sthould take in light of their ovsvr‘;v t:lilrggl‘xrﬁ
§ X overnmen will do everything possible to -
glgcet itg:lzt &:ll%%ugzg:gustyihzmtsj o_ft néoxélttotring and control are es%aglished in al?nj?;;g-
nite ates and that the exemplary rec
ma‘x;‘lruflactl?rers and Wholes_ale;s in preventing diversion wi?l bg maigzgh?:’ddrug
e Sv e‘igo nfgrglz;’rc; uté)g(ézxtlit;numg to work with the Select Committee in this'ﬁeld
1d W stions you or your staff might have on means of deali
with it. The health and welfare of a lar, i toan 1 s
A ge portion of the American le de-
pends on our doing a better job in educatin i N ise of thes
. be patients on th
su'tl)j%tggl({:es and preventing their reaching illi%it channels. © proper use of these
you.

RESPONSES To PRESIDENTS MESSAGE T0 THE OCoONGRESS ON DRrRuUe ABUSE
RELATING TO PRESCRIPTION DRUGS

Directive. “In recognition of the devasting effects that certai i

) . L tain nonopi r

gan have if abused, I am directing the Secretary of Health, Educatiog ztrfdd%%ﬁ
are to expand resources devoted to care for abusers of barbiturates, ampheta-
amines, and multiple drug use in combination, including alcohol.” '

Respopse. The National Institute on Drug Abuse is continuing to ensure that
compulsive users qf any .tyge of drug receive high priority in NIDA funded treat-
ment programs, with priority on those individuals presenting the greatest clini-
gal 1I:eed for treat}nent. "l‘he Institute is eurrently trying to improve (1) training

%r ealth professionals in treating non-opiate drug abusers and (2) the capability
0 gqneral health care facilities under HEW jurisdiction in identifying and
tr%t_mgtproblelms of non-opiate drug abuse, 8

_ Dircctive. “T am recommending a conscious and deliberate i i -
(tilon throughout thg }Z‘ederal Government to the problems relategcfg {ﬁﬁa leilbl?stéegf

rugs that come originally from legitimate medical sources. Of particular concern



TR R

70

-are barbiturates, which despite their recognized medical use, are responsible for
many deaths and are frequently used in suicide attempts. I will instruct the
Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare to undertake a study of barbiturates
and other sedative/hypnotic drugs to determine the conditions under which they
can be most safely used.”

Response. The Department has completed the study on sedative/hypnotic drugs
and found that:

(1) these drugs are unnecessary in many cases, often actually hinder sleep,
and contribute to nearly 5,000 overdose deaths a year;

(2) benzodiazepene, with some qualification, is at least as effective as other
sedative/hypnotic drugs, has a greater margin of safety and presents less risk
of drug interactions;

.(8) the efficacy of short-acting barbitirates is questionable when administered
on a chronic basis;

(4) the existing evidence, however, does not warrant the removal of barbi-
turates from the market ;

(8) some non-barbiturate, non-benzodiazepene sedative/hypnotics have rela-
tively little clinical utility and carry serious risks.

Based on this study and the Ibnstitute of Medicine Study on the prescribing
practices of physicians, a timetable and plans for implementation of the recom-
mendations will be developed by May 1979.

Directive. “I will instruct the Secretary of Defense, the Secretary of Health,
Education and Welfare, and the Administrator of Veterans’ Affairs to review the
prescribing practices of physicians under their jurisdiction, and to discourage
the medical use of barbiturates and sedative/hypnotics except in cases where it
is unmistakably justified.”

Response. The Department of HEW is discouraging the unnecessary use of
barbiturates and sedative/hypnotics in HEW facilities through surveys, internal
reviews, dispensing restrictions, and physician education programs. Barbiturate
purchase and non-barbiturate sedative/hypnotics (except flurazepam) pur-
chases by the U.S. Public Health Service have significantly declined. An addi-
tional follow-up survey on the decreasing use of barbiturates and sedative/
hypnotics is scheduled for January and should be completed by April 1979.

The prescribing and use of barbiturates in military hospitals continues to
decrease. The Department of Defense is currently in the process of evaluating

- what might be done through the CHAMPUS program to control the licit use of

barbiturates.

The Department will also by April 1979, determine what additional actions
must be taken in the area of barbiturate use, based on the current evaluation
of last year’s efforts and the Institute of Medicine Study on Barbiturate Use.

The Veterans Administration has experienced a 22-percent decrease in the
amount of sedative/hypnotic drugs ordered thru VA pharmacies (approximately
70 percent of the total VA prescribing). -

The VA has undertaken a study of the prescribing practices in psychiatric
treatment by physicians and hospitals to determine appropriate practices identi-
fying problem cases and serve as the basis of training.

The VA has sent a Professional Services Letter on sedative/hypnotics to diree-
tors of all VA health care facilities, directed each facility to provide training
on prescribing practices and conduct workshops for Chiefs of Staff and Chiefs
of Veterans Administration Medical, Surgical and Psychiatric Services of VA
hospitals on improving prescribing practices of medical personnel in the VA
health care systems.

Directive. “I will continue the program, already begun at my direction, by
which the Drug Enforcement Administration has instructed its regional offices
and regulatory task forces to give priority attention to barbiturate cases.”

Response. The Drug Enforcement Administration conducted 119 investigations
of barbiturate manufacturers resulting in 49 adverse actions; 74 investigations of
distributors resulting in 28 actions ; and 72 investigations of retailers (pharmacies
and practitioners) resulting in 52 actions. There was no evidence of diversion of
barbiturates at either the manufacturing or wholesale level where most of the
violations involved recordkeeping and security. The major diversion problem
appears at the pharmacy and practitioner levels.

Directive. “I am directing the Secretary of Health, Education and Welfare to
review those sedative/hypnotic drugs particularly subject to abuse to determine
whether any should be removed from the market, taking into consideration not
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ozllly the,ir safety to the individual, but also the dangers they pose to the public
at large.” :

Response. The Department has studied the safety and effectiveness of sedative/
hypnotic drugs and recommends against removing these drugs from the market.
FDA, however, has recommended certain labeling revisions for the hypnotic drug
package inserts which would include prescribing guides and information on the
duration and effect of prolonged nightly administration. Barbiturate class label-
ing, which will allow physicians to easily compare and contrast the risks and
benefits of various barbiturates, will be published in the Federal Register by
March 1979,

Directive. “I am directing the Attorney General, in full cooperation with State
officials, to begin a concerted drive to identify and prosecute those physicians who
Znowingly overprescribe a wide variety of drugs.”

Response. The Department of Justice has worked with the States in establish-
ing Diversion Investigation Units (DIU’s) in 16 States and the District of
Columbia to identify practitioners or other individuals (i.e. nurses, pharma-
cologists, etc.) who are involved in drug diversion. For the period extended from
July 1977 to July 1978, the DIU’s were responsible for approximately 484 state
and local arrests and seizures totaling an estimated three-fourths million dosage
units of diverted drugs. Current plans include the establishment of DIU’s in
three additional States each year for the next ten years, beginning with States
which have the most serious diversion problems. In addition to the DIU’s, Fed-
eral investigators have been able to obtain invegtigative leads involving diversion
at the practitioner level based on an analysis of drug purchases as reported in
ARCOS (the Automated Reports and Consumated Order System).

Directive. “Because of the need to improve international controls over danger-
ous drugs which have legitimate medical uses, like barbiturates and ampheta-
mines, I urge the Congress to adopt legislation implementing the Convention on
Psychotropic Substances, and I urge the Senate to ratify this treaty promptly.”

Response. The enabling legislation for the Psychotropic Substances Treaty
was enacted by the 95th Congress, and has been signed by the President.

The Treaty will be submitted to the Senate for ratification in the 96th Congress.

MINUTES—MEETING To Discuss THE DIVERSION OF PRESCRIPTION DRUGS FOR
Irvicit USe, SEPTEMEBER 12, 1979

INTRODUCTION AND OVERVIEW

On September 12, 1979, the Office of Drug Policy convened a meeting of
representatives from Federal agencies; the National Academy of Science Institute
of Medicine; seven states; professional, educational, and trade. organizatiouns;
and congressional staff to discuss possible courses of action to remedy the in-
creasing problem of diversion of legal drugs to illicit use.

The meeting opened with comments by Lee Dogoloff and Congressman Lester
Wolff. Mr. Dogoloff expressed the interest and concern of the White House over
the problem of prescription drug diversion. He traced the origin of this meeting
to an ongoing study group's recommendation. Federal law and responsibility is
limited primarily to the wholesale level, where there is not much of a diversion
problem. The primary problem lies with diversion from practitioners and phar-
macists. The meeting provided an opportunity to share the experience of seven
states that, with some Federal assistance, are coping with the problem. One aim
of the meeting was to develop models to share with other states.

Congressman Wolff spoke of the immensity of the diversion problem that, until
recently, has been largely ignored. He also spoke of his interest in the overuse
and misuse of presecription drugs for the elderly and for women. He gave a brief
history of the Select Committee’s activities in this area. He expressed his convie-
tion that we must address the social problems and seek out the root causes of
substance abuse, rather than continually focus on individual drugs.

The development of a method to estimate the scope of the diversion problem was
discussed by Dr. James Cooper of the National Institute on Drug Abuse. He is
trying to draw inferences from data derived from DAWN, CODAP, The National
Prescription Audit, and the National Household Survey. His interpretation of the
data suggests that the problem lies with aleohol in combination with other drugs;
sedative drugs and tranquilizers
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Mr. Al Russell of the Drug Enforcement Administration spoke of the problems
arising from using several data bases, which don’'t always agree. He spoke of a
recent increase in stimulant abuse, largely derived from clandestine laboratories.
He estimated that 250 to 300 million dosage units of various drugs are being
diverted from legal sources. He attributed the decline in barbiturate mentions in
the DAWN System to publicity and education directed to physicians and phar-
macists, resulting in a decreased number of prescriptions for these drugs, rather
than to any particular law enforcement efforts. He outlined DEA plans to use
drug profiles of cities and states in order to target increased enforcement to spe-
cific drugs in specific areas, for example, methaqualone in Miami. He also men-
tioned DEA’s 12-point plan to increase physician education with respect to the
prescription of controlled substances. In response to Dr. David Smith’'s expressed
concern over the ability to determine whether a street drug was diverted from
a legal source or was manufactured in a clandestine laboratory. Mr. Russell
agreed that DAWN data are “soft,” but the DEA ballistics system can give good

evidence of the source.
FEDERAL AGENCY ACTIVITIES

Several Federal agencies outlined their activities with regard to diversion.
Dr. Thomas Hayes, of the Food and Drug Administration, outlined the FDA’'s
role in recommending the scheduling of controlled substances. He detailed recent
DA reviews of amphetamines, hypnoties, benzodiazepines, and Darvon. These
reviews have resulted in (1) FDA’s proposal to withdraw approval for the use
of amphetamines in treating obesity; (2) a change in labeling of hypnotic drugs,
requiring package inserts to indicate the duration of their effectiveness when used
continuously ; (3) a change in the labeling of benzodiazepines which will require
all of them to have a uniform statement in the “Indications” section, and a state- |
ment of warning of their ability to produce withdrawal symptoms even when
used therapeutically; and (4) an increase in the warning statement for Darvon,
an agreement from the manufacturer to develop a patient package insert, and
increased efforts to advise physicians about the possible dangers of Darvon.

Dr. Cooper outlined NIDA’s current activities: (1) A redesign of the National
Household Survey, which will allow for the identification of specific drugs; (2)
development of epidemiological teams which will investigate the significance of
a drug being in the top 26 in the DAWN System ; i.e., accuracy of the data, physi-
cian preseribing practices in the community, and the like; (3) development of
prescribing guidelines for controlled substances (He cited an article in JAMA,

{vol. 241, p. 1021, Mar. 9, 1979) as a useful reference for establishing the
criteria for approzriate preseribing of psychoactive drugs that was developed
by NIMH and the American Psychiatric Association for use by community mental
health centers); and (4) development of educational programs for medical
schools aimed at decreasing the diversion of prescription drugs.

Dr. Charles Krauthammer (ADAMHA) described the development of the
shortly-to-be-announced Surgeon General’s initiative on sedative-hypnotic drugs
which will outline criteria for appropriate and inappropriate prescribing of these
drugs. The research component of this initiative will focus on problems identified
by the Institute of Medicine’s report “Sleeping Pills, Insomnia, and Medical Prac-
tices,” including the natural history of insomnia, the clinical effieacy of hypnotic
drugs—especially for longterm use, and the epidemiology of hypnotic drug use.
The educational component of this initiative will be directed toward upgrading
therapeutic practice related to insomnmia, including its differential diagnosis,
choice of therapy, and appropriate preseribing practices. A syllabus on insomnia
and its treatment will be prepared and sent to physicians. A similar booklet writ-
ten in lay terms will also be prepared and made available for distribution to
patients. The 8-year initiative will be monitored to assess its impact on prescribing
practices of these drugs and may then be used as a model for similar programs
in the therapy of depression and anxiety.

Dr, Peter Ilynn, Department of Defense, reviewed their prescription moni-
toring program. Their experience with the prescribing of barbiturates from 1972
to 1976 indicated a drop in sedative-hypnotic use, including a decline in the
number of dosage units prescribed and in the quration of prescribed use without
any particular effort. Dr. Flynn attributed this decline to a number of factors,
including a decrease in the size of our military forces, the end of the Viet Nam
war, general changes in prescribing practices associated with the increasing use
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of bgnzodiazepine drugs, the rescheduling of short-acting barbiturates to II,
and increased physician awareness of problems and limitations of barbiturates.
Since .1976,. use of the drugs has leveled off. There was no indication of signifi-
cant dlverS}on of barbiturate drugs into illicit ¢channels. Data from their Charles-
ton Prescription Monitoring System indicated that military presecriptions for
npn-barbiturate sedatives declined by 24 percent, during the same period of
time when civilian prescriptions increased by 31 percent.

Dr, Stewart Baker (VA) outlined the rather extensive program developed by
the VA to upgrade the training of physiciang in the prescribing of psychoactive
drugs. A letter to each medical center directed its Chief of Staff to provide train-
il}g on the use, safety, etc., of the drugs. Computer-based drug utilization re-
views were u.n(.iértaken. Video tapes were developed for medical staff training
on thg prescribing of psychoactive drugs. And finally, pharmacists were utilized
in their educational efforts. These efforts have resulted in a substantial decrease
in orders for short-acting barbiturates. Based on the VA experience, Dr. Baker
concluded that with the appropriate educational efforts, prescribing practices
can be modified and improved.

Eor the ﬁnql overview, Dr. Fred Solomon reviewed the Nationa! Academy of
Smep.«,:e’s Institute of Medicine study on sedative-hypnotic drugs. He traced the
declining use of Flurazepam, Dr, Solomon made the following observations:
(1) Hypnotic dru_gs have minimal benefit in severe insomnia (10 to 20 minute
dpcrease in the time to fall asleep; 20 to 40 minute increase in total sleeping
time) ; (2) .the efficacy of hypnotic drugs is of relatively short duration: and
(3) t!enzodla_zepines, such as Flurazepam, have active metabolites with long
h_alf-hves which result in cumulative effects and daytime sedation with con-
tinued use. Dr. Solomon highlighted the need for increased physician education ;
for example, more than half of the medical schools in the United States have no
lectures on sleep disorders or their therapy with drugs. He predicted im-
piI;)ved prescribing practices if the information could be gotten through to physi-
cians.

SBTATE PROGRAMS

Representati_ves from seven states outlined how they are handling the diver-
sion of prescription drugs to illicit channels. Mr. Thomas Kirkpatrick of the
Illinois Dangerous Drugs Commission outlined the organizational structure of
the Commission and its Governing Board. The Commission serves as the single
state agency for drug abuse and also has the responsibility for the scheduling
of controlled substances in the state and their licensing for research purposes.
The _Board consists of the heads of eight state agencies and public members in-
cluding the past president of the state medical society. It works closely with
members of the legislature who have been active in proposing and passing rele-
vant pills, such as, prohibiting drug companies from supplying physicians with
preprmte(} prescriptions; prohibiting companies from sending samples to phy-
siclans within the state unless specifically requested ; regnilating the amount of
controlled'substances prescribed ; regulating the amount of controlled substances
shipped within the state at any one time without notice ; regulating advertising
which.pr.esents a need to take drugs; increasing medical education about the
prescr}pt}on and scheduling of controlled substances. Illinois has a triplicate
prescription law which covers dispensing as well ag preseribing physicians.
Three types of physicians pose problems: the uninformed, the impaired (ad-
dicted), and the unscrupulous. Detection is through claims made for public
assjstance payments. The Commission has three medical compliance officers who
vigit qnd discuss prescribing practices with physicians who are thought to be
prescribing these drugs inappropriately. The majority of physicians are unin-
formed and are broqght up to date. This usually results in a change in prescrib-
ing practices. Impaired (addicted) physicians are referred to a program for
treatment.

Unscrupulous physicians may have their records inspected and, if warranted, a
casie can be brought against them. It is very difficult to limit the right of’ a
physician to prescribe controlled substances or to revole his license. Regulation
is possible through the withholding of public assistance payments. The problem
th.at remgins is h_ow to regulate and limit the availability of controlled substances
g(x)tsléoutomteﬁerl%gtwith tt::ll]leil]'?' legitimate utilization. In Illinois there has been

cooperation between the Board, the state medical i i
in dealing mith this prepierr. , dical society and the legislature
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Utah’s program relies on practicing physicians for peer review. Dr. Alan R.
Nelson reported that Medicaid claims are computer screened to develop physiecian
and patient profiles. The drug part of the profile targets certain drugs, their
frequency of prescription, and the amounts prescribed. Qver-utilization of drugs
by either a physician or a patient results in a Sequence of events which rely
primarily on educational efforts to modify prescribing practices. Initially, either
a call is made to the physician or he is sent a letter that outlines the problem
for a particular patient and requests him to return information to the peer review
board. Both the patient and the physician are then monitored to determine if any
change in prescribing follows. Failing any change, a visif; to the physician is made
by another physician from the professional review committee in an attempt to
bring peer pressure to bear and to alter his prescribing practices. if this does not
succeed, a dialogue with the licensing board begins, but it is relatively difficult
and unwieldy to take action against a physician. A physician may be in danger
of losing his membership in the State Ifedical Society. This is important since it
has implications for the physician in securing r-.:lpractice insurance. This latter
measure, however, is of no use in dealing with o, .opaths since they do not belong
to the State Medical Society. Specialty based peer committees and The Medical
Letter are used in Utah to establish criteria for appropriate prescribing. Dr.

 Nelson felt the screening system was fairly expensive; he questioned whether it
would *o cost effective if it were used only for detecting the over-utilization of
drugs. Th:e State Medical Society has also established a ifoundation for Contin-
uing Medical Education. The Foundation pubiishes a newsletter which dissemi-
nates information regarding the diversion problem, explains the controlled
substances schedules, and related matters.

Dr. Axelrod outlined New York State's triplicate prescription program covering
40,000 physicians. Physicians using inappropriate prescribing practices are re-
ferred to the county medical society which deals directly with them and suggests
changes. The “clout” is the threatened loss of the right to use controlled sub-
stances. This peer contact plan is being used in only a few counties; Dr. Axelrod
is not sure it would work for the entire state.

Dr. Axelred voiced some concern over education modalities, particutarly becadide
of the large number of foreign physicians in his state. He has recommended to
New York and the Federal government the rescheduling of some drugs (e.g.,
Valium and Dalmaae), now in Schedules III and IV to Schedule II so that
triplicate yrescriptions would be required for them in the state, and the Federal
government could exercise control over their manufacture and distribution. This
rescheduling would also increase physician awareness of the problems associated
with these drugs. He stated that the alternative of requiring triplicate prescrip-
tions for all Schedule IXI and IV drugs would overwhelm their system. There are
only a few drugs of concern in these schedules. Dr. Axelrod noted that his
suggestions for resct:duling have been stoutly resisted by members of the medical
community in his stace. He has received good cooperation from organized medi-
cine on other aspects of the program, however. He stated that New York is

beginning to try the Utah system. mhe cost is not too high for obtaining the drug .

profiles of physicians’ presecribing practices ; the follow-up is probably the more
expensive part of the program. Problem areas in New York include: (1) The
mjy.iad of interacting agencies, giving rise to turf problems; (2) diversion linked
to organized crime that has been difficult to deal withi; and (8) the great difficulty
to revoke the license of a physician who has been referred to the professional
conduct board followed his loss of triplicate prescribing rights.

Mr. David Joranson detailed how Wisconsin utilizes data from DEA’s ARCOS
system to establish drug profiles. ARCOS has been useful in determining where to
look for problems. Even though the ARCOS data are not current, a physician is
unlikely to change his prescribing practices from year to ycar without some form
of intervention. Pharmacy audits pinpoint offending physicians and patients. Mr.
Joranson presented statewide ARCOS profiles for amphetamines and metha-
qualone. In Wisconsin, the use of amphetamine drugs for obesity has been
declared unprofessional and the State will no longer reimburse for such amphet-
arine prescriptions. Since 1976, sales of amphetamines have declined drastically.
Correlated with this has been a sharp decline in amphetamine arrests in Mil-
waukee. Whether or not this is a cause and effect relationship was questioned by
Dr. David Smith.
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Dr. Noel List reported that in Maryland the Drug Abuse Administrati
registered p};armacists to inspect every pharmacy ign the State at Iegs%ti%:eeggi
year. They inspect every Class XTI prescription and ean inspect the preseribing of
specific (}rugs by specific physicians. If any problem is detected it is referred to
the Medlc_a! or Dental Board. Medicaid records are also reviewed. A physician
may _be v1_s1t_ed and required to documeut his therapy. Abusers are referred to
the C_oxpm1ss1pn on Drugg and Prescribing Practices of the State Medical Society.
Ph.ysmmns _WJ}I not be reimbursed for amphetamine prescriptions without special
prior permission tc use them. Obesity is not considered an acceptable use for
amppetamme-type drpgs. Eduecation and peer pressure has been successful in
modxfying the presqnbing practices of most physicians who have been subject
to review. The physician is told he will be monitored and if he doesn’t comply, a
case .W.lll be made before the State Committee on Medical Discipline. An addict’ed
phys1_01an may.h_ave his license revoked; he is referred to therai)y through the
impaired physicians program which involves two years of therapy and then
f_ollow.-up. In 1978, about 400 physicians were reviewed (cut of 9,000 active physi-
cians in the State) and 70 were visited. Pharmacists are also involved in a peer
review system through their society. Problems in the state include: (1) A large
number of forged prescriptions which no one seems to be concerned about because
of a lack of response by law enforcement. Physicians also appear to be lax in
their control of préscription blanks. Significant loss of blanks oc¢cur in hospital
emergency rooms. .Medicaid prescription blanks are now serially numbered and
any recorded loss is cox_nmunicated to all pharmacies within 48 hours using the
wholesalers as a conduit to the retail stores. (2) Patients are beginning to go
from one_dgntist to another for narcotic analgesic prescriptions.

Mr. Wlll}am MgGord of South Carolina based most of his success in promoting
actwn_to .hlS maxim, “Do it before Washington does it to you.” In South Carolina,
prescriptions drugs are the number one drug problem. A Task Force on Legal
Drugs was for_med with a team including physicians, legislators, the chairman of
the State Medical Society, and others who could bring about change. The legisla-
tl_n‘e deﬁned the uses for which amphetamines could be prescribed; these uses
dld'x}ot include obesity. The Task Force succeeded in eliminating the practice of
mailing large amounts of Librium and Valium teo patients by physicians in the
alcqhol and drug abuse units of the State Veterans Hospitals. He atfributed a
major share pf the State’s drug problem to the Armed Force stationed there. The
Tasgk Force is currently looking at the applicability of triplicate prescriptions
and of peer review. They are directing their educational efforts in prescribing
practices to mgdl_cal and pharmacy schools. Mr. McCord advocated the develop-
ment. _of presc_rlptmn drug task forces by every state to bring together the various
agencies ar}d interested groups that can effect change.

) Dr. Dav1d. Smith related that the strategy in California has focused on educa-
tion. Educational programs are problem oriented rather than to specific drugs per
gse. Several courses have been developed for different types of physicians. Video
tf_ipes ha_ve begn developed showing how patients may try to manipulate physi-
cians. Dlscussmp in these courses centers on what constitutes appropriate pre-
scribing, excessive prescribing, and the like. California’s program may include
u__mndated education for those physicians who have become out of date and whose
licenses are on probation. Other continuing medical education courses have been
d{ev eloped for those specializing in alcohol and drug abuse, for the general practi-

oner, and for physicians working primarily in a hospital setting. In addition,
programs are directed at pharmacists to ensure that they are aware of their li-
apxhty in {ilhng i:forged prescriptions. A confidential hotline has been established
for ghysmlans with drug or aleohol problems. This hotline refers them to a confi-
dential treatment program. The addicted physicians are not viewed as a signifi-
cant source of drugs for others. Dr. Smith noted that he considered the visit by
DEA. representatives to the medical society to present the problem as beneficial.
He expressed a concern that medical education is a declining priorify of the
ngeral government and that that should not be if this problem is to be dealt
with most effectively.

GENERAL DiSCUSSION

) The meeting was then opened up to general discussion as well as to some reac-
tloqs from the professional organizations that were represented. Mr. Emanuel
Steundl_ex_-, representing the American Medical Association, announced that the
new edition of the AMA Drug Evaluations book will be coming out next year and
will include a special section on the prescribing of controlled substances. The
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is planning a continuing medical education course on the use of psychotropic
ﬁxlg&s,salx)lg a syg;nposium on insomnia and its m_anagement. The AMA has b_eexi
working with the Career Teachers Program to Jincrease the num_be_r of medica
schools involved with Career Teachers, and the importance of their input. f&.new
Drug Dependency Guide will also be published early .nez.ct year for physxclans.
Sue Boe of the Pharmaceutical Manufacturers Association noted that its mem-
ber companies do not send samples of controlled substances unless requested by
physicians and they also do not promote controlled substances. She called attexX
fion to PMA’s role in the education of patients and consumers. In 1969, the PM 3
published a curriculum guide on substance a-bus.e, and in 1978 they develope
a slide show for use by community groups, especially the elderly, on the appro-
i rugs. . .
pml%f‘? %gfllci)ggx F%;nn, representing the Association for Medical Educat_mn and
Research in Substance Abuse (AMERSA), and a Career .Teacher, quthned tile
Career Teachers Program and the resource they represent in the medical schmj)f S.
He recommended that a major effort be made to use .tlgese Career Tqache}'s glxi
instructing medical students in the appropriate prescribing pf drugs, since it Vi;l
take a period of years to change attitudes through educatrox.lal efforts.. H.e also
recommended that the student leaders of the Student Med_lcal Association be
used to work with the Career Teachers in furthering these projects. .

A representative from the Veterans Administration called attgntl(_m to the fac!
that the VA has just approved twelve (12) two-year fellowsmp§ in an aleohol
and drug abuse specialty for physicians, DSycl.liatrlsts,_ and those in family cartii

Dr. Frank Standaert, representing the American Society fqr Pparmacology an
Experimental Therapeutics (ASPET), said that that organization would like to
be more involved in these educational efforts. He noted that x‘nemberS of ASPET
have expertise on the appropriate us.: of drugs as we}l as in drug abuse. Tﬁe
Society is well organized for providing medical education : its ngembers are the
teachers and chairmen in departments of pharmacolegy in medical, (}ental, and
pharmacy schools and are involved in undergraduate medical education as well
as postgraduate continuing medical education. He noted that several years ago,
ASPET had several meetings with DEA to try to develop a model curriculum
but when Dr. Lewis left DEA the meetings ceased and the1:e has been no follow-
up since. Dr. Standaert also noted difficulty in trying to obtgm from DE_A cchergnt
information about controlled substances and their regulation for e in teaching

ical students. )
m%iéﬁZr sdiscussion concluded that no single state agency can cope with the
problem ; there is a need for egoperation among many statq agencies a.nd Federal
agencies as well. Since the problems in each state are unique there is probably
no one model that will suffice. It will be important to collect the models of the
various states and make them available to each of the other states that do not
rograms.

ha{‘%g‘e gwas considerable discussion about whether there should be another
meeting of this group, but in general it was thought it would be more .appro-
priate to call a national conference that would bring together groups in addition
to those represented today to increase awareness of the problexx{ and _brmg about
action programs. Mr. Angarola stated that the Office of Drug Policy will follow-up
on the recommendations made at this meeting,

Mr. Howard Stanley of the Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health stated
that Jim Mongin had already made a commitment to follqw through on some
of these recommendations including the possibility of a national conference. He
stated that Drs. Nightingale and Krauthammer had already had some preliminary
meetings with respect to planning a national conference. It was suggested that
the NIH National High Blood Pressure Program might be a useful model for
educating physicians, ’

Further discussion centered on who was going to pay for qll.of these state
initiatives. Wisconsin has been funding its program from existing money but
that is rapidly running out. New York was characterized as running on nervous
energy in four of its 62 county medical societies. It needs a cqmm1tment from
somewhere in order to support a state-wide program. Dr. ngptmgale suggested
that some changes won’t cost money : the peer review system in some states can
be done at minimal cost, the development of regulations regarding payments for
inappropriately prescribed drugs from public assistance funds could be done at
minimal cost and might save enough money to fund the other parts of _the pro-
gram. Dr. Jorancon expressed the belief that there is a need for an in-depth
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review of the state's role, vis-a-vis what can be provided by the Federal govern-
ment. A discussion followed on the need for precise information and the utility
of state-wide use of the DAWN System. New Hampshire has developed a mini-
DAWN at a relatively low cost. DEA has visited 18 other states and 16 have
expressed interest in the mini-DAWN concept. The problem is money. It was
suggested that perhaps the Office of Drug Policy could sponsor some demonstra-
tion projects utilizing mini-DAWN in other states. Mr. Russell suggested that
the cost for a whole state was very high, but that sampling techniques might
be equally useful and much lower in cost.

Tinally, it was agreed that minutes of this meeting should be prepared and
sent to all of the participants as well as to other states so that they might profit
from the discussions that took place.

SUMMARY

The 1979 Federal Strategy for Drug Abuse and Drug Traffic Prevention once
again drevr attention to the substantial abuse of preseription drugs, in particular
sedative-hypnoties, minor tranquilizers, and stimulants. In terms of health haz-
ards, the abuse of these drugs exceeds that of heroin. The inappropriate prescrib-
ing of some physicians and the diversion from pharmacies have been the primary
sources of these drugs reaching the illicit market; only a small percentage is
derived from unscrupulous or impaired physicians or from diversion at the
wholesaler/manufacturer level.

The President’s Strategy Council on Drug Abuse and an Ad Hoc Sedative/ Hyp-
notic Working Group have been studying the most effective ways to deal with
this problem.

On September 12, 1579, the Domestic Policy Staff’s Drug Policy Office couvened
a2 meeting of representatives from f'ederal agencies (National Institute o1 Drug
Abuse, Drug Enforcement Administration, Department of Defense, Veterans
Administration, Office of the Assistant Secretary for Health, on the Aicohol,
Drug Abuse, and Mental Health Administration); the National Acadamy of
Science-Institute of Medicine ; seven states (California, Illinois, Maryland, South
Carolina, Utah, Wisconsin) ; professional, educational, and trade organizations;
and Congressional staff to discuss courses of action to reduce the diversion of
prescription drugs to the illicit market. The President’s principal drug abuse
advisor, Lee Dogoloff, and Congressman Lester Wolff, Chairman of the House
Select Committee on Narcotics Abuse and Control, opened the all-day meeting.
Each Federal agency outlined its role in the problem and actions it has taken.
State representatives presented the different models they have developed for try-
ing to indentify problem areas and for taking corrective measures. _

All of. the participants agreed that no¢ one agency, either Federal or State,
could effectively deal with the problem. Common elements of the State programs
include professional education, professional peer pressure, regulatory and licens-
ing activities, and law enforcement as a final resort. All of these elements seem
essential. The establishment of a state prescription drug task force bringing
together these elements has facilitated and enhanced efforts to deal with each
state’s unique situation. Many of these states rely on close Federal-State coopera-
tion with DEA and NIDA, and use data generated by Federal information sys-
tems which help to identify points of diversion. The need for coordinated
cooperative efforts involving Federal, State, and local government agencies in
cooperation with professional, educational, and trade organizations was re-
peatedly emphasized.

Actions stemming from recommendations made at the meeting include the
following :

1. The White House Drug Policy Office will convene a meeting of representa-
tives from the Drug Enforcement Administration, the Food and Drug Admin-
istration, and the National Institute on Drug Abuse, to develop a strategy for
promoting appropriate prescribing of controlled drugs by physicians and other
health care professionals. This interagency working groups, in consultation with
professional organizations, will review existing programs and educational re-
sources, and will develop new resources, for increasing physician awareness and
sensitivity to the problem of prescription drug diversion, and for positively
modifying their prescribing practices.

2. As a follow-up to the studies on insomnia and the use of sedative-hypnotic
drugs carried out by the National Institute on Drug Abuse and the National
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Academy of Science-Institute of Medicine, the Surgeon General is planning new
initiatives that include upgrading therapeutic practices related. to insomnia and
the appropriate use of hypnotic drugs. The Surgeon General will review the ap-
plicability of these educational initiatives to other problem areas such as the
management of stress and anxiety.

3. The White House Drug Folicy Office will write to each State Govgrnor
concerning the seriousness of prescription drug diversion. Each sgate will be
encouraged to develop a prescription drug task force which could bring toggther
the concerned state agencies and medical, pharmacy, and o_ther.professmnal
societies for identifying and dealing with prescription drug diversion.

A state task force could examine the applicability of model programns that are
working to control diversion in other states, HEW will compile and make avail-
able methods used by several states to deal with this problem. The Federal _Gov-
ernment will also make available data from its data systems that may facilitate
the identification of problem areas and problem physicians. A task force could
also consider the applicability to its state of regulatory actions on spgzclfic drugs;
peer review of questionable prescribing practices; restrictions or limits on the
prescribing of controlled drugs; and techniques being _used by other _stat_es, such
as triplicate prescriptions, prohibiting drug companies .from dxstpbptmg pre-
printed prescriptions for controlled drugs, serially numbering prescription blanks
to enable voiding of those that are stolen or lost, etc. Some states havg foupd
that careful review of requests for payment from Medicaid funds may identify
problem physicians and patients; guidelines can be estat}lished to limit the pre-
seribing of certain drugs through restrictions on Medicaid paymenps.

4. State medical licensing boards and other relevant state agencies §hould re-
view their current policies and procedures which, in some states, make it difficult
to revoke a physician’s license or restrict his prescribing privileges even in some
cases where his peers adjudge him to be preseribing inappropriately or un-
ethically.

b. ThJ:a White House Drug Policy Office will ask the Surgeon General to con-
vene a national preseription drug conference in order to highlight the importance
of this problem and to share existing State initiatives.

6. The Strategy Council on Drug Abuse will establish an Ad Hoc group to
review the existing problem of prescription drug diversion, to identify further
measures that may be undertaken to decrease diversion, and to follow t'
progress of change in prescribing practices that these measures may bring
about.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF PETER B. BENSINGER, ADMINISTRATOR, Drue
ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION, U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Good afternoon, Chairman Wolif, Members of the House Select Committee
on Narcoties Abuse and Control. I appreciate this opportunity to _continue the
dialogue we began this summer in Chicago regarding the very serious prolglem
of diversion of licit drugs. As a result of a series of headline-making articles
there, the citizenry of Chicago were made well aware of the practitioner-level
diversion problem in their community. Today, here in Washington, D.C., we hqve
a dual perspective: as local citizenry facing a serious retail-level di-versaon
problem in our community, and second, as representatives of the Exe:cutlve an_d
Legislative branches of our government tasked with developing solutions to this
problem that will be applicable nationwide.

At this juncture, I think that a few cold statistics will drive home the mes-
sage that regulating the licit controlled substance distribution chain is a task of
enormous magnitude. There are approximately 20,000 drug products controlled
under the CSA and over 20 billion dosage units of these products flow through
the distribution chain each year. This legitimate distribution chain consists of
over 600,000 registrants, of whom 98 percent are at the practitioner level. To
monitor the entire registrant population, DEA has approximately 220 Compliance
Investigators and 20 Special Agents. With a registrant-to-investigator ratio of
nearly 3,000:1, it is clear why we must rely on close cooperation with the state
authorities.

Conservatively, 250-300 million of the 20 billion dosage units manufactured
yearly are diverted. DEA estimates that 80-90 percent of diversion occurs at the
retail level. The most common methods of retail diversion include: pharmacy
theft, indiscriminate prescribing, forged prescriptions, and the illicit sale of legal
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drugs by registrants. Individuals who obtain prescriptions and controlled sub-
stances by feigning a medical need or who obtain multiple preseriptions from
different physicians are also responsible for this diversion.

We are well aware of the now all-too-familiar scenario involving the “pill-
pushing” doctor, who hides behind a professional facade, while provding a steady
stream of drugs into the illicit market. He is not the only health professional in-
volved in this activity. The pharmacist who often fills prescriptions with full
knowledge of the circumstances or who chooses to ignore his professional re-
sponsibility also adds to the problem. It is unfortunate that the very small num-
ber of physicians and pharmacists who are involved in diversion have cast a
shadow over two noble occupations.

Others contributing to the problem are the “professional patients” whose occu-
pation is going from doctor to doctor collecting multiple prescriptions along the
way, and the professional burglar. Drug thefts in 1978 totaled over 46 million
dosage units. During the first six months of 1979, the total was over 25.6 mil-
lion dosage units.

The incentives for diverting legally-produced controlled substances are many
and varied. Certainly, the enormous profits involved make trafficking of diverted
drugs most attractive. For example, a single dosage unit of Dilaudid (hydro-
morphone H(C1) purchased by a pharmacy or doctor for approximately 17 cents,
can be sold on the streets for up to $60. The fact that heroin availability in the
United States is at the lowest levels since 1971, contributes to the demand for
substitutes. The demand for a wide variety of diverted drugs to supplement poor
quality or non-existent heroin will continue to be an important factor affecting
the diversion problem.

DEA uses the Drug Abuse Warning Network (DAWN) to monitor drig abuse
trends nationwide. DAWN data is based on reports submitited from emergency
rooms and medical examiners across the country in 24 Standard Metropolitan
Statistical Areas (SMSA). DAWN data shows the clear relationship between
deaths, injuries, and the consumption of lieit controlled substances. These drugs
present a much greater health hazard to the general populace than drugs wholly
illegal in nature, including heroin.

According to DAWN emergen:y room (ER)) reporting for the period July 1978
to August 1979, a review nf the 15 most abused controlled substances reveals that
11 of the 15 are primarily of legitimate origin. The type of drug abuse most fre-
quently reported involved alcohol in combination with one or more drug sub-
stance.. Then, in descending order, the most commonly abused substances were:
diazepam (Valium), heroin, phencyclidine (PCP), flurazepam (Dalmane, an
anorectic), marihuana, D-proxpoxyphene (Darvon) and chloridazepoxide (Lib-
rium). The number one drug in this list, diazepam, accounted for 10.6 percent of
all the emergency room mentions.

The DAWN emergency room data for the same period indicates statistically
significant increases in the number of mentions for methaqualone (Quaaludes),
cocaine and amphetamines. The large numbers of methaqualone mentions oc-
curred in (again, in descending order) : Miami, New York, Philadelphia, and
Los Angeles. Because of Miami’s proximity to Colombia, a primary source nation
for illicit methaqualone, a significant portion of the methaqualone available in
Miami is very likely to be of clandestine origin. However, DEA shows that Florida
ranked number one in per capita consumption of legally produced methaqualone.

I think it important that there is a clear understanding of exactly what DEA’s
authority is with respect to controlling licit substances. The Controlled Sub-
stances Act of 1970 (CSA), provides for a “closed distribution system” from
manufacturer to user. That assures an adequate supply of controlled substances
for legitimate medical, research and industrial needs, whiie at the same time re-
duces the widespread diversion of drugs from legitimate channels into the illicit
market.

Under the CSA, DEA has been given considerable authority to monitor the
commerce in controlled substances at the manufacturing and wholesaling levels.
The Congressional intent to limit Federal responsibility at the retail level of
the drug chain was made clearly evident at the time the CSA was enacted. Thus,
DEA’s statutory authority to regulate at the retail level is limited and, as such,
State licensing authorities must assume the primary responsibility.

This division of responsibility is reflected in the 1979 Federal Strategy under
“Control of Legally Manufactured Drugs.” Here it is stated that:

Those agencies responsible for licensing and regulating the manufacture, dis-
tribution and dispensing of legally produced controlled drugs will intensify their’

[ G
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sonnel can curiail the diversion of drugs on a statewide level. DIU’s bring to-
gether independent state agencies having a role to play in regulatory drug
enforcement into a single, cohesive unit., Bach agency countributes specialized
skills to the benefit of the other participants in the unit. Equally imporcant, this
program focuses public attention throughout the state on this often neglected
facet of drug abuse.

There are some areas where major violators have been operating untouched
by state or Federal efforts. To impact on these violaters, DEA has initiated
Operation. Script. This project supplements existing efiorts and directs DEA
resources where limited activity occurred in the past. This increase in efforts
focuses DEA’s technical, investigative, and legal expertise to produce high
impact/high visibility investigations on pre-selected violators.

Operation Script was initiated with the identification of 109 pre-selected
targets in 22 states. DEA can selectively target registrants as potential sources

.. of diversion based on DAWN data which provides indicators of drug abuse
within geographical areas and ARCOS information regarding purchase of drugs
by specific registrants.

The majority of these targets are at the practitioner level which, as previously
mentioned, is the major source of diversion of licit drugs. DEA investigators,
together with state and local law enforcement and regulatory officials through-
out the United States, are actively developing cases against the most significant
retail violators we have identified. Operation Script is designed to meet the
current need for a high impact seleetive enforcement program.

I would like to emphasize that DEA still considers retail diversion to be pri-
merily a state responsibility and, thus, we will continue all of our programs
directed to increase state enforcement capabilities. I hope that our accelerated
efforts will encourage the states and demonstrate to them the need for vigorous
enforcement activity in the area of practitioner diversion.

The Drug Oriented Investigation (DOI) Program is another new program
designed to impact on the availability of legally produced drugs in the illegal
traffic. DOI's concentrate on specific drugs and involve investigations at all
levels of the distribution chain. These investigations are centrally coordinated,
nationwide actions aimed at collecting diversion information that may eventu-
ally be used in reducing quotas, limiting imports, rescheduling actions, and pos-
sible administrative or civil actions against the manufacturers. The initiation
of three DOI’s directed three highly abused controlled substances has been
implemented.

The DEA Office of Hnforcement is currently considering targeting, for a
CENTAC Operation, an identified group of registrants operating at various
levels of the licit distribution chain. The decision to implement this CENTAC
will be made after the results of the ongoing evaluation are reviewed.

DEA has not limited its activity concerning the diversion problem strictly to
enforcement operations. The diversion of legally produced drugs is a complex
problem that mandates a combination of enforcement and non-enforcement ap-
proaches. DEA participates in four informal “working committees” which are
designed to improve communication with professionals and regulated industry
and to encourage establishment of self-imposed restraints and procedures that
go beyond minimum standards of the law. A product of the DEA/Practitioner
Working Committee is the “Guidelines for Prescribers of Controlled Substances”
which has been circulated to various professional associations for approval. Five
of the six major professional associations have concurred on these guidelines;
the sixth association, the American Medical Association; is expected to act in
December,

DREA will continue to support Federal and state actions that are aimed at
curbing the misprescribing and overprescribing of controlied substances. DEA
has provided statistical support for appropriate Federal and state actions in-
volving specific drugs. Wisconsin’s recent action on amphetamines and FDA’s
proposal along the same lines are examples of responsible government efforts
to reduce the abuse of a very dangerous drug. DEA has requested that FDA
also consider removing the anorectic indication from phenmetrazine (Preludin)
due to its similarity to the amphetamines.

DEA will continue to provide assistance to the states for the purpose of
upgrading their ability to handle retail diversion in their jurisdictions. In areas.
where regulatory boards cannot or will not take appropriate administrative
action against a violative registrant, there is often no alternative but to initiate
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a criminal case. It is preferable for a peer group or regulatory board to take
remedial action to curtail illegal activity when it is first discovered. DEA has
pilot programs in California and Pennsylvania to support im‘proyemel‘lt of stq.te
regulatory and enforcement capabilities in the area of retail d1vers1qn. Major
factors in the overall improvement of state capabilities include increas;ng statu-
tory authority, developing adequate resources, and increasing educational pro-
grams for state investigators and prosecutors. )

Voluntary self-help programs, such as the Pharmacy Theft Prevent‘lon (PTP)
Program, now operating in 18 locations, have proven to have positl.ve resu}ts.
In these programs, DEA acts as a catalyst to mobilize area pharmacists, police,
government, and media into a joint community action approach tow_ards sup-
pressing pharmacy thefts. Statistics show that during a recent pgmod while
nationwide statistics on pharmacy thefts increased, thefts in PTP cities actually
declined. There are several other areas which deserve additional attention at
all levels of government and by the professional associations. They are: .

1. Encourage health care professionals to take advantage of continuing and
relevant education programs dealing in such areas as prescribing drug inter-
actions, and the abuse of controlled substances. . .

2. Encourage the inclusion of courses in the proper prescribing and dispensing
of . psychoactive drugs in medical schools and in physician and health profes-
sional curriculums. . .

3. Develop a national licensing clearing house facility in order that 1.nforma-
tion concerning convictions, suspensions, and revocations would be available Lo
all states for licensing purposes. .

When I last testified before the Select Committee in Chicago on the squect
of retail diversion, I indicated that a review of the CSA would be initiated.
This review has been conducted and DEA is currently in the process of making

several recommendations concerning possible revisions. .

Chairman Wolff, the work of the Select Committee on the retail diversion
situation has been instrumental in calling national attention to this problem. I can
assure you that DEA is committed to finding solutions to this very serious.prob-
lem. I believe that the programs I have outlined for you this afternoon will en-
able DEA to maximize its efforts within the limits of our statutory authority.
We are ready to lend whatever support we can to the states and the health
care profession. Our goal is to have the same success at the retail level as we
have had at the wholesale level. DEA welcomes and appreciates the continued

support and interest of this Committee.
Thank you.

PREPARED STATEMENT OF RICHARD B. Lowg III, AcTING INSPECTOR GENERAL,
' DEepARTMENT OF HEALTH, EDUCATION, AND WELFARE

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee: I appreciate this opportunity
to present my views on the diversion of controlled substances from the legitimate
medicaid drug distribution network. I am the acting inspector general of the
Department of Health, Education, and Welfare. Our authorized audit staff
now totals 950. Our investigations office is authorized 229 personnel. This staff
works with attorneys and program specialists to provide a multi-disciplinary
approach to controlling fraud, abuse, and waste in departmental programs. My
background is prosecution and management. I was the assistant prosecutor in
one of the largest district attorney’s offices in the United States, New York
City. I have experience in the prosecution and investigation of multifaceted
crime from the most violent street crimes to the mos complex white collar
crimes.

‘We are informed by the Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) that 80-90
percent of the drug diversion from legitimate channels is at the practitioner
level. Because of .insufficient legislative authority to implement controls at the
retail level, the DEA concentrates its efforts at the highest level of the normal
drug distribution chain (manufacturers, wholesaiers, importers, ete.). How-
ever, these individuals account for less than 2 percent of the total universe of
persons and entities who are legally registered to distribupe and/or diSpensg
drugs. By far, most complaints and leads regarding diversion relate to retail
sources, including those participating in the medicaid program. We found that
DEA just does not have the resources to assist HEW in an extensive initia-
tive to investigate diversion through the medicaid program.
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an illicit street value far in excess of their legitimate costs. Thus, there can be
1tl great profit with a medicaid financed inventory when the drugs are sold on
he street.

In an attempt to attack medicaid fraud and abuse, in 1977 we launched project
integrity which was a nationwide joint Federal/State initiative that used com-
puters to identify over 2,400 physicians and pharmacists whose medicaid billing
practices exceed certain criteria. Over 1,100 pharmacists were selected for the
initiative because of the quantities and frequency of drugs dispensed. Most of
the investigations were conducted by state investigators. To date, over 400 of
the physicians and pharmacists have received administrative sanctions, and
another 55 have been indicted. Thus far, 35 individuals have been convicted under
project integrity, while several hundred investigations are still open. Of course,
not all of the convictions and sanctions were based upon drug charges, but for
the pharmacists at least, the investigations followed computer disclosure of
aberrant dispensing patterns.

With respect to project integrity, in cooperation with many States and the

Health Care Financing Administration we have prepared two documents for
State agencies to use if they wish to institute their own computer based initiatives.
The first is a lessons learned report published earlier this year, while the second is
an October 1979 handbook which describes computer screens that can be used
to scrutinize billing records and identify potentially liable providers and recip-
ients. The pharmacy screens are almost entirely based upon dispensing practices.
We stand ready and willing to offer technical assistance to any State desiring to
implement these computerized operations, for it is indeed the State which
must shoulder primary responsibility for the investigation of fraud and abuse
within the medicaid program. Over half of the-States have State medicaid fraud
control units funded by HEW at 90 percent pursuant to Public Law 95-142.
In most of the 27 jurisdictions in which there are no medicaid fraud control
units, State welfare investigative agencies have this responsibility. Most of
these organizations are not prepared to utilize the undercover operations that
are essential to drug investigations. They are primarily specialists in white col-
lar crime against governmental programs, and this emphasis severely limits
endeavors in the undercover area. The inherently dangerous undercover inves-
tigations are difficult to prove in a court of law and are much more resource inten-
sive than other fraud investigations. Consequently, both types of investigative
agencies consider drug diversion cases a relatively low priority.

At the same time the traditional drug law enforcement agencies (bureaus of
narcotics, vice squads, etc.) consider the medicaid diversion cases as too small
to be worth their while. The net result is that not much investigative effort is avail-
able to the medicaid drug diversion problem. Ironically, California, the State
with the most impressive record in the drug investigation of physicians (96
convictions in the past five years and 123 indictments within the last 18 months)
is prohibited by State law from working undercover cases with medicaid cards.
Their accomplishments for the most part have been outside the medicaid pro-
gram.

In the fall of 1978, the Secretary of HEW ordered a nationwide *“crackdown”
on medicaid drug abuse. The project was assigned to the Health Care Finane-
ing Administration and is under the direct management of their Office of Pro-
gram Validation. The objectives of project crackdown are twofold: first, we
wish to identify and to take action against medicaid drug pushers at all
levels, including those who operate under the guise of medical practitioners
as well as those who do their dealing on the streets of our cities. Secondly, work-
ing with the states involved in the project, we are seeking the regulatory and
administrative improvements which will prevent the Federal and State govern-
ments from subsidizing drug abuse.

To date, the results of operation crackdown can best be described as spotty.
Typically, the problem we are faced with is medicaid recipients (or anyone with
a medicaid card) visiting a physician; obtaining a prescription for controlled

* substances (or any other drug) ; taking the prescription to a pharmacy for fill-
ing; and using the drugs to support their own habit or selling them on the
street, Needless to say, it doesn’t take much imagination to visualize that an
individual can visit a variety of physicians and pharmacists to make a real “kill-
ing.” The most distressing fact is that State and Federal governments are put
in the position of being the financier for this illicit drug traffic through the

medicaid program.
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All of this was highlighted last summer in a series of news articles printed
in the Philadelphia Daily News, describing the experiences of an investggative
reporter who posed as a welfare recipient. My predecessor was asked by the
Secretary of HEW to 1mme(}1ately launch a program to attack these practices.
The Se_cretary_ asked for a pilot project in each of ten major cities. Capabilities
for action varied by locality, but some States such as California and New York
hagV pre-existing programs.

. We consider project crackdown an ongoing program with no end-point in
sight. It should not be cor_lsidered simply as a short-term remedy to a l(ﬁlg-ter}n
problem, and we are continuing to work with those participating States whose
efforts have not yet deve_loped fully. Our expectations are that an organized
assault on the.problen} with concomitant publicity can be a very effectivet de-
ggiggrgén{n_ lzhllllpdelphm, foxl' ilnsttance, due to the publicity generated, law en-
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In conclusion, we feel that we can have a significant impact on the diversion
problem. Regulatory and administrative modifications to the program are pre-
ventive and will ducrease the burden on law enforcement agencies.

Law enforcement efforts in this area require resources beyond those cur-
rently available. Even the best prosecutors encounter difficulties in presenting
cases where medical judgment is at issue.

It is obvious that law enforcement is not the sole answer, but it is important
to mu_stexj. the resources of a variety of Federal, State and local agencies and
to maintain a mix of regulatory and law enforcement initiatives. '

LFREPAGED STATEMENT OF JEROME NIPORT, DIRECTOR, MEDICAL ASSISTANCE

I(:‘IOMPLIANCE ADMINISTRATION, MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND MENTAL
YGIENE

.My name i§ Jerome Niport. I am the Director of the Medical Assistance Com-
phanqe Administration, Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene,
i}lr% gigllﬁle-state agency charged with administering the Maryland Medicaid

_’i‘ll_e.Administration which I direct is responsible for the review and coatrol
of ut111‘za.tion of medical services reimbursed by Maryland Medicaid. This includes
pre.scr.lptlon arugs, which in the last fiscal year numbered over 2.5 million pre-
scriptions and for which we paid about $16 million.

Drug utilization review is an integrated process comprising three distinet
clements:

1. The drug prescriber.

2, The drug dispenser.

3. The drug recipient.

) The results of our reviews leave no doubt that all three elements of a preserip-
tion transaction permit, and quite often even encourage, diversion of legitimate
drugs into illicit channels.

) Physici:}ns are manipulated by patients, by threats, persuasion, misrepresenta-

tloq or higher office fees, into prescribing precisely the drugs desired by the
patient, in quantities far exceeding medically acceptable consumption, rates. In
succumbing to this manipulation, or as a result of poor record keeping, physicians
exceed maximum duration of arug use recommended by manufacturers and rec-
ognized pharmacologic authorities.
) Pharmacists dispense drugs in quantities or combinations which are patently
icappropriate without verifying the legitimacy of the prescription or the intent
of the prescriber. Frustrated by inaction on the part of local law enforcement
agencies and the courts, pharmacists are not motivated to report forged
prescriptions. :

.Individuals with Medical Assistance identification “shop” a variety of physi-
cians to secure prescriptions to their order. With a stock of bought or stolen
Medical Assistance cards, a credit card imprinter and prescription blanks readily
available in most physicians’ offices and clinics, there is virtually no limit to
the number of forged prescriptions an enterprising individual can pass.

The motivation to divert preseription drugs into illicit channels is enormous. A
prescription for 100 Valium 10 mg. has an actual ingredient cost of $18.78 and
a ‘‘street” value of $200 to $400 in Baltimore. It is no surprise, therefore, that
Valium is the most frequently sought and prescribed drug in the Maryland
Medical Assistance Program. Other drugs which, like Valium, affect tae central
nervous system, command comparable prices. Analgesies such as Demerol
Dilaudid, Percodan and Morphine sell for as much as $20 to $40 a tablet.

Approximately 30 percent of the drugs reimbursed by Maryland Medicaid are
classified therapeutically as central nervous system drugs, viz. they ease pain,
elevate moods, sedate, hypnotize or stimulate. Our attempts to control the in-
appropriate prescribing and misutilization of such drugs have met with mixed
success.

A recent study of the prescribing practices of 4,886 Maryland physicians par-
ticipating in Medicaid revealed that 16 percent (770) wrote 75 percent of all
prescriptions. More specifically, 45 physicians, less than 1 percent of those par-
ticipating, ordered half of the stimulants, one-fifth of the psychotherapeutic
agents and analgesics, and one-tenth of the sedatives and hypnotics given in the
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office setting. A number of physicians clearly prescribing excessive amounts of
stimulants for weight control were referred to the Committee on Drugs of the
Medical and Chirurgical Faculty, the statewide Medical Society in Maryland.
There was an appreciable change in the prescribing habits of these physicians.
As the ultimate solution, such drugs are no longer covered by the Maryland
Programni,

Recipients with a history of acquiring abuse-prone drugs from several dif-
ferent physicians are first “counselled”, then warned and finally asked to select
a primary physician and pharmacy; however, snch a restriction is difficult to
administer and often the individual simply acquires someone else’s Medicaid
card.

It is apparent that steps must be taken to stem the flow of prescription drugs
into illicit channels. Maryland, and I am sure other states as well, will continue
to do all in our power to reduce that flow; however, that power is limited.

On the national level, I recommend educational programs to enhance physi-
cians’ awareness to the limited benefit, over time, of many central nervous sys-
tem drugs; to the accumulative effect of certain drugs even taken as prescribed;
and to the dangerous interaction of certain drugs, including alcohol.

Further, I endorse the programs of Federal assistance to states to attack the
problem of prescription forgery.

Finally, I recommend most strongly that Federal Medicaid regulations allow
states to incorporate provisions to suspend certain benefits to those individuals
who abuse them. As of now, we can only deny benefits to an individual who has
been convicted of a fraud against our Program. The problems we have been dis-
cussing have not, up to now, been given much attention or priority by prosecu-
tors or police.

I thank you for this opportunity to bring our problems and frustrations to
light. I sincerely hope that somehow we will be given the resources to combat
this ever-growing problem in our society. .

’

PREPARED STATEMENT OF RICHARD D. PARKER, SR., INDEPENDENT PHARMACIST,
KENSINGTON, MbD.

Mr, Chairman and members of the committee, my name is Richard D. Parker,
Sr. and I live in Glenwood, Maryland. My profession is that of Registered Pharm-
acist and I am employed at Kensington Pharmacy, Inc. in Kensington, Maryland.
I have been employed in Kensington since 1947 and have been Registered to
practice Pharmacy since 1951.

Having served as President of the Prince Georges-Montgomery County Pharma-
ceutical Association (1965-66) and President of the Maryland Pharmaceutical
Association (1977-78), I have been in close association with leaders in local
organizations. I have also been active in national organizations, attending their
conventions and working with them in attempts to make the profession better able
to serve the public. .

In my capacity as Chairman of the Legislative Committees of the local and
state organizations, I have been involved in many hearings and have seen many
attempts to adopt corrective legislation when agencies were already in existence
with the power and directive to regulate. In these cases, the agency was usually
short funds to do a proper job, or was hampered by opinions from the Attorney
General’s office which interfered with decisions to go forth in operation to correct
problems. In the area of drug abuse, I have seen a variety of problems which need
to have corrective action taken to control, either by regulation or legislation.

Among the most serious forms of abuse are the prescriptions presented to
Pharmacists which have forged or altered, or which have been issued by licensed
practitioners not in the usual course of practice. It is tlie latter of these abuses
which poses the more serious problem to pharmacy. Physicians in the District
of Columbia may prescribe controlled substances and the prescriptions may be
filled in the nearby Maryland or Virginia pharmacies in the proper course of busi-
ness. The problem arises when a practitioner orders a medication other than in
the proper practice of his profession. In this case it is difficult to obtain evidence
substantial enough to stop him from this activity.

Recently, my pharmacy became a member of a voluntary cooperative chain of
independent pharmacies in the Washington-Maryland-Virginia area operating
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under the name of Care Drug Centers of Washington. While associating with my
colleagues I have found the abuse of the right to prescribe a prevalent concern
and have discovered an unwillingness on the part of some to take action. This
reluctance on the part of pharmacists is usually based on the perceived require-
ment to appear in court as a witness with resultant loss in pay. This perception
is compounded by tlie feeling of wasting time since most convictions result in re-
lease with reprimand or short-term confinement in revolving door fashion. Other
pharmacists feel they are not in a position to refuse prescriptions which should
be suspect since they are written by licensed practitioners and difficulty could
arise it they failed to qupply the substance, For whatever reason, the ava1lab1hty
of drugs in this manner is a majcr source of illicit drugs on the streets and in
the schools.

Forged and altered prescriptions are more easily controlled because pharmacists
are more willing to take time in the apprehension of criminals or those under
the control of drug habit. Most of these prescriptions have some flaw or other
feature which calls them to the atiention of the alert pharmacist. He then con-
tacts the alleged prescriber and upon determining the illigitimacy of the prescrip-
tion, calls the local law enforcement team.

In this latter instance, some pharmacists are reluctant to “get involved” be-
cause of the fear of retaliation in the form of personal harm or possible property

damage. Many stories are told across the nation of Pharmacists being murdered .

or beaten by persons attempting to obtain drugs.

‘While the major source of licit drugs being diverted to the street market is the
improper prescribing of some practitioners, there is another source which needs
attention. Persons with a drug habit and those seeking to sell controlled drugs,
often find it more lucrative to burglarize pharmacies known to stock these wanted
substances. In recent months, armed robberies have occurred with the eriminals
bringing a shopping list for the most daring drugs.

There is another side of the problem to which we must address ourselves and
that is the commission of crime by those seeking to obtain drugs. Many muggings,
burglaries, shopliftings, and purse-snatchings are performed by desperate addicts
in efforts to obtain funds to support the habit. These persons are sometimes less
rational and so more violent than similar persons performing the same type of
crime,

To prevent the commission of crimes for the purpose of drug abuse, I propose
the following:

First, a continued attempt to stop the spread of drug abuse by education of the
general public and foliow-up monitoring of rehabilitated addicts. This is the
obvious best method to decrease the demand for drugs.

Second, strengthen the forces presently in use to stop the distribution and sale
of controlled substances. The Vice-Narcotics unit in Montgomery County and the
similar forces in other jurisdictions do a tremendous job in enforcement when
they have the opportunity.

Third, strengthen the regulatory processes whereby practitioners may have
their right to prescribe suspended or revoked and assess criminal penalties in
a more rapid application of due process.

Fourth, adopt legislation making it a federal erime to rob a pharmacy in search
of controlled drugs. Local enforcement agents are unable to prevent the interstate
traffic in drugs.

Fifth, impose longer sentences on second offenders who sell or distribute drugs.
I have been told the need exists for more correctional facilities to eliminate the
release of criminals to make room for others. Judges now have to determine
which is the worst criminal when deciding the punishment to be handed down.

Sixth, design other methods of control which would make it more difficult to
use prescriptions to obtain drugs for illegal use. Forms in triplicate similar to
these in use to obtain drugs from suppliers (Form 222 DEA) could be used to
order the most abused drugs in the normal course of practice.

In summation, I do not wish te indict the practitioners who oversee the health
needs of the nation. The very small minority involved in this unethieal practice is
such that infernal controls would be effective if the regulatory remedies were
available to them. The Medical-Chirurgical Faculty of Mary'and does a com-
mendable job in the area.

I thank you for the opportunity to appear before this committee and am Wlllmg
to answer any questions pertaining to this matter.
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF DR. JoBEN E. ApAMS, CHAIRMAN, STATE oF MARYLAND
CoMMISSION ON MEDICAL DISCIPLINE

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, thank you for inviting me to
appear before you this afternoon. My statement is in response to your request
for information concerning the nature of the interaction between the Commission
on Medical Discipline of Maryland and the problem of diversion of physician-
prescribed drugs to the illicit market.

Our Commission is deeply concerned and intimately involved with this problem
in a number of ways. From its experience, it is this Commission’s opinion that
there is a significant diversion of drugs to the street at the hands of physicians,
but that the vast majority of this diversion of drugs to the street at the hands of
physicians, but that the vast majority of this diversion in unintentional or
inadvertent.

This Commission is empowered by law to place sanctions on the license of any
Maryland-licensed physician. Sanctions can range from reprimand, to probation,
to revocation. It remains, therefore, for the Commission to identify, quantify and
document such problems and then to take appropriate action. For these purposes,
the Commission has a number of resources upon which to draw.

For example, the Commission works closely with the Medical Assistance Com-
pliance Administration, which at the present time has the ability to detect over-
prescribing by physicians, as well as “doctor-shopping” by Medicaid recipients,
utilizing computer compilation of physician and pharmacy reimbursement claims.
A substantial number of cases of over-prescribing are reported to the Commission
as a result of this computer surveillance, and perhaps 30 physicians presently are
under active investigation by the Commission and its agents as a result of this
detection mechanism, It is my understanding that this computer surveillance
capability soon will be extended to Medicare claims as well, substantially increas-
ing the scope of this surveillance.

When a case of apparent over-prescribing by a physician is reported to this
Commission, the complaint is referred to a component committee or county society
of the Medical and Chirugical Faculty of Maryland (the state medical society)
for investigation. The component to which the complaint is referred must in-
vestigate the complaint thoroughly and must furnish the Commission with a re-
port and recommendation concerning action to be taken by the Commission,
within 90 days of referral. The Commission considers, but is not bound by, the
recommendation of the investigating compcenent, and may perform additional
investigation of its own. Normally the investigating component will interview
the physician involved and will examine the medical records of the patients con-
cerned with the complaint, in order to determine medical justification for the
prescriptions. If the prescriptions appear to be medically justified by the medical
records, a recommengdation of no action generally is forthcoming, As often as not,
however, surveillance detects over-prescribing which cannot be justified medically.
In such case, depending upon the degree and type of inappropriate prescribing, a
recommendation for disciplinary action usually is forthcoming. Alternatively, a
full review of practice review. Not ififrequently, over-prescribing is the tip of an
iceberg of generally substandard practice, which can be corrected by appropriate
remedial action by the Commission .

Several other sources of complaints involving over-prescribing exist, but
the same investigative, adjudicative and disciplinary mechanisms are used. The
public, in the form of individual patients, may detect excessive preseribing be-
cause of an adverse reaction. The Division of Drug Control of the State
routinely performs on-site surveys of Maryland pharmacies, and through audit-
ing of prescription records, frequently detects instances of apparently inap-
propriate prescribing. After a pretiminary review of the problem by the Drug
Committee of the State Medical Society, whose chairman also serves as a con-
sultant to the Division of Drug Control, the matter is referred to the Com-
mission for further action if the prescribing is found to be not medically
justified. Complaints also come from physician peers who, in either the private
or institutional practice setting and by way of patient referral, mutual pa-
tient involvement or hospital peer review activity, become aware of inappro-
priate preseribing practice. Such complaints usually are referred initially
to the local medical society, which performs an investigation and makes a judg-
ment as to the necessity for referral to the Commission, or in the alternative, for
private counselling,
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In tkhe past, inappropriate use of amphetamines by physicians in Maryland
was very widespread. ‘This problem largely has been corrected by the advent
of comprehensive regulations regarding the medical indications and appropriate
use to which amphetamines are restricted. Widespread publication of these
regulations has cured most of the amphetamine problem in this State. The residual
amphetamine problem is being detected and managed through the mechanisms
already described, and by medical society and state agency surveillance, detec-
tion and counselling. Continued abuse always generates referral to the Com-
migsgion for appropriate disciplinary action. :

It is the Commission’s distinet impression that most over-prescribing by phy-
sicians is unintentional, as a product of poor practice habits or a lack of aware-
ness of the potential for abuse,”as well as a lack of awareness of the amount
of abuse that exists. A physician may not be stimulated to keep cumulative
patient records, or if in keeping them, may not be stimulated to watch for ex-
cessive prescriptions for an individual patient. Over years of practice, his pa-
tient-record keeping system may have fallen into disarray or, being preoccupied
with a busy practice, he may not have become aware of modern policies and
practices. When a problem is brought to their attention, mg¢st physicians cor-
rect their practice and come into immediate compliance and with considerable
chagrin, For example, in previous years, the practice of supplying pharmacies
with pre-signed blank prescriptions for the convenience of the pharmacist and
the patient was relatively prevalent. Today, in spite of close surveillance, it is
difficult to find an instance of this inappropriate practice.

Cases of intentional diversion of drugs to the street by a physician are rare
in this Commission's experience. One such case presently is under Commis-
-gion prosecution at this time, having been brought to the Commigsion by
police, complete with voice-recorded evidence that the physician knew that his
prescriptions were medically unjustified and were being resold on the street.
The police, who traditionally have been frustrated in their attempts to obtain
successful prosecution in such cases, are very aware of this Commission as an
additional resource and consequently are satisfied to work closely with the
Commission in such intances. Knowing the past attitude of the Commission to such
cases, it is difficult for me to imagine that this physician will not suffer an out-
right revocation of his license.

Fortunately, such cases are most uncommon in this Commission’s experi-
ence. It is of interest to note that even physicians who are chemically dependent
upon druags or alcohol characteristically divert drugs to themselves but not to
the public. These experiences have led this Commission to the following
conclusions:

1. Diversion of physician-presceribed drugs remains a significant problem.

2. Cooperation between multiple private and public agencies in a carefully ad-
ministered surveillance and disciplinary system has been extremely effective
remedy to the problem in this State.

3. The continuation of this effort, combined with a major educational effort
directed toward physicians would be effective in eradicating the diversion of
drugs at the hands of physicians.

It remains then, for such an educational effort to be lavnched. In this regard,
all final Commission actions are published in our State Medical Journal for
their educational value. Unfortunately, however, neither the private sector nor
this Commission have the resources available at the present time to engage in an
educational effort ¢f a magnitude sufficient to comprehensively and quickly close
the portals of entry of drugs to the street from physicians’ offices. With assist-
ance, a solution to the problem is at hand and this Commission and the State
Medical Society and all of its committees and components are willing and eager
to assist.
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